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(` in lakhs)

Particulars
Standalone Consolidated

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

Revenue from Operations 7983.74 8004.62 8072.69 8059.17

Other Income 88.89 94.43 68.20 86.79

Total Revenue 8072.63 8099.05 8140.89 8145.96

Prot Before Depreciation, Interest and Taxes 1233.38 1039.92 879.55 983.82

Finance Cost 94.36 119.51 94.61 119.63

Depreciation and Amortisation 936.76 774.04 962.68 798.34

Prot Before Tax 202.25 146.38 (177.74) 65.85

Provision for Tax 62.33 49.17 (30.48) 26.87

Other Comprehensive Income 0.89 1.38 0.57 1.38

Prot / (Loss) for the Year 140.82 98.59 (146.69) 40.36

Earnings Per Share (Equity share par value ` 10/- each)
Basic (` per share)

0.56 0.42 0.59 0.17

Dear Members,

rdYour Directors are pleased to present 23  Annual Report and the Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2018.

Financial Performance

The Company’s nancial performance, both Standalone and Consolidated, for the year ended March 31, 2018 is summarised below:

Consolidated Accounts

The Consolidated Financial Statement of your Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 are prepared in compliance with the applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, applicable Indian Accounting Standards and the 

provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Subsidiary Company

During the year, the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary. Pursuant to Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Consolidated 

Financial Statements of your Company and its subsidiary is provided in this Annual Report.

Further, a statement containing the salient features of the nancial statement of our subsidiary in the prescribed format AOC-1 is 

included in this report as Annexure – III and forms an integral part of this Report.

The Financial Statement of the subsidiary company and the related information is available for inspection by the members at the 

registered ofce of the Company during the business hours on all days except Saturday, Sunday and Public Holidays upto the date of 

Annual General Meeting as required under section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate section forming integral part of this Annual Report.

Dividend and Reserves
In order to conserve the available resources for future, the Board of Directors of the Company have not recommended any Dividend for 

the Financial Year 2017-18.
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Unpaid / Unclaimed Dividends

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 

Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (Rules), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government, after completion of seven years from the date of 

transfer to Unclaimed Dividend Account of the Company.

Further, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven 

consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority. The said requirement does not apply to the 

orders of Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining transfer of the shares.

The due date for transfer of unpaid dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) is given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

The shareholders are requested to verify their records and claim their unclaimed dividends for the past years, if not claimed.

The details of the consolidated unclaimed / unpaid dividend details as required by the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading 

of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules,2012, for all the unclaimed / unpaid dividend 
nd rd

accounts outstanding (upto the date of 22  Annual General Meeting on 3  August, 2017) in terms of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

Notication No.G.S.R 352(E) dated May 10, 2012 has been uploaded on the Company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Share Capital
During the year under review, the Company allotted 10,00,000 Convertible Warrants of Face Value  ` 10/- each at a price of ` 60/- 

(including a premium of ̀  50/-)  to Promoters on a preferential basis. 

Further during the year under review, the Company allotted 42,900 Equity shares of ̀  10/- each pursuant to exercise of stock options 

under the Employees Stock Option Plan 2011.

Consequently the paid up equity share capital of the Company stood at ` 25,12,25,720 consisting of 2,51,22,572 Equity Shares of 

` 10/- each.

Public Deposit
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies 

Act 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,2014 (including any statutory modication(s) or re-enactment(s) for 

the time being in force).

Corporate Governance
Pursuant to Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, your company adheres to the 

Corporate Governance Code as prescribed by the Bombay Stock Exchange and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

A detailed Corporate Governance Report is made a part of this Annual Report. A certicate from Practicing Company Secretary 

regarding Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 is attached to this Report.

Board of Directors
Company’s Policy relating to appointment / re-appointment of Directors, Payment of Managerial Remuneration, Induction, 

Performance Evaluation and other related matters are as mentioned below:

A. Inductions

 During the year under review there was no change in Directors of your Company. 

B. Retirement by Rotation and Subsequent Re-appointment

 Pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, one third of such of the 

Directors as are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at every 

Annual General Meeting.

 Dr. A.L Rao is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Dr. A.L Rao has conrmed his eligibility and 

willingness to accept the ofce of the Director of your Company, if conrmed by the Members at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. In the opinion of your Directors, Dr. A L Rao has requisite qualications and experience which would be useful for your 

Company and would enable him to contribute effectively to your Company in his capacity as the Director of your Company.

 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the Listing Regulations, as 

amended and the Articles of Association of the Company, the Independent Directors and the Managing Director of the Company 

are not liable to retire by rotation.
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C. Re-appointment

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Ram N Agarwal has been 
thappointed as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 16  February, 2018 by the Board of Directors at 

ththeir meeting held on 15  February, 2018 on the recommendation of the Nomination and Compensation Committee. A separate 
rdresolution seeking members approval for conrmation of his appointment has been included in the Notice of the 23  Annual 

General Meeting of the Company along with his brief prole.

D. Resignation of Director

 H V Gowthama, Independent Director (DIN: 00250122) has resigned from the Board and all Committees of the Board
thw.e.f 26  June, 2018.

th Prashee Agarwal, Non–Executive Director (DIN: 03420048) has resigned from the Board w.e.f.  27  July, 2018.

E. Performance Evaluation of Director

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors was conducted. 

 A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was convened, which reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole, the 
Non-Independent Directors and the Chairman of the Company against the objectives set at the beginning of the year.

 The Directors carried out the Annual Performance Evaluation of the Board, Committees of the Board and Individual Directors along 
with assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of ow of information between the Company management and the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

F. Committees of the Board

 The details of the powers, functions, composition and meetings of the Committees of the Board held during the year are given in 
the Report on Corporate Governance section forming part of this Annual Report.

G. Independent Directors’ Declaration

 Independent Directors have submitted a declaration that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (including any statutory modication(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force). 

 Further, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as ‘Independent Director’ during the year 
under review.

H. Familiarization Program for Independent Directors

 Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) and Regulation 46(2)(i) of Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company conducts the ‘Familiarization Program’ when a new Independent Director joins the Board of the 
Company.

 ‘Familiarization Program’ provide an opportunity to the Independent Directors to interact with the senior leadership team of the 
Company and help them to understand their roles, rights and responsibilities, Company’s strategy, business model, operations, 
service and product offerings, markets, organization structure, nance, human resources, technology, quality, facilities and risk 
management and such other areas as may arise from time to time. The details of the ‘Familiarization Program’ have also been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in.

I. Statutory Disclosures

 H V Gowthama, Independent Director (DIN: 00250122) has resigned from the Board and all Committees of the Board w.e.f
th26  June, 2018. H V Gowthama, Independent Director (DIN: 00250122) appears in the list of directors published by the MCA who 

are disqualied to act as a Director u/s 164 (2) read with rule 14(5) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualication of Directors) 
Rules, 2014. 

 H V Gowthama, had informed the Board that his disqualication in the list published by the MCA is attributed to non-ling of 
Financial Statements by a Company in Vijayawada of which he was never a Director. However, due to a technical error his name 
appeared as a Director in that Company, due to which, his name has been included in the list of Defaulter Directors by the MCA. He 
also informed that he is in the process of getting this error rectied by appropriate authorities.

 Your Directors have made necessary disclosures as required under various provisions of section of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it 
is hereby conrmed that:

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2017-18, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 
and there are no material departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the nancial year and of 
the prot and loss of the company for that period;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufcient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The Directors have laid down internal nancial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal nancial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

Material Changes and Commitments
No material changes and commitments affecting the nancial position of the Company occurred between the end of the nancial year 
to which this nancial statements relate and the date of this Report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo
The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required under 
Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in

Annexure-I and is attached to this Report.

Number of Meetings of the Board
The Board met seven times during the Financial Year, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part 
of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

Extract of Annual Return
Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual return of the Company in Form MGT – 9 for the Financial Year ended
st31  March, 2018 is included in this Report as Annexure – II and forms an integral part of this Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives
Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable 
to the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments
Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the nancial 
statements provided in this Annual Report.

Statutory Auditors and Their Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, M/s. N M Raiji & Co, Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration Number: 108296W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the

st th21  Annual General Meeting of the Company untill the conclusion of 26  Annual General Meeting subject to ratication of the 
appointment at every Annual General Meeting.

thIn accordance with the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, enforced on 7  May, 2018 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratied at every Annual General Meeting.

The Report given by the Auditors on the nancial statement of the Company is part of this Report. There has been no qualication, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the Company in the year under review. The 
observations of the Auditor, together with notes to accounts referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self explanatory and do not call any 
further explanation from the Directors.
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Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company has appointed
S Kannan and Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Bengaluru (Firm Registration No.: S2017KR473100) as the ‘Secretarial 
Auditor’ of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit as prescribed under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

stThe Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31  March, 2018 in Form MR-3 is presented in Annexure-IV attached to this 
Report.

Related Party Transactions 

All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business 
and that the provision of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not attracted. 

Further, there are no material related party transactions during the year under review with the Promoters, Directors, and Key 
Managerial Personnel. Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for review and approval on 
annual basis.

Form AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h) of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 is furnished in Annexure-V attached to this Report. 

The Policy to determine materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board of 
Directors is available on the Company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Risk Management
The Company has a well-dened process in place to ensure appropriate identication and treatment of risks. The identication of risks 
is done at strategic, business, operational and process level. While the mitigation plan and actions for risks belonging to strategic, 
business and key critical operational risks are driven by senior leadership, for rest of the risks, operating managers drive the conception 
and subsequent action and mitigation plan.

As per the requirements of Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 your company 
has constituted a Risk Management Committee to oversee the Risk Management efforts in your company. The details of Committee 
and its terms of reference including elements of risk as identied for the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report and 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDA) forming part of this Report.

The key strategic, business and operational risks which are signicant in terms of their impact to the overall objectives of the Company 
along with status of the mitigation plans are periodically presented and discussed in the Risk Management Committee (RMC) 
meetings. Inputs from the Risk Management Committee are duly incorporated in the action plans. All signicant risks are well 
integrated with functional and business plans and are reviewed on a regular basis by the senior leadership.

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy
According to Section 134(5)(e)of the Companies Act, 2013, the term Internal Financial Control (IFC) means the policies and procedures 
adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
safeguarding of company’s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting 
records and timely preparation of reliable nancial information.

The Company has well placed, proper and adequate Internal Financial Control (IFC) system which ensures that all assets are 
safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The Internal Auditors of the 
company M/s. Gnanoba & Bhat, Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and 
concurrently audit the majority of the transactions in value terms.

Independence of audit is ensured by direct reporting of the Internal Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board.

During the year, the Internal Auditors have also been engaged for providing assistance in improving Internal Financial Control (IFC) 
framework.

Signicant / Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts
There are no signicant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of 
the Company and its future operations.

Employee Stock Option Plan
The Company has Employee Stock Option Plan 2011 and Employees Stock Option Plan 2016 which are administered by the 
Nomination and Compensation Committee for the benet of employees.

During the Financial Year 2017-18, there has been no change in the Employee Stock Option Plan 2011 and Employees Stock Option 
Plan 2016 of the Company.
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Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical 

behavior. Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy under which the employees are free to report to the management instances of 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethical policy. Employees may also 

report illegal or unethical behavior to the Chairman of Audit Committee. During the year under review, no employee was denied access 

to the Audit Committee. During the Financial Year 2017-18, Company has not received any complaint. The Whistle Blower Policy as 

approved by the Board of Directors is available on the Company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered 

under this policy. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up across locations in India to redress complaints received regarding 

sexual harassment. The cases reported to such Committee are investigated by the respective Committee members and the detailed 

report thereon is presented to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal 

of sexual harassment of woman at workplace and to provide a platform for redressal of complaints and grievances against sexual 

harassment. During the Financial Year 2017-18, Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment.

ESOP Plan 2011 ESOP Plan 2016

Date of Shareholders' Approval th27  September, 2017 nd22  September, 2016

Total number of Options approved under the scheme 6,00,000 6,00,000

Vesting Schedule

On Completion of 12 months from the date of Grant of Options 30% vesting 30% vesting

On Completion of 24 months from the date of Grant of Options 30% vesting 30% vesting

On Completion of 36 months from the date of Grant of Options 40% vesting 40% vesting

Exercise Price Rs. 10 per share Rs. 10 per share

Exercise Period
5 Years from the 
date of vesting

5 Years from the
date of vesting

Option movements during the year

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,92,300 NIL

Options granted during the year 93,000 1,32,000

Options Lapsed during the year 17,000 Nil

Options vested and available for exercise 2,86,300 Nil

Options exercised during the year 42,900 Nil

Variations of terms of Options None None

Money realised by exercise of Options (Rs.) 4,29,000 Nil

Total number of Options in force as at the end of the year 4,25,400 1,32,000

Vested and available for exercise 1,67,200 Nil

Unvested 2,58,200 1,32,000

During the Financial Year 2017-18; 42,900 Options were exercised by the employees after vesting. Accordingly the Company has made 
th ththe allotment 11,700 Equity Shares on 27  May, 2017 and 31,200 Equity Shares on 18  November, 2017.

Pursuant to Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and as required under the Securities and Exchange 
stBoard of India Guidelines, the applicable disclosures as on 31  March, 2018 is as tabulated below:
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Research and Development

WeP has dedicated Research & Development team focused on Retail, Printer and Application Specic Printer products solutions. WeP 

R&D has complete in-house facility for executing projects from concept to product involving various engineering domains like

Electro-Magnetics, Power Electronics, Thermal and Vibration. WeP with rich experience in design and development of mechatronics 

products has delivered 320 varieties of products. Inspired by trends and the consumers’ latent desires, we are proactively re-fashioning 

our R&D outlook to deliver consumer sensitivity in our product design and development. We have a dedicated Research & development 

team focusing on Digital Platform for tax compliance, Document Management, Aadhaar and Payment solutions, Retail product 

solutions and Application Specic Printers. R&D team is equipped to meet the challenging demands, dynamic change requirements for 

developing customer centric technical solutions to deliver our customer promise of “TECH FANTASY”. 

Policies of Company

Your Company has posted the below mentioned policies on its website www.wepsolutions.co.in under the heading ‘Investor Corner’.

1. Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel 2. Whistle Blower’s Policy

3. Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy 4. Related Party Transaction Policy

5. Compensation Policy 6. Risk Management Policy

7. Internal Code for Prevention of Insider Trading 8. Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries

9. Policy for Determining Materiality of Event or Information 10. Policy for Preservation of Documents

11. Familiarization Program for Independent Director

Particulars of Employees

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company shall be provided on request. The 

Company is not having any employee drawing remuneration exceeding the limits as specied under the Companies Act, 2013. The 
stapplicable disclosures as on 31  March, 2018 pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 is furnished in Annexure-VI and is 

attached to this Report.

Depository System

The Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic mode. In India there are two depositories i.e. National Securities 

Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). To facilitate trading in DEMAT form, Company has 

established connectivity with both the depositories. Currently about 96.28% of the Issued Capital is held in electronic mode.

Listing Fees

In compliance with Regulation 14 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Annual Listing Fees 

for the Financial Year 2018-19 has bee paid to the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Human Resources

As a part of company’s drive to continue to nurture talent, your company has developed structured HR policies and programs in the 

area of resourcing, performance management system, competency based training and development and talent management to 

support the current and future need of the organization. Your Directors take this opportunity to record their appreciation for the 

contribution of all employees of your company during the year.

Industrial Relations

Your company has always considered its workforce as its valuable assets and continues to invest in their excellence and development 

programs. Your company has taken several initiatives for enhancing employee engagement and satisfaction. Your company maintains 

healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relation at all levels. The industrial relations in all respect to all other manufacturing facilities 

and divisions of your company are normal.

Green Initiative

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has announced “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless compliances 

by companies vide circular dated April 21, 2011 stating that a Company is in compliance with Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

if the service of documents has been made through electronic mode.
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rdElectronic Copies of the Annual Report 2017-18 and the Notice of 23  Annual General Meeting are sent to the members whose e-mail 

addresses are registered with Company / Depository Participant(s). For members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, 
rdphysical copy of the Annual Report 2017-18 and the Notice of 23  Annual General Meeting are sent in the permitted mode. Members 

requiring physical copy can send a request to the Company.
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Place: Bengaluru Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure - I

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Particulars of technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as per Section 134(3)(m) of the
stCompanies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31  March, 2018 is given below 

and forms part of the Directors’ Report.

A. Conservation of Energy:

The company’s operations are energy intensive. However, signicant measures are taken to reduce the energy consumption by 

using energy- efcient equipments. Conservation of energy is always on the “To Do” list at all levels of operations. Efforts are 

made in this direction on a continuous basis. The requirement of disclosure of particulars in this respect as prescribed to be 

furnished in Form A (rule 2) is not applicable and hence not provided. 

However, the company has taken the following adequate measures to conserve the energy:

Ÿ Localized lighting in place of community lighting.

Ÿ Employees are habituated to switch off fans, lights during the lunch break and at close of ofce hours.

Ÿ Energy efcient and battery operated product releases.

Ÿ New design mandatory compliance for low power and energy star compliance.

B. Technology Absorption

Efforts made in Technology absorption is stated as per Form B is given below:

FORM B (Rule 2)

1. Research and Development (R&D)

a. Specic Areas in which R&D activity is carried out by the Company:

Ÿ High Performance Computing for big data processing.

Ÿ Cloud design patterns for asynchronous messaging, availability, resiliency and data consistency.

Ÿ Design for dynamic scaling and highly available Infrastructure. 

Ÿ Security Design for Application, Network, Storage, Compute and identity. 

Ÿ Identity Management. 

Ÿ Cloud Networking Topologies.

Ÿ Cloud Infrastructure Monitoring and Automation.

Ÿ Machine learning and Cognitive services API. 

Ÿ Mobile Device Management.

Ÿ Retail Software design and development for Android Operating system. 

Ÿ Mobile Application for Retail

Ÿ Design & Development of Printers and Retail Billing Solutions. 

Ÿ Product Engineering Services for Application specic printers and electromechanical systems. 

Ÿ Universal Magnetic path design for next generation print head design. 

Ÿ Wi-Fi, Ethernet, GSM/GPRS for remote management of printers. 

Ÿ Design & Development of ASIC/FPGA/SOC based systems. 

Ÿ Design compliance for EMI-EMC, ROHS & Energy Star.

b. Benets derived as a result of above R&D:

Ÿ API gateway platform release for enterprise application integration.

Ÿ Digital Platform release for Aadhaar, GST Tax Compliance, Ewaybill and Document Management Solutions.

Ÿ Asynchronous Messaging platform for big data processing. 

Ÿ Infrastructure Monitoring and Automation integration for dynamic scaling and security.

Ÿ First in India to launch POS connected device for GST compliance.

Ÿ POS product release with Aadhaar enabled payment system, UPI, Wallets and Card payment modes.

Ÿ Retail Central Server and Client product solutions for multiple location chain shops.
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Ÿ Retail and F&B software release for Android OS

Ÿ Retail product variants design and development based on thermal and impact platform.

Ÿ Retail Solutions for Application specic requirements like Dairy society, Pharmacy and F&B.

Ÿ Application specic printers design and manufacturing for voting machine and Petrol dispenser Retail automation.

Ÿ Self-reliance in print head design and development for Dot Matrix Printers. All in-house captive requirements are 

met with our own Print Heads.

Ÿ High Speed printer release with Ethernet, Parallel and USB interfaces.

c. Future Plan of action:

Ÿ Expansion of digital products portfolio for tax compliance, Aadhaar, Document Management and payment 

solutions.

Ÿ Mobile device management platform applications.

Ÿ Enterprise and mobile application for connected devices.

Ÿ Expansion of Retail Products range and solutions with augmentation of features. 

Ÿ Expansion of GPRS, Ethernet connectivity application devices. 

Ÿ Retail Solutions for Billing machine and Smart phone connectivity. 

Ÿ Retail Smart solutions for service application model. 

Ÿ POS System development for Micro ATM and UID applications

2. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

i. Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

 Technology demonstrations in the following areas were made towards absorption, adoption and innovation

Ÿ Cloud design patterns for big data processing, Asynchronous messaging and data management.

Ÿ API Gateway Platform.

Ÿ Payment Solutions integration.

Ÿ Applications for Connected device.

Ÿ Ethernet, GSM/GPRS Communication for remote management of printers. 

Ÿ Thermal Printer technology absorption for retail applications.

Ÿ Retail Product Solutions for F&B, Wholesale, Pharmacy and Dairy Societies

Ÿ Embedded system optimization for easy congurability and usability of retail products.

Ÿ Adoption of variability and tolerance analysis for high precision parts design.

ii. Benet derived as a result of above efforts

Inspired by trends and the consumers’ latent desires, we are proactively re-fashioning our R&D outlook to deliver 

consumer sensitivity in our product design and development. We have a dedicated Research & development team 

focusing on Digital Platform for tax compliance, Document Management, Aadhaar and Payment solutions, Retail 

product solutions and Application Specic Printers. R&D team is equipped to meet the challenging demands, dynamic 

change requirements for developing customer centric technical solutions to deliver our customer promise of

“TECH FANTASY”. 

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last ve years reckoned from the beginning of the nancial 

year) following information be furnished: NA

3. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms actual inows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in 

terms of actual outow:

 (` in ‘000)

Particulars
Year ended
st31  March, 2018

Year ended
st31  March, 2017

Foreign Exchange Earnings 3,513.00 3,637.89

Foreign Exchange Outgo 1,59,323.61 1,78,616.34
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1 CIN L72200KA1995PLC025617

2 Registration Date 
st1  March, 1995

3 Name of the Company WeP Solutions Limited

4 Category / Sub-Category of the Company Category: Company Limited by Shares
Sub-Category: Indian Non – Government Company.

5 Address of the Registered Ofce and Contact 
Details

Address:
40/1A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road,
Bengaluru 560 001, Karnataka State
Contact Details:
a) Telephone : 080 - 66112000
b) Email : investor@wepsol.in 

6 Whether Listed Company (Yes / No) Yes, Listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

7 Name, Address and Contact Details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any

Name: Cameo Corporate Services Limited
Address:
#1, Subramanian Building, Club House Road, 
Anna Salai, Chennai – 600 002. Tamil Nadu State
Contact Details:
a) Telephone : 044 - 28460390
b) Email : investor@cameoindia.com 

Annexure - II

Form MGT – 9
stExtract of Annual Return as on the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

 (All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the turnover of the Company shall be stated)

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description
of Main Product / Services

NIC Code of the 
Product / Services

% to total turnover
of the Company

1 Manufacturing and Distribution of Computer Peripherals 3670 47.28

2 Managed Printing and Document Services 3670 52.49

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of the Company CIN / GLN
Holding 

/ Subsidiary 
/ Associate

% of 
Shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1 Name: 
M/s. WeP Digital Services Limited

(Formerly known as eRM Solutions Private 
Limited)

Address:
40/1 A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road,
First Floor, Bengaluru 560 001

U74900KA2015PLC080570 Subsidiary 100

Section 2 (87) 
of the 

Companies 
Act, 2013
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN:

 (Equity Share Capital breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 i. Category-wise Shareholding:

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2017)

No. of Shares held at the 
end of the year (31.03.2018) % 

Change 
during

the yearDEMAT Physical Total
% of 
Total 

Shares
DEMAT Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

A Promoters

1 Indian

a) Individual/HUF 3,467,149 0 3,467,149 13.83 3,467,149 0 3,467,149 13.80 (0.03)

b) Central Government 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) State Government(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

d) Bodies Corporate 6,335,861 0 6,335,861 25.26 6,335,861               0 6,335,861 25.22 (0.04)

e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

f) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (A) (1) 9,803,010 0 9,803,010 39.09 9,803,010 0 9,803,010 39.02 (0.07)

2 Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) Bodies Corporates 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (A) (2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total Shareholding
of Promoter (A)
= (A)(1) + (A)(2)

9,803,010 0 9,803,010 39.09 9,803,010 0 9,803,010 39.02 (0.07)

B Public Shareholding

1 Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) Central Government 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

d) State Government(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (B) (1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2017)

No. of Shares held at the 
end of the year (31.03.2018) % 

Change 
during

the yearDEMAT Physical Total
% of 
Total 

Shares
DEMAT Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

2 Non - Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate

(i) Indian 2,714,776 40,000 2,754,776 10.98 2,560,327 40,000 2,600,327 10.35 (0.63)

(ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Individuals

(i) Individual 
Shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 Lakh

3,287,700 640,327 3,928,027 15.66 3,336,697 632,901 3,969,598 15.80 0.14

(ii) Individual 
Shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 Lakh

7,221,676 142,292 7,363,968 29.36 7,534,917 142,292 7,677,209 30.56 1.20

c) Others (specify)

(i) Clearing Members 32,920 0 32,920 0.13 4,521 0 4,521 0.02 (0.11)

(ii) Hindu Undivided 
Families

194,418 100 194,518 0.78 263,386 100 263,486 1.05 0.27

(iii) Non Resident 
Indians

882,270 120,082 1,002,352 4.00 684,238 1,20,082 804,320 3.20 (0.8)

(iv) Trusts 0 101 101 0.00 0 101 101 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (B)(2) 14,333,760 942,902 15,276,662 60.91 14,384,086 9,35,476 15,319,562 60.98 (0.07)

Total Public 
Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

14,333,760 942,902 15,276,662 60.91 14,384,086 9,35,476 15,319,562 60.98 (0.07)

C
Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
and ADRs

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

24,136,770 942,902 25,079,672 100.00 24,187,096 935,476 25,122,572 100.00 0.00
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 ii. Promoters Shareholding:

Sl.
No.

Shareholders Name

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (01.04.2017)

Shareholding at the end
of the year (31.03.2018) %

Change
in Share-
holding 
during

the year

Number
of Shares

% of 
Total 

Shares
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

Encumbered 
to Total 
Shares

Number
of Shares

% of 
Total Shares

of the 
Company*

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

Encumbered 
to Total 
Shares

1 RNAWEP Investments Private Limited 3,260,403 13.00 0.00 3,260,403 12.98 0.00 (0.02)

2 WeP Peripherals Limited 20,24,994 8.07 0.00 20,24,994 8.06 0.00 (0.01)

3 wep solutions india limited 10,50,464 4.19 0.00 10,50,464 4.18 0.00 (0.01)

4 Ram N Agarwal 30,05,056 11.98 0.00 30,05,056 11.96 0.00 (0.02)

5 Sarita Agarwal 1,21,568 0.48 0.00 1,21,568 0.48 0.00 0.00

6 Suman Jain 3,40,525 1.36 0.00 3,40,525 1.36 0.00 0.00

Total 98,03,010 39.09 0.00 9,803,010 39.02 0.00 (0.07)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (01.04.2017)

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company*

1 RNAWEP Investments Private Limited

At the beginning of the year 3,260,403 13.00 3,260,403 12.98

At the end of the year 3,260,403 12.98

2 WeP Peripherals Limited

At the beginning of the year 2,024,994 8.07 2,024,994 8.06

At the end of the year 2,024,994 8.06

3 wep solutions india limited

At the beginning of the year 10,50,464 4.19 10,50,464 4.18

At the end of the year 10,50,464 4.18

4 Ram N Agarwal

At the beginning of the year 30,05,056 11.98 30,05,056 11.96

At the end of the year 30,05,056 11.96

5 Sarita Agarwal

At the beginning of the year 1,21,568 0.48 121,568 0.48

At the end of the year 121,568 0.48

6 Suman Jain

At the beginning of the year 3,40,525 1.36 340,525 1.36

At the end of the year 340,525 1.36

 iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:

stNote: * % of total shares of the Company under Cumulative Shareholding is based on the Paid Up Capital as on 31  March, 2018 i.e. 25,122,572

stNote: *% of total shares of the Company under Shareholding at the end of the year is based on the Paid Up Capital as on 31  March, 2018 i.e 25,122,572
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 iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:

  (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. 
No.

Name of Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year 

(01.04.2017)

Cumulative
Shareholding during

the year

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company*

1 Wipro Limited     

 At the beginning of the year 18,36,000 7.32 18,36,000 7.30

 At the end of the year   18,36,000 7.30

2 Sharad Kanayalal Shah     

 At the beginning of the year 14,12,035 5.63 14,12,035 5.62

  At the end of the year   14,12,035 5.62

3 Dipak Kanayalal Shah     

 At the beginning of the year 12,60,553 5.03 12,60,553 5.02

 thPurchased on 13  October, 2017  4,733 0.02 12,65,286 5.04

ndSold on 22  December, 2017 2,60,000 1.03 10,05,286 4.00

thPurchased on 29  December, 2017 214 0.00 10,05,500 4.00

stPurchased on 1  March, 2018 7,086 0.03 10,12,586 4.03

thPurchased on 9  March, 2018 5,000 0.02 10,17,586 4.05

rdPurchased on 23  March, 2018 414 0.00 10,18,000 4.05

thPurchased on 28  March, 2018 1,450 0.01 10,19,450 4.06

At the end of the year 10,19,450 4.06

4 Rakesh M Bohra   

 At the beginning of the year 5,31,457 2.12 5,31,457 2.12

 thSold on 7  April, 2017 1,24,295  0.49 4,07,162 1.63

thSold on 14  April, 2017 8,857 0.03 3,98,305 1.59

thSold on 24  November, 2017 20,000 0.08 3,78,305 1.51

thSold on 8  December, 2017 1,535 0.01 3,76,770 1.50

thSold on 15  December, 2017 7,040 0.03 3,69,730 1.47

ndSold on 22  December, 2017 4,646 0.02 3,65,084 1.45

thSold on 29  December, 2017 17,238 0.07 3,47,846 1.38

thSold on 5  January, 2018 3,279 0.01 3,44,567 1.37

thSold on 12  January, 2018 7,262 0.03 3,37,305 1.34

At the end of the year 3,37,305 1.34

5 Deepak A Chari   

 At the beginning of the year 2,92,898 1.16 2,92,898 1.16

 At the end of the year   2,92,898 1.16

stNote: * % of total shares of the Company under Cumulative Shareholding is based on the Paid Up Capital as on 31  March, 2018 i.e. 25,122,572
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Sl. 
No.

Name of Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year 

(01.04.2017)

Cumulative
Shareholding during

the year

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company*

6 Jigna Kanayalal Shah   

 At the beginning of the year 1,15,305 0.46 1,15,305 0.46

 thPurchased on 7  April, 2017 50,000 0.20 1,65,305 0.66

thPurchased on 11  August, 2017 3,000 0.01 1,68,305 0.67

 thPurchased on 20  October, 2017 1,484 0.01 1,69,789 0.68

thPurchased on 15  December, 2017 5,000 0.02 1,74,789 0.70

thPurchased on 5  January, 2018 16,200 0.06 1,90,989 0.76

thPurchased on 12  January, 2018 33,100 0.13 2,24,089 0.89

thPurchased on 25  January, 2018 1,500 0.01 2,25,589 0.90

ndPurchased on 2  February, 2018 20,198 0.08 2,45,787 0.98

thPurchased on 6  February, 2018 17,565 0.07 2,63,352 1.05

rdPurchased on 23  February, 2018 8,709 0.03 2,72,061 1.08

 At the end of the year 2,72,061 1.08

7 Sattva Developers Private Limited

 At the beginning of the year 2,71,774 1.08 2,71,774 1.08

thSold on 9  June, 2017 10,000 0.04 2,61,774 1.04

thSold on 16  June, 2017 5,000 0.02 2,56,774 1.02

thSold on 27  October, 2017 20,000 0.08 2,36,774 0.94

thSold on 29  December, 2017 10,000 0.04 2,26,774 0.90

thSold on 5  January, 2018 5,000 0.02 2,21,774 0.88

 At the end of the year 2,21,774 0.88

8 P K Gopalkrishnan   

 At the beginning of the year 1,89,260 0.75 1,89,260 0.75

 At the end of the year   1,89,260 0.75

9 Sridhar Mitta

 At the beginning of the year 1,58,897 0.63 1,58,897 0.63

 At the end of the year 1,58,897 0.63

10 Rahul Bhandare   

 At the beginning of the year 1,56,668 0.62 1,56,668 0.62

 At the end of the year   1,56,668 0.62

stNote: * % of total shares of the Company under Cumulative Shareholding is based on the Paid Up Capital as on 31  March, 2018 i.e. 25,122,572
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 v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director 
/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (01.04.2017)

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

Number
of Shares

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company

1 Ram N Agarwal - Chairman and Managing Director     

 At the beginning of the year 3,005,056 11.98 3,005,056 11.96

 At the end of the year 3,005,056 11.96

2 Shankar Jaganathan - Independent Director   

 At the beginning of the year 2,228 0.01 2,228 0.01

 At the end of the year 2,228 0.01

3 Mythily Ramesh - Independent Director   

 At the beginning of the year 14,040 0.06 14,040 0.06

 At the end of the year 14,040 0.06

4 B R Ganesh - Small Shareholder & Independent Director^   

 At the beginning of the year 1,666 0.01 1,666 0.01

 At the end of the year 1,666 0.01

5 Dr. A L Rao - Non Executive Director   

 At the beginning of the year 385,542 1.54 385,542 1.53

 At the end of the year 385,542 1.53

6 Prashee Agarwal - Non-Executive Director   

 At the beginning of the year 5,181 0.02 5,181 0.02

 At the end of the year 5,181 0.02

7 Sandeep Goyal - Chief Financial Ofcer (KMP)

 At the beginning of the year 33,828 0.13 33,828 0.13

thESOP Allotment on 18  November, 2017 10,800 0.04

 At the end of the year   44,628 0.17

Note: 

st1. * % of total shares of the Company under Shareholding at the end of the year is based on the Paid Up Capital as on 31  March, 2018 i.e 25,122,572
nd2. ^Cessation w.e.f. 22  September, 2017.

3. The following Directors/Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) did not hold any Share during the Financial Year 2017-18.

 H V Gowthama - Independent Director

 G H Visweswara - Independent Director

 Sudhir Prakash - Independent Director

 Sujata Arvind Lele - Company Secretary (KMP)
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Particulars
Secured Loans 

excluding 
Deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits
Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the Financial Year

i) Principal Amount 35,805,652 NIL NIL 35,805,652

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accured but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) 35,805,652 NIL NIL 35,805,652

Change in indebtedness during the Financial Year

Addition 40,777,821 NIL NIL 40,777,821

Reduction NIL NIL NIL NIL

Net Change 40,777,821 NIL NIL 40,777,821

Indebtedness at the end of the Financial Year

i) Principal Amount 76,583,473 NIL NIL 76,583,473

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accured but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

V. INDEBTNESS (in `)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager

  Name of Managing Director: RAM N AGARWAL (in `)

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Amount

1 Gross Salary

a Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income - Tax Act,1961 NIL

b Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income - Tax Act,1961 NIL

c Prot in lieu of Salary u/s 17(3) of the Income - Tax Act,1961 NIL

2 Stock Option NIL

3 Sweat Equity NIL

4 Commission

a As a % of Prot NIL

b Others, specify NIL

5 Others, specify NIL

Total (A) NIL

 B. Remuneration to Other Directors (in `)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

H V 
Gowthama

Sudhir 
Prakash

Shankar 
Jaganathan

Mythily 
Ramesh

B R Ganesh*
G H 

Visweswara
Total

1) Non Executive Director (Independent)

1
Fees for attending Board 
/ Committee Meetings

200,000 30,000 170,000 100,000 60,000 130,000 690,000

2 Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total (1) 200,000 30,000 170,000 100,000 60,000 130,000 690,000

ndNote: *Cessation w.e.f. 22  September, 2017.
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Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Dr. A L Rao
Prashee 
Agarwal

Total

2) Other Non-Executive Director

1 Fees for attending Board / Committee Meetings 120,000 0 120,000

2 Commission 0 0 0

3 Others (specify) 0 0 0

Total (2) 120,000 0 120,000

Total (B) = (1)+(2) 0 0 810,000

 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director / Manager / Whole Time Director

     (` in Lakhs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Sandeep Goyal  Sujata Arvind Lele 

Chief Financial 
Ofcer

Company Secretary 

1 Gross Salary

a
Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-Tax 
Act,1961

50.20 5.29

b Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income - Tax Act,1961 3.79 0.00

c Prot in lieu of Salary u/s 17(3) of the Income - Tax Act,1961 - -

2 Stock Option (Granted during the year) 25,000 4,000

3 Sweat Equity - -

4 Commission

a As a % of Prot - -

b Others, specify - -

5 Others, specify - -

Sl. 
No.

Type
Section of the 

Companies 
Act 2013

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty / 

Punishment / 
Compounding 
Fees imposed

Authority
(RD / NCLT / 

Court)

Appeal 
made, if any 
(give details)

A COMPANY

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

B DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

C OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 VII. Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences:

(in `)
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Annexure - III

FORM AOC – 1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

1 Name of the Subsidiary
WeP Digital Services Limited

(Formerly known as eRM Solutions Private Limited)

2
Reporting period for the Subsidiary concerned, if different from the Holding 
Company’s reporting period

st st1  April to 31  March

3
Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial Year in the case of Foreign Subsidiaries

INR

4 Share Capital 4,81,00,000

5 Reserves & Surplus (3,67,67,783)

6 Total Assets 2,59,22,354

7 Total Liabilities 2,59,22,354

8 Investments Nil

9 Turnover 1,04,61,000

10 Prot / Loss before Taxation (3,79,67,460)

11 Provision for Taxation (92,80,626)

12 Prot / Loss after Taxation (2,86,86,834)

13 Proposed Dividend Nil

14 % of Shareholding 100%

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

1 Name of Associates / Joint Ventures Not Applicable

2 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date Not Applicable

3 Shares of Associate / Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end Not Applicable

Number of Shares Not Applicable

Amount of Investment in Associates / Joint Venture Not Applicable

Extend of Holding % Not Applicable

4 Description of how there is signicant inuence Not Applicable

5 Reason why the associate / joint venture is not consolidated Not Applicable

6 Networth Attributable to Shareholding as per latest Audited Balance Sheet Not Applicable

7 Prot / Loss for the year Not Applicable

i. Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable

ii.Not Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Shankar Jaganathan Ram N Agarwal
 Director Chairman and Managing Director

Place: Bengaluru  Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
thDate: 4  August, 2018 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary
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Annexure - IV

Secretarial Audit Report

Form No. MR-3
st

For the Financial Year ended 31  March 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9
of the Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members,
WeP Solutions Limited
40/1A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bengaluru - 560 001

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by 
WeP Solutions Limited (herein after referred to as “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other records maintained by the 
company and also the information provided by the Company, its ofcers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on

st
31  March 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and 
compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other records maintained by the Company for the Financial 
stYear ended on 31  March 2018 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act) as 
amended up to the date of audit;

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

 d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benets) Regulations, 2014.

 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

 f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993; regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;

 g) The Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 

 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

6. The Company has identied the following laws as applicable to them:

 a) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

 b) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

 c) Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other applicable environmental laws

 d) Indian Contract Act, 1872

 e) Income Tax Act, 1961 and other related laws

 f) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

 g) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and such other applicable labour laws.

 h) The Information Technology Act, 2000

 i) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

 j) The Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 with effect from 1st July 2017

 I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Ofcers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for 
compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations to the Company.  I have also examined compliance with the 
applicable clauses of the following:

 a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India to the extend applicable as on the date of my audit

 b) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

 The company has listed its securities with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and the shares of the company are traded regularly.  
Company has paid the Listing fee applicable within the time limit allowed.
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  For S. Kannan And Associates

  S Kannan
  Proprietor
Place: Bengaluru  FCS No. 6261 / C P No.: 13016

rdDate: 3  August, 2018  Firm No. S2017KR473100

 During the period under the review the Company has largely complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

 I further report that:

 (i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. 

 (ii) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board and other Committee meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 (iii) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 (iv) There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 (v) During the audit period the company has no major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, having major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards etc.

 (vi) During the audit period, the Company has issued 10,00,000 Convertible Warrants to the Promoter / Promoter Group on 
Preferential Basis in terms of Chapter VII of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009. Members approval through a Postal Ballot is received 
for the same.

 (vi) During the period under review, there were no instances of:

a) Public / Rights / Debentures / Sweat Equity.

b) Redemption Buy Back of Securities

c) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.,

d) Foreign Technical Collaborations.

  This report has to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this Report.

Annexure - A

To, 

The Members,

WeP Solutions Limited

40/1A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bengaluru - 560 001.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

a. Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express as opinion 
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

c. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

d. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. Our examination was limited to the verication of procedures on test basis.

e. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efcacy or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

f. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company its ofcers, authorised representatives during the conduct 
of the audit, in our opinion adequate systems and process and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with 
applicable general laws like Labour laws & Environment laws and Data protection policy.

g. We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial Laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws, the correctness and 
appropriateness of nancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company have not been reviewed in this audit since the same has 
been subject to review by the Statutory Auditor and other designated professionals.

  For S. Kannan And Associates

  S Kannan
  Proprietor
Place: Bengaluru  FCS No. 6261 / C P No.: 13016

rdDate: 3  August, 2018  Firm No. S2017KR473100
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Annexure - V

FORM AOC – 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contract/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred 
to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts and arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

1 Name(s) of the related party NIL

2 Nature of Relationship NIL

3 Nature of contract / arrangements / transactions NIL

4 Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions NIL

5 Salient terms of the contracts / arrangement / transactions including the value, if any NIL

6 Justication for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL

7 Date of approval by the Board, if any NIL

8 Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

9 Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under rst proviso to Section 188 NIL

1 Name(s) of the related party WeP Peripherals Limited
WeP Digital Services Limited

(Formerly known as eRM Solutions 
Private Limited)

2 Nature of Relationship Promoter Company Subsidiary Company

3 Nature of contract/arrangements / transactions
Purchase and Sale of
Goods and Services

Purchase and Sale of
Goods and Services and Interest 

received on Loan

4 Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions
st1  April 2017

stto 31  March 2018

st1  April 2017
stto 31  March 2018

5
Salient terms of the contracts / arrangement / transactions 
including the value, if any

Purchase of Goods and 
Services (excluding taxes) –

` 85,94,300/-

Initial Consideration (25%)
for allotment of warrants 
received – ` 1,50,00,000/-

Purchase of Goods and Services –
` 1,44,240/- 

Sale of Goods and Services –
` 37,80,273/-

Interest received on Loan
(Gross of TDS) – ` 2,28,596/-

6
Justication for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions

Sale and Purchases of
Goods and Services

Purchase and Sale of Goods
and Services and Interest received 

on loan

7 Date of approval by the Board, if any
th27  May, 2017 th17  May, 2017

8 Amount paid as advances, if any NIL NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transaction at arm’s length basis:

Note: Appropriate approvals have been taken from Audit Committee for related party transactions.

 For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru Ram N Agarwal
thDate: 4  August, 2018 Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure - VI

Details Pertaining to Remuneration as Required Under Section 197(12)
of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there-under, in respect of the employees of the 
company are as mentioned below:

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the 
Financial Year 2017-18:

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Ofcer, Chief Financial Ofcer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any in the Financial Year 2017-18:

Name of Director Title Ratio of Median Remuneration

Ram N Agarwal Chairman and Managing Director NIL

H V Gowthama* Independent Director 0.48

Sudhir Prakash Independent Director 0.07

Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director 0.41

Mythily Ramesh Independent Director 0.24

B R Ganesh** Small Shareholders and Independent Director 0.14

G H Visweswara Independent Director 0.31

Dr. A L Rao Non – Executive Director 0.29

Prashee Agarwal*** Non – Executive Director NIL

Name of Director / Key Managerial Personnel Title Percentage Increase in Remuneration

Ram N Agarwal Chairman and Managing Director Not Applicable

H V Gowthama* Independent Director Not Applicable

Sudhir Prakash Independent Director Not Applicable

Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director Not Applicable

Mythily Ramesh Independent Director Not Applicable

B R Ganesh** Small Shareholders and Independent Director Not Applicable

G H Visweswara Independent Director Not Applicable

Dr. A L Rao Non – Executive Director Not Applicable

Prashee Agarwal*** Non – Executive Director Not Applicable

Sandeep Goyal Chief Financial Ofcer 14.50%

Sujata Arvind Lele Company Secretary 12.00%

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2017-18: 7.30%

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company in the Financial Year 2017-18: 180

e) The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:

 On an average, employees received an increase of 11.90%. The increase in remuneration is in line with the market trends. In order 
to ensure that remuneration reects Company performance, the performance pay is linked to organization performance.

th nd thNote: *Resigned w.e.f 26  June, 2018; **Cessation w.e.f 22  September, 2017; ***Resigned w.e.f 27  July, 2018

th nd thNote: *Resigned w.e.f 26  June, 2018; **Cessation w.e.f 22  September, 2017; ***Resigned w.e.f 27  July, 2018
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f) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company:

     (` in Lakhs)

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the Financial Year 2017-18 (aggregated) 67.38

Revenue from Operations 8072.69

Remuneration (as % of Revenue) 0.83%

Prot Before Tax (PBT) (177.73)

Remuneration (as % of PBT) NA

g) Variation in the market capitalization of the Company, Price Earning Ratio as at the closing date of the current Financial 
Year and previous Financial Year and percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the 
company in comparison to the rate at which company came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies, and 
in case of unlisted companies, the variations in the net worth of the company as at the close of the current nancial year 
and previous nancial year:

Particulars Unit stAs on 31  March 2018 stAs on 31  March 2017 Variation

Closing rate of Shares at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) ` 40.20 53.10 (24%)

EPS (Consolidated) ` (0.59) 0.12 (591%)

Market Capitalization ` 10,099.27 Lakhs 13,317.31 Lakhs 24%

Price Earning Ratio Ratio NA 442.50 NA

h) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justication thereof 
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

 The average increase in Salaries of employees other than Managerial Personnel in 2017-18 was 11.90%. There was no increase in 
the Managerial Remuneration during the year.

i) Comparison of each remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company:

     (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Managing Director Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Remuneration Nil 53.99 5.29

Revenue 8072.69 8072.69 8072.69

Remuneration (as % of revenue) NA 0.66% 0.06%

Prot Before Tax (PBT) (177.73) (177.73) (177.73)

Remuneration (as % of PBT) NA NA NA

j) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Director:

 The remuneration payable to the Chairman and Managing Director is based on a percentage share of prot made by the 
Company.

k) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of the employees who are not Directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the year: NA

l) Afrmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

 The Company afrms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investors are cautioned that this discussion contains statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Statements in this report on 
Management discussion and analysis relating to the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may 
be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable security laws or regulations. These statements are based upon 
certain assumptions and expectations of future events. Actual results could however differ materially from those expressed or 
implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include global and domestic demand supply 
conditions, selling prices, raw material costs and availability, changes in government regulations and tax structure, general 
economic developments in India and abroad, factors such as litigation, industrial relations and other unforeseen events. The 
Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward looking statements made herein which may undergo changes in future on 
the basis of subsequent developments, information or events.

1. Overview

 The year 2017-18 is a landmark year in the history of Indian taxation regime. With the introduction of Goods and Services tax 
(GST), India has seen a massive change in the way businesses had to be done. After demonetization in 2016-17, GST changed the 
complete landscape of Indian business environment. Every individual in the country and every enterprise, be it small, medium or 
large had to undergo transition. Digitization became the buzz word and with GST the need to digitize signicantly increased.

2. Financial Performance

 Your company’s revenues come from two major lines of business; Managed Printing Solutions (MPS) Service business and the 
Manufacturing, Design and Distribution of Computer Peripherals business (Printers business). During the last year, the Digital 
Services business started its operations. The Printers business has the Retail Billing Printers and the traditional Dot Matrix printer 
business. As discussed in our previous annual reports, your company has been transforming by reducing the share of the 
traditional Dot matrix printer business. In 2017-18, only 29% of the total revenue came from this traditional line as against 50% 
plus three years back. The Retail Billing Printers business is growing signicantly and is expected to do so in coming periods. The 
MPS business continued its positive-growth trend again in this year.

 Revenue

 In continuation to a good performance in the previous year, the MPS business logged a growth of 4% again in its services revenue. 
The revenues grew from ̀  396 Mn in FY 2017 to ̀   412 Mn in FY 2018. MPS business is swiftly upgrading into a Technical solution as 
against a standard Printing solution approach earlier. During the year, the company has collaborated with leading technical solution 
providers in this space and have developed customized solutions to meet the requirements of its customers.

 Revenues in the Printers business declined during this year due to drop in the Dot Matrix Printers revenue. The revenues dipped to
` 376 Mn in FY 2018 from ` 401 Mn in FY 2017. However, the Retail Billing Printers registered a growth of 15% over the previous 
year. The company started a new segment of Digital Services during the year. The business is focused on providing GST services, 
Document management solutions, Aadhar enabled authentication and payment solutions to both enterprise and retail customers. 
Digital business clocked a revenue of ` 11.6 Mn during the year. A major portion of the business is operated through the wholly 
owned subsidiary WeP Digital Services Limited (formerly known as eRM Solutions Private Limited).

 Operating Prot

 During the year the Consolidated Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and Tax (EBITDA) of the company reduced from ̀  98 Mn 
in FY 2017 to ̀  88 Mn in FY 2018. The EBIT declined from ̀  18.5 Mn in FY 2017 to ̀  (8.3) Mn in FY 2018. The primary reason for 
the loss in the current year is the investments made in the Digital Services business. This business incurred a loss of ̀  62 Mn in the 
FY 2018. The company is condent that the investments made will result in much improved performance in the coming years.

 During the year, the company has invested ̀  97 Mn in asset deployment for MPS business in addition to the ̀  139 Mn invested in 
the previous year. This has resulted in an increase in Depreciation of ̀  16 Mn alone. In addition to this, the MPS business invested in 
developing resources and technical capability for providing solution centric printing services. This resulted in a drop in EBIT of this 
business from ̀  59 Mn in FY 2017 to ̀  38 Mn in FY 2018.

 The Printers business made a signicant improvement in its protability. The turn-around initiated last year, was made possible 
largely due to the steps taken to control costs and rationalise the product mix. This business came back strongly to generate an 
EBIT of ̀  15 Mn in FY 2018 as against loss of ̀  33 Mn in the FY 2017.

 Net Working Capital

 The MPS operations are working capital intensive as it has to maintain supplies of spare parts and consumables across India for 
meeting customer service commitments. Further, since the customers are usually large corporates, public sector banks etc, there 
are receivables for the products supplied and services rendered. The company has made conscious efforts to reduce the capital 
deployment in the printers’ business. The overall working capital cycle slightly increased from 68 days in FY 2017 to 73 days in
FY 2018. While there was an improvement in the Inventory holding period, the receivables outstanding period increased from 54 
days to 60 days. The receivables were impacted due to the delays in processing of payment by customers owing to changes 
required to meet the GST compliance.
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 The Net Operating Cash ows were ` 67.3 Mn as against ` 144.21 Mn in FY 2017. The cash ows were impacted due to 
investment in the Digital business and the increase in receivables during the year ending March 31, 2018.  The cash ows were 
used to invest in the capex required for MPS business and also for expanding its foray into Digital services initiative.

3. Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

 The Company has in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and nature of its operations. The Internal 
Financial Control (IFC) framework devised by the company have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to 
recording and providing reliable nancial and operational information, safeguarding Company’s assets, promoting operational 
efciencies and ensuring compliance with various statutory provisions.

 The company has appointed M/s. Gnanoba & Bhat, Chartered Accountants to oversee and carry out the internal audit of its 
activities. The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of internal control systems, audit ndings and suggestions. The Company’s 
Internal Auditors regularly interact with the Audit Committee to share their ndings and the status of further improvement 
actions under implementation.

4. Human Resource Development / Industrial relations

 WeP’s people centric focus providing an open work environment and fostering continuous learning, improvement and 
development helped its employees to facilitate delivery of excellence for its customers. WeP believes that success of any company 
lies in making the customers happy and satised. The human resources strategy enabled the company to attract, integrate, 
develop and retain the best talent required for driving the business growth. The company has created a Performance driven 
environment with all employees having identied Key result areas directly aligned with the business results.

 Talent Transformation and Leadership development have been the key focus areas over the last few years. Company believes in 
nurturing internal talent to leadership positions and provides an environment of adequate training, cross functional team 
assignments to aid them.

 WeP continued its focus on fresh campus hires and has developed an exhaustive internal training module involving mentoring 
programmes, live case studies, on eld training modules in addition to class room training. Quarterly Rewards & Recognitions for 
best performers and Annual Recognition awards are given in order to promote a culture of competition and performance driven 
by WeP Values.

 SWOT Analysis

 We appreciate the market realities, stiff competition faced by your company mostly from the unorganized and local service 
providers.  And your Board acknowledges the following major SWOT analysis more specic to your company.

 Strengths:

1. Comprehensive Digital Services Provider with variety of Digital Solutions like Aadhaar Authentication, GST Services, 
Document Management Solutions, E-Sign Service etc 

2. Ability to develop customized printing and billing solutions for various applications both on device and non-device based 
platforms. 

3. Scalable infrastructure with PAN India presence, wide geographical reach and strong operational expertise.

4. Long standing relationships with Customers and Technology partners.

5. Technical solution partnerships for the MPS business expansion.

Weaknesses:

1. Dependency on products manufactured by other OEM’s for providing solutions in MPS business.

2. Inability to develop in-house technical expertise quickly to move up the value chain in MPS business.

3. Inability to retain key resources and attract talent due to lack of substantial revenue growth.

Opportunities:

1. Early move in GST services by way of a comprehensive GSP and ASP solution.

2. Uniquely positioned to provide one stop source of Digital Services.

3. Changes in regulatory and economic environment fuelling the need for printing and document management solutions.

4. Increasing number of customers looking for expert partners to manage their non-core needs vis a vis their core business.

Threats

1. Customer concentration in MPS business. Any impact due to these customers can adversely impact the company.

2. Constant regulatory changes in the GST landscape can impact the potential of the Digital business.

3. Assets under deployment in MPS business are reaching their cycle of replacement, thereby creating a pressure on the 
Investment plans of the company. 

4. Signicant revenues of the company are from the Banking, Financial Service and Insurance (BFSI) Segments. Any direct or 
indirect impact on the BFSI industry can impact the revenues of the company.
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5. As the company is largely dependent on imports for its supply of printers, consumables and spares, rupee depreciation 
impacts the margin of the company signicantly.

 Risk Management Process

 The company has an established sound risk management process which is overseen by the Risk Management Committee of the 
Board through a structured framework. Strategic, Operational and Business risks are identied and appropriate mitigating action 
plans are put in place by the company. They are reviewed periodically. 

 The following risks are identied as key risks by the company. The mitigating steps taken to counter them are also outlined below.

 Revenue Concentration

 The company has concentration of revenue coming in from industry segments like Banking, Financial services and Insurance. 
Further, a few customers also contribute to a fair share of the revenue for the company. Such concentration exposes the company 
to a risk inherent in that segment or for a particular customer.

 Mitigants

 We have adopted prudent norms based on which we monitor and prevent undesirable concentration in geography, industry or 
customer. The quest for diversied activities within the existing realm of overall management after due consideration of the 
advantages and disadvantages of each activity in consistent with company policy of increasing business volumes with minimum 
exposure to undue risks. Concentration of revenue from any particular segment of the industry is sought to be minimized over the 
long term by careful extension into other activities, particularly in areas the company has some basic advantage such as availability 
of land, technical or manpower resources.

 Inventory Obsolescence Risk

 The company needs to maintain printers for a period of more than 48 months. These models are constantly upgraded by the 
principal suppliers. However the company needs to maintain adequate stocks of spares and toners at all its customer locations in 
order to meet the customer requirements. These spares may or may not be used. This leads to a risk of us maintaining obsolete 
stocks. At times we are required to maintain inventory for demo equipments, replacement for repairs and normal distribution 
stocks. Your company faces the risk of obsolescence in the event of not being able to sell or deploy the above stocks.

 Mitigants:

 Your company is conscious of these risks and tracks and monitors its inventory at regular intervals to minimize obsolescence. Your 
company continuously monitors the stock levels of such items and ensures they are within the reasonable limits.

 Industry Risk

 Your company is facing stiff competition from other players who are both organized large brand owners and unorganized local 
players. This competition forces the company to cut down its margins and reduce price for its products and services for both the 
existing customers and new potential customers.

 Mitigants:

 Your company has put in a focused approach towards monitoring all such competitive activities. Your company reviews its 
customer relationship strategy periodically and keeps providing innovative and new solutions.  Your company is also focusing on 
moving up the value chain at the customer by providing Document Management solutions. Your company believes in providing 
value to the customers and has put in a dedicated team to manage the existing and new customers.

 Foreign Exchange Risks:

 A good amount of import of stock is done in order to meet the consumables, spares and printer requirement. The time involved 
from the date of order, receipt of the stock from the vendor, supply to the customer has remained in the range of 30 to 45 days. 
Further, the credit period from the vendor is an average period of 45 to 60 days. This time lag is potential enough to affect the 
protability of company due to uctuation in the currency exchange rate.

 Mitigants:

 Company has a dened policy for managing its foreign exchange exposure. The management reviews the hedging policy on a 
quarterly basis and takes appropriate decision from time to time in order to minimize the impact of such volatility.

 System Risks

 These risks relate broadly to System capability, System reliability, Data integrity risks, coordinating and interfacing risks.

 Mitigants:

 IT department maintains repairs and upgrades the systems on a continuous basis with personnel who are trained in software and 
hardware. Password protection is provided at different levels to ensure data integrity. Licensed software is being used in the 
systems. The Company ensures “Data Security”, by having access control / restrictions.
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Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance refers to a combination of laws, regulations, procedures, implicit rules and good corporate practices which 

ensure that a company meets obligations to optimize shareholders value and fulll its responsibilities to the community, customers, 

employees, Government and other segments of society. Emphasizing on transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity are 

essential ethics for a good corporate citizen. 

The Company has established systems and procedures to ensure that its Board of Directors are well informed and well equipped to 

discharge its overall responsibilities and to provide the management with the strategic direction catering to exigency of long term 

shareholders value.

Your company is fully aware of its responsibilities towards its stakeholders and the benets of being a good corporate citizen. Our 

business modules are revolving around the core values of excellence, integrity, responsibility, accountability, innovative, law abiding 

and empowerment. 

A report on Compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by SEBI in Chapter IV read with Schedule V of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is as mentioned below:

Board of Directors

Over a period of time, the Board has fostered a culture of leadership to sustain your Company’s growth with a long term vision and 

ingenious policy to improve the degree of Corporate Governance. A strong Corporate Governance is the key to business sustainability. 

The Board, inter alia, focuses on strategic planning, risk management, compliance, corporate governance to maintain high standards 

of ethical conduct and integrity and succession planning for the Directors. 

Composition of the Board
stAs on 31  March, 2018 the Board consists of Eight Directors. Besides the Chairman and Managing Director, the Board comprises of ve 

Independent Directors, two Non–Executive Directors. At present the Board consists of six Directors. Besides the Chairman and 

Managing Director, the Board comprises of four Independent Directors, one Non–Executive Director. The composition of the Board is in 

conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder. This appropriate composition of the Board of Directors enables in maintaining the 

Independence of the Board and separates its functions of governance and management. Detailed prole of each Director is available 

on the website of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in in the ‘Investor Corner’ section.  

stComposition of the Committees as on 31  March, 2018

The Board has constituted various committees with an optimum representation of its members and has assigned them specic terms 

of reference in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. These committees hold meetings at such frequency as is deemed necessary by them to effectively undertake and deliver upon 

the responsibilities and tasks assigned to them.

stAs on 31  March, 2018, the Company has four Board Level Committees viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and Compensation 

Committee, Risk Management Committee, and Shareholders/Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee.

The Board along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to the Company’s Management and directs, supervises and 

controls the performance of the Company.

Number of Meetings

• Board Meeting:
th thDuring the Financial Year 2017-18, Seven Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 27  May, 2017, 30  June 2017,

th th th th th19  August, 2017, 18  November, 2017, 28  December, 2017, 10  February, 2018 and 15  February, 2018 and the maximum 

gap between two meetings did not exceed four months as stipulated in Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the quarterly nancial results and other 

items on the Agenda. Additional meetings are held to address specic needs of the Company. In case of any exigency / emergency, 

resolutions are passed by circulation.

Report on Corporate Governance
(Pursuant to Regulation 27(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
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• Annual General Meeting:
rdThe last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on Thursday, 3  August, 2017, Eight Directors including the 

ndChairman of the Audit Committee and Statutory Auditor - Vinay D Balse attended the 22  Annual General Meeting held on 
rdThursday, 3  August, 2017.

Directors’ Attendance Record and their Other Directorships / Committee Memberships

As mandated by Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, none of the Director is a 

member of more than ten Board level committees or Chairman of more than ve committees across all companies in which he is a 

Director. Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company and other Directorship(s) / Committee Membership(s) / 
stChairmanship(s) as on 31  March, 2018 and number of meetings held during their tenure and attended by them is as mentioned 

below:

The details of Composition, Directors’ Attendance and other particulars are as under:

Name
of the Director

Category

No of Board Meetings
during the year 2017-18 Whether

attend the
last AGM

Number of other Directorship 
and Committee Membership / 

Chairmanship

Held Attended
Committee 

Membership
Committee 

Chairmanship
Other 

Directorships

Ram N Agarwal Chairman and Managing Director 7 7 Yes 2 - 4

H V Gowthama* Independent Director 7 7 Yes 3 3 -

Sudhir Prakash Independent Director 7 2 No 1 - 8

Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director 7 6 Yes 2 1 2

Mythily Ramesh Independent Director 7 4 Yes 2 - 1

B R Ganesh**
Small Shareholder and 
Independent Director

3 2 Yes - - 2

Dr. A L Rao Non-executive Director 7 6 Yes - - 5

G H Visweswara Independent Director 7 6 Yes 2 - 1

Prashee Agarwal*** Non-Executive Director 7 3 Yes - - 1

Note:

1. Video / Tele-conferencing facilities are used for the Board Meetings.
th nd th2. * Resigned w.e.f 26  June, 2018; ** Cessation w.e.f 22  September, 2017; *** Resigned w.e.f 27  July, 2018

Board Procedures

The dates for meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees are scheduled in advance. Board Members are given agenda 

papers along with necessary documents and information in advance of each meeting of the Board and Committee(s). However in 

exigencies or urgencies, few resolutions are passed by way of circulation. The Board periodically reviews the compliance report with 

respect to laws and regulations applicable to the Company. The recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for 

necessary approvals. The information as enumerated in Regulation 17 and Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is made available to the Board of Directors for discussion and consideration.

Evaluation of the Board Effectiveness

In terms of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder and Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and on the recommendations of the Nomination and 

Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors have put in place a process to formally evaluate the effectiveness of the Board, its 

Committees along with the performance evaluation of each Director to be carried out on an annual basis. Accordingly, the Annual 

Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committee and each Director was carried out for the Financial Year 2017-18. 

Selection / Appointment of Directors

The Board is responsible for selection of new directors. The Board delegates the screening and selection process involved in selecting 

new directors to the Nomination and Compensation Committee. The Nomination and Compensation Committee in turn makes 

recommendations to the Board on the inclusion of any new director.
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The Committee inter-alia, considers qualication, positive attributes, area of expertise and number of directorships and memberships 

held in various committees of other companies by such person. The Board considers the Committee’s recommendation, and takes 

appropriate decision.

Independent Directors

The Company has on its Board, Independent Directors who have brought in independent judgment to Board’s deliberations including 

issues of strategy, risk management and overall governance. They have played a pivotal role in safeguarding the interests of all 

stakeholders. Every Independent Director, at the rst meeting of the Board in which he/she participates as a Director and thereafter at 

the rst meeting of the Board in every nancial year, gives a declaration that he/she meets the criteria of independence as provided in 

Companies Act, 2013, Schedule V and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Tenure of Independent Director

The tenure of the Independent Directors is xed in accordance with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 and 

clarications / circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in this regard, from time to time.

Formal Letter of appointment to Independent Directors

In line with requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has issued formal 

letters of appointment to all the Independent Directors. A sample letter of appointment is available on the website 

www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, performance evaluation has been done of the Board, its Committees and individual Board members, including 

Independent Directors excluding the Director being evaluated. On the basis of the performance evaluation done by the Board, it shall 

be determined whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, whenever their respective term expires.

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company met separately without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and the members of 

Management. The meeting was conducted to enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the Company’s affairs 

and put forth their combined views to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

In accordance with Regulation 25(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, following matters 

were, inter-alia, discussed in the meeting:

Ÿ Performance Evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole against a set of pre-dened norms.

Ÿ Performance Evaluation of the Chairperson of the Company against the objectives set at the beginning of the year.

Ÿ Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of ow of information between the Company’s Management and the Board that 

is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) and Regulation 46(2)(i) of Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company conducts the ‘Familiarization Program’ when a new Independent Director joins the Board of the 

Company. 

The Company conducts ‘Familiarization Programme’ for the Independent Directors to provide them an opportunity to familiarize with 

the Company, its management and its operations so as to gain a clear understanding of their roles and responsibilities and contribute 

signicantly towards the growth of the Company. They have full opportunity to interact with Senior Management Personnel and are 

provided all the documents required and sought by them for enabling them to have a good understanding of the Company, its various 

operations and the industry of which it is a part. The details of the ‘Familiarization Program’ have also been uploaded on the website of 

the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board of Directors viz., all members of management one level 

below Directors, including all functional heads. The Code has been communicated to all the Directors and Members of Senior 
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Management. The code has been circulated to the Directors and Management Personnel, and its compliance is afrmed by them 

annually. The Annual Report contains a declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director.

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics has been suitably modied to include requirements laid down in Regulation 26 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Code is also available on the Company’s website 

www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Materially Signicant Related Party Transaction

During the year, there are no materially signicant related party transactions with the company’s promoters, directors, the 

management and their relatives that may have potential conict with the interest of the company at large.

There were no instances of non-compliance by the company nor have any penalties, strictures been imposed on them by Stock 

Exchange or SEBI or any other Statutory Authority during the last year on any matter related to capital market.

All the mandatory requirements specied in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been 

complied with.

Committees of the Board
stAs on 31  March, 2018, the Company has four Board Level Committees:

A. Audit Committee 

B. Nomination and Compensation Committee

C. Risk Management Committee

D. Shareholders / Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and xing the  terms of reference for members of various committees. 

To align with the requirements prescribed for such Board Committees under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors amended the terms of references; wherever 

required of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Compensation Committee, Risk Management Committee and Shareholders / 

Investors’ Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee. 

Details on the roles and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held during the nancial year and the 

related attendance are mentioned below:

Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee is governed by its Charter and its composition is in Compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Composition of the Committee
stAs on 31  March, 2018, the Audit Committee comprises of Four Directors. Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent 

th thDirector. During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Audit Committee meetings were held on 27  May, 2017, 19  August, 2017,
th th18  November, 2017 and 10  February, 2018. The gap between any two meetings did not exceed four months. The Composition of 

the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the 

members of the Committee during the Financial Year 2017-18 is as mentioned below:

Name of the Member Category Status
No. of Meeting

Held Attended

H V Gowthama* Independent Director Chairperson 4 4

B R Ganesh** Small Shareholders and Independent Director Member 2 2

Sudhir Prakash Independent Director Member 4 1

Shankar Jaganathan^ Independent Director Member / Chairperson^ 4 4

G H Visweswara^^ Independent Director Member^^ - -

th nd thNote: * Resigned w.e.f 26  June, 2018; ** Cessation w.e.f 22  September, 2017; ^ Chairperson w.e.f 29  June, 2018; ^^ Member w.e.f
th10  February, 2018;
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Members of Audit Committee possess nancial, accounting expertise and exposure. The Committee invites the CFO, Company 

Secretary, Statutory Auditor and the Internal Auditor to attend the meetings of the Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee 
nd rdwas present at the 22  Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on Thursday, 3  August, 2017 to answer shareholders queries.

Powers of Audit Committee

1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

2. To seek information from any employee;

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary;

5. The Audit Committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference and its role, inter-alia includes the following:

i) Oversight of the company’s nancial reporting process and the disclosure of its nancial information to ensure that the 

nancial statement is correct, sufcient and credible;

ii) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required the replacement or removal of the Statutory 

Auditor and the xation of Audit Fees.

iii) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors. 

iv) Reviewing with the management, the annual nancial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the 

Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of 

clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.

d. Signicant adjustments made in the nancial statements arising out of audit ndings.

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to nancial statements.

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.

g. Qualications in the draft audit report.

6. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly nancial statements before submission to the board for approval;

7. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, 

preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / 

notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 

making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

8. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit process;

9. Approval or any subsequent modication of transactions of the company with related parties;

10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments, if any;

11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

12. Evaluation of internal nancial controls and risk management systems;

13. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

14. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, stafng and 

seniority of the ofcial heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

15. Discussion with internal auditors of any signicant ndings and follow up there on;

16. Reviewing the ndings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

17. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

18. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of

 non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;
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19. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

20. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the nance function or 

discharging that function) after assessing the qualications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

22. Mandatory review the following information:

1. Management Discussion and Analysis of nancial condition and results of operations; 

2. Statement of signicant related party transactions (as dened by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;

3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit 

Committee.

Nomination and Compensation Committee

The role of the Nomination and Compensation Committee is governed by its Charter and its composition is in Compliance with the 

provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

Composition of the Committee 
thDuring the Financial Year 2017-18, the Nomination and Compensation Committee meetings were held on 18  November, 2017 and 

th10  February, 2018. The Composition of the Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 

along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members of the Committee during the Financial Year 2017-18 is as 

mentioned below:

The Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Company, inter – alia, evaluates, recommends to the Board and approves the 

Executive Directors compensation plans, policies and programmes of the Company. Nomination and Compensation Committee also 

has the responsibility for administering Employees Stock Option Plan 2011 (ESOP-2011) and WeP Solutions Limited - Employees Stock 

Option Plan 2016 (ESOP-2016) of the Company.

The Nomination and Compensation Committee is empowered with the following terms of reference and responsibilities in accordance 

with the provisions of law and the Nomination and Compensation Policy:

1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualications, positive attributes and Independence of a Director, and recommend to the 

Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

2. Deciding the terms and conditions of Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP) which inter –alia, include the following:

Ÿ Quantum of options to be granted under the Scheme per employee and in aggregate;

Ÿ Vesting Period;

Ÿ Conditions under which options vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of employment for misconduct;

Ÿ Exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option and that option would lapse on failure to exercise the 

option within the exercise period;

Ÿ Specied time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event of termination or resignation of 

an employee;

Ÿ The right of an employee to exercise all options vested in him at one time or various points within the exercise period;

Name of the Member Category Status
No. of Meetings

Held Attended

H V Gowthama* Chairperson* Independent Director 2 2

Ram N Agarwal Member Chairman and Managing Director 2 2

G H Visweswara Member Independent Director 2 1

Mythily Ramesh @ Member / Chairperson @ Independent Director 2 1

th thNote: * Resigned w.e.f 26  June, 2018; @ Chairperson w.e.f 29  June, 2018
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Ÿ Forfeiture / Cancellation of options granted;

Ÿ All other issues incidental to the implementation of Employees Stock Option Plan.

Ÿ To issue grant letters

Ÿ To allot shares upon exercise of vested options.

Compensation Policy

The compensation paid to Executive Director of the Company is approved by the Board of Directors on the recommendations of the 

Nomination and Compensation Committee.

• Non Executive Directors (including Independent Directors)

 Non Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) receives compensation by way of sitting fees for attending 

meeting of Board or Committee thereof. Independent Directors are not entitled to stock option of the Company.

• Executive Director

 Remuneration to Executive Director consists of Prot Linked Commission in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, as approved by the Board and within the overall limits prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

Compensation paid to Directors

During the Financial Year 2017-18 your Company has paid ̀  8,10,000 as Sitting Fees for attending the Board and Committee Meetings 

to the Non-Executive and Independent Directors of your Company.

Details of Compensation paid to Directors for the Financial Year 2017-18 are as under:    (in ̀ )

Name of the Director Sitting Fees
Salary 
and 

Perquisites
Commission Total

No of Equity 
Shares held as 
on 31.3.2018

Chairman and Managing Director

Ram N Agarwal* 0 0 0 0 3,005,056

Independent Directors

H V Gowthama** 200,000 0 0 200,000 -

Sudhir Prakash 30,000 0 0 30,000 -

Shankar Jaganathan 170,000 0 0 170,000 2,228

Mythily Ramesh 100,000 0 0 100,000 14,040

G H Visweswara 130,000 0 0 130,000 -

Non – Executive Directors

Dr. A L Rao 120,000 0 0 120,000 385,542

Prashee Agarwal*** - 0 0 - 5,181

Small Shareholders Director

B R Ganesh**** 60,000 0 0 60,000 1,666

stNotes: 1. None of the above directors is eligible for any severance pay, and none of them hold any stock option as on 31  March, 2018. 2. The notice period for 
Directors is such period as is mutually agreed between Director and the Board. 3. During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Company did not advance any loan to 

th thany of its Directors. 4. * Ram N Agarwal re-appointed as Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f 16  February, 2018; 5. ** Resigned w.e.f 26  June, 2018;
th nd6. *** Resigned w.e.f 27  July, 2018; 7. **** Cessation w.e.f 22  September, 2017;
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The Committee’s terms of reference, includes identifying Company’s risk appetite set for various elements of risk, review the risk 

management practices and structures and recommend changes to ensure their adequacy of risk management practices in the 

Company. The risk management policy approved by the Board states the Company’s approach to address uncertainties in its endeavors 

to achieve its stated and implicit objectives. Risk Management Policy and the Internal Financial Controls comprehensively address the 

key strategic / business risk and operational risks respectively. Risk Management Policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Shareholders / Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee

The composition of the Shareholders / Investors’ Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee is in Compliance with the provisions of 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015.

Composition of the Committee
stAs on 31  March, 2018, the Shareholders / Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee comprises of Two Directors. The 

composition of the Shareholders / Investors’ Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company is as 

mentioned below:

The Committee has the mandate to review and redress Shareholder Grievances. The Committee ensures cordial investor relations with 

proper mechanism for redressal of investors’ grievances. The committee specically looks into redressing shareholders’ / investors’ 

complaints / grievances pertaining to share transfer, non- receipt of annual reports, non receipt of dividend and other allied 

complaints.

a. Details pertaining to the number of Complaints received and responded and the status thereof during the Financial Year 

2017-18 are given below:

Number of Investors Complaints 
pending at the beginning of the 

stFinancial Year i.e. 1  April, 2017

Number of Investors 
Complaint received 

during the year 

Number of Complaints
disposed

off during the year 

Number of Investors Complaints remaining 
unresolved at the end of the Financial Year 

sti.e. 31  March, 2018

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Name of the Member Category Status

H V Gowthama* Chairperson Independent Director

G H Visweswara Chairperson Independent Director

B R Ganesha** Member Small Shareholders and Independent Director

Ram N Agarwal*** Member Chairman and Managing Director

Dr A L Rao**** Member Non-Executive Director

th nd th th* Resigned w.e.f 26  June, 2018; ** Cessation w.e.f 22  September, 2017 ; ***Member w.e.f 29  June, 2018 ; **** Member w.e.f 29  June, 2018.

Risk Management Committee

The Board of Directors have constituted a Risk Management Committee and dened its roles and responsibilities in accordance with 

the provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Composition of the Committee
stAs on 31  March, 2018, Risk Management Committee comprises of three Directors. The composition of the Risk Management 

Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company is as mentioned below:

Name of the Member Category Status
No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Shankar Jaganathan Chairperson Independent Director 1 1

Mythily Ramesh Member Independent Director 1 1

Ram N Agarwal* Member Chairman and Managing Director - -

B R Ganesh** Member Small Shareholders and Independent Director - -

th nd* Member w.e.f 10  February, 2018; ** Cessation w.e.f 22  September, 2017
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The Committee meets as and when required. The Company obtains Certicate from Share Transfer Agent on quarterly basis about the 
stpending complaints against the company. As on 31  March, 2018 there were no complaints pending against the company.

Subsidiary Company – Monitoring Framework

As per Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ‘Material Subsidiary’ shall 

mean a subsidiary, whose income or net worth exceeds 20% of the Consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity 

and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year.
stAs on 31  March, 2018 there is no material unlisted subsidiary of the Company. M/s. WeP Digital Services Limited (Formerly known as 

eRM Solutions Private Limited) – 100% Subsidiary is managed by its separate Board of Directors, who are empowered to exercise all the 

duties and rights for efcient monitoring and management of the Company. The Company monitors performance of its subsidiary 

companies, inter-alia, by the following means:

Ÿ The Audit Committee reviews nancial statements of the subsidiary companies, along with investments made by them, on a 

quarterly basis.

Ÿ The Board of Directors reviews the Board Meeting minutes and statements of all signicant transactions and arrangements, if any, 

of subsidiary companies. 

The Company has formulated a policy for determining its ‘Material’ Subsidiaries and the same is available on the website of the 

Company www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Related Party Transactions

All transaction entered into by your Company with related parties during the Financial Year 2017-18, were in ordinary course of 

business and on arm’s length basis. The details of the related party transactions are set out in the Notes to Financial Statements forming 

part of this Annual Report. The Related Party Transactions undertaken by your Company were in compliance with the provisions set out 

in the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

All Related Party Transactions are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the transaction. The Board of Directors of the Company has 

on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy to regulate transactions between the Company and its related 

parties in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules thereunder and Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The policy on Related Party Transactions has been placed on the website 

of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in.

CFO Certication

In compliance with the Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the CFO 
thCertication for the Financial Year 2017-18 was placed before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 19  May, 2018. The CFO 

Certication on the nancial statements and the cash ow statement for the year is placed at the end of Corporate Governance Report.

General Body Meeting

The location, date and time of the Annual General Meeting held during the last three years and special resolutions passed therein are as 

mentioned below:

b. Details of the queries received and resolved to the satisfaction of investors during the year under review and their break up 

are as under:

Nature of Query
Received during the 

Financial Year 2017-18
Disposed off during the 
Financial Year 2017-18

Pending as on
st31  March 2018

Non-Receipt of Annual Reports 11 11 0

Non-Receipt of Dividend Warrant 8 8 0

Dematerialization / Rematerialization of Shares 0 0 0

Others (Change in correspondence address, mailing id, contact 
details etc)

3 3 0
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Particulars
No. of Postal

/ e-voting Ballots
No. of

Votes Polled

A. Postal Ballot Forms received from the Shareholders of the Company in Physical Mode 29 31,32,745

B. Postal Ballot Forms received from the Shareholders of the Company in Electronic Mode 47 1,12,18,175

C. Total Postal Ballot Forms received (A+B) 76 1,43,50,920

D. Total Postal Ballot Forms found invalid / abstained 3 1,464

E. Net Valid Postal Ballot Forms (C-D) 73 1,43,49,456

Subject Matter

For Against Invalid

No. of 
Members

No. of
 Votes

%
No. of 

Members
No. of 
Votes

%
No. of 

Members
No. of 
Votes

%

Issue of Convertible Warrants 
on Preferential Basis

73 1,43,49,456 99.99 2 14 0 1 1450 0

The Chairman, after receiving the Scrutinizer’s Report announced that the special resolution as proposed in the Postal Ballot notice was 

duly passed with requisite majority.

Disclosures:

Ind AS Applicability

In accordance with the notication issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Ind AS notied under the 
stCompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 w.e.f 1  April, 2017.

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 101 – First Time Adoption of Indian 

Accounting Standards with April 2016 being the transition date.

In accordance with Ind AS 101-First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the Company has presented a reconciliation from 

the presentation of nancial statements under accounting standards notied under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
st2006 (‘previous GAAP’) to Ind AS of total equity as at 1  April, 2017 and Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended

st31  March, 2017.

Financial Year Category Location of the meeting Date Time Special Resolution

2016-17
Annual General 

Meeting
Rotary Club, Lavelle Road, 

Bengaluru 560 001
rd3  August, 2017 3.00 PM

To Approve ESOP-2016
for Subsidiary Company

2015-16
Annual General 

Meeting
Rotary Club, Lavelle Road, 

Bengaluru 560 001
nd22  September, 2016 3.00 PM To Approve ESOP-2016

2014-15
Annual General 

Meeting
Rotary Club, Lavelle Road, 

Bengaluru 560 001
th27  August, 2015 4.00 PM

Appointment of Ram N Agarwal as 
Managing Director for a period of three 

thyears w.e.f 16  February, 2015.

All the Special Resolution set out in the notice of the Annual General Meeting were passed by the Shareholders at the respective 

meetings with requisite majority.

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

No Extraordinary General Meeting of Members was held during the year.

Postal Ballot

During the year under review, in pursuance of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 22 of Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014, Postal Ballot was conducted (including e-voting) seeking approval of shareholders by the way of 

Special Resolution for the Issue of 10,00,000 Warrants convertible into Equity shares of ` 10/- each at a price of ` 60/- (including a  

premium of ̀  50/- ) per warrant to Promoter on Preferential Basis.

Vinay B L, Practicing Company Secretary, Bengaluru was appointed as the Scrutinizer for conducting the Postal Ballot process. The 
thresult of the Postal Ballot was announced on 20  December, 2017. The result of Postal Ballot was published in Business Standard and 

stHosa Diganta on 21  December, 2017. The result of Postal Ballot was submitted to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) as per the provisions 

of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has established a mechanism for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or 

violation of our Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail 

of the mechanism, and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the audit committee in exceptional cases. We further afrm that no 

employee has been denied access to the audit committee during Financial Year 2017-18. The policy has been disclosed on the website 

of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company is committed to provide a protective environment at workplace for all its women employees. We recognize the rights of 

our employees and provide forums, support group and policies to hear and address their concerns, and resolve issues and conicts in a 

fair and transparent manner. To ensure that every woman employee is treated with dignity and respect and as mandated under ‘The 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013’ the Company has in place a formal 

policy for prevention of sexual harassment of its women employees. Our Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy allows employees to 

report sexual harassment cases at the workplace. These cases are heard and resolved by an unbiased group. An Internal Committee 

looks into all the complaints of sexual harassment. The policy has also been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Code of Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

In compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013, the Company has in place a 

comprehensive ‘Internal Code for Prevention of Insider Trading’ for the Company's Directors and specied executives. The Code lays 

down guidelines advising them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing / transacting in the securities of 

the Company. 

Means of Communication with Shareholders

Financial Results

The company’s quarterly and annual nancial results in the proforma prescribed by the stock exchanges are approved and taken on 

record by the Board within the prescribed time frame and sent forthwith to Bombay Stock Exchange on which the company’s shares 

are listed. The quarterly results of the Company are published in the newspaper immediately on the approval by the Board and also 

uploaded on the Company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in. The nancial results are published in “Business Standard” and “Hosa 

Digantha” in vernacular (Kannada) newspaper. The results are not sent to the shareholders individually.

Information about the company in general, its nancial results and other information including ofcial press releases can be accessed 

at the company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Annual Report

The Annual Report containing inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, Auditor’s Report and other important 

information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto.

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act 2013, service of documents on members by a company is allowed through electronic 
thmode. Further SEBI, vide its Circular Ref. No. CIR/CFD/2011 dated 5  October, 2011, has also directed listed companies to supply soft 

copies of full Annual Reports to all those shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses for the purpose. Accordingly, the 

Company proposes to send documents like Shareholders meeting notice / other notices, Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ 

Report, Auditor’s Report or any other document, to its member in electronic form at the email address as registered with the Share 

Transfer Agent. This will denitely help in prompt receipt of communication, reduce paper consumption and save trees as well as avoid 

loss of documents in transit.

Members who have not yet registered their e-mail (including those who wish to change their already registered e-mail id) may get the 
rdsame registered / updated with the Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 23  Annual Report for the Financial Year 2017-18 has also 

been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Website

In compliance with the Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 a functional website 

of the Company is maintained. The Company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in contains a separate section ‘Investor Corner’ for use 

of investors. The quarterly, half yearly and annual nancial results, ofcial news releases are promptly and prominently displayed on the 

website. Annual Reports, Quarterly Corporate Governance Report, Shareholding Pattern and other Corporate Communications made 

to the Stock Exchanges are also available on the website. 
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Financial Year Type of Dividend Dividend Rate Date of Declaration Due Date for transfer to IEPF

2014-15 Final Dividend 5% th27  August, 2015 th26  August, 2022

2013-14 Final Dividend 5% rd23  September, 2014 nd22  September, 2021

Members who have not encashed their Dividend Warrants are requested to have them revalidated and encashed to avoid transfer to 

IEPF.

Employees Stock Option Plan

The Company has Employee Stock Option Plan 2011 and Employees Stock Option Plan 2016 which is administered by the Nomination 

and Compensation Committee for the benet of employees. During the Financial Year 2017-18, there has been no change in the 

Employee Stock Option Plan 2011 and Employees Stock Option Plan 2016 of the Company.

During the Financial Year 2017-18; 42,900 Options were exercised by the employees after vesting. Accordingly the Company has made 
th ththe allotment 11,700 Equity Shares on 27  May, 2017 and 31,200 Equity Shares on 18  November, 2017.

BSE Corporate Compliance and Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’)

BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance lings like Shareholding Pattern, 

Corporate Governance Report, Media releases among others are also led electronically on the Listing Centre.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are 

centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by 

investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. During the year under review, no complaints were registered through 

SCORES.

Compliance with Regulations

The Company has complied with the requirements of the regulatory authorities on Capital Markets, neither has there been any 

instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matters related to the Capital Markets, nor has any penalty or strictures been 

imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets 

during last three years.

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report.

Auditor's Certicate on compliance of provisions of Corporate Governance forms part of this Annual Report. 

Dividend Payment

In order to conserve the available resources for future, the Board of Directors of the Company have not recommended any Dividend for 

the Financial Year 2017-18.

Dates of Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend

By virtue of the provision laid down under the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of Dividend remaining unpaid/unclaimed for the 

period of seven years from the date of its transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company shall be required to be transferred to 

the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government. Given below is the date of declaration of 

Dividend and corresponding date when unpaid / unclaimed dividend are due for transfer to the IEPF.

The details of the Dividend declared and paid by the Company in past are as mentioned below:
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Pursuant to Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and as required under the Securities and Exchange 
stBoard of India Guidelines, the applicable disclosures as on 31  March, 2018 is as tabulated below:

ESOP Plan 2011 ESOP Plan 2016

Date of Shareholders' Approval th27  September, 2011 nd22  September, 2016

Total number of Options approved under the scheme 600,000 600,000

Vesting Schedule

On Completion of 12 months from the date of Grant of Options 30% vesting 30% vesting

On Completion of 24 months from the date of Grant of Options 30% vesting 30% vesting

On Completion of 36 months from the date of Grant of Options 40% vesting 40% vesting

Exercise Price ` 10 per share ` 10 per share

Exercise Period
5 Years from the
date of vesting

5 Years from the
date of vesting

Option movements during the year

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 392,300 Nil

Options granted during the year 93,000 132,000

Options Lapsed during the year 17,000 Nil

Options vested and available for exercise 286,300 Nil

Options exercised during the year 42,900 Nil

Variations of terms of Options None None

Money realised by exercise of Options (`) 429,000 Nil

Total number of Options in force as at the end of the year 425,400 132,000

Vested and available for exercise 167,200 Nil

Unvested 258,200 132,000

Listing

At present, the equity shares of the Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal 

Street, Mumbai 400 001. In Compliance with Regulation 14 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 the Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2017-18 has been paid to Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

General Shareholder Information:

Annual General Meeting
thThursday, 20  September, 2018

Time 3:00 PM

Venue Rotary Club, Lavelle Road, Bengaluru - 560 001.

Book Closure Dates 
th thFriday, 14  September, 2018 to Thursday, 20  September, 2018 (both 

dates inclusive)

Listing Details

Company’s shares are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Scrip Code : 532373

Scrip Name : WEPSOLN

ISIN Code : INE434B01029

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L72200KA1995PLC025617
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Values of
Shares held (`)

No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders Values of Shares held
% to the total
paid up capital

0 - 5,000 2,402 55.97 33,02,850 1.31

5,001 - 10,000 396 9.23 32,40,260 1.29

10,001 - 20,000 614 14.31 82,36,240 3.27

20,001 - 30,000 305 7.11 69,31,760 2.76

30,001 - 40,000 95 2.21 32,86,670 1.31

40,001 - 50,000 96 2.24 43,57,750 1.73

50,001 - 100,000 205 4.78 144,48,500 5.74

100,001 - And Above 179 4.17 20,74,21,690 82.45

TOTAL 4,292* 100.00 25,12,25,720 99.86

stDistribution of Shareholding according to number of shares held as on 31  March, 2018.

stNote:  * Total Shareholders as on 31  March, 2018 are 4,196 after merging of First holder PAN

Month Open High Low Close No. of Shares

April, 2017 53.90 61.20 51.55 52.65 6,67,872

May, 2017 52.05 52.95 41.00 45.55 2,90,704

June, 2017 47.45 55.90 45.20 50.30 3,59,560

July, 2017 51.05 52.00 45.00 45.55 1,88,827

August, 2017 44.80 49.45 40.00 42.75 1,47,479

September, 2017 43.10 48.20 40.25 45.00 2,45,999

October, 2017 43.00 57.80 42.10 48.00 3,14,408

November, 2017 48.00 55.75 45.00 49.90 3,67,146

December, 2017 50.00 62.50 48.00 59.70 3,54,970

January, 2018 59.70 64.00 47.50 49.80 4,22,407

February, 2018 50.80 51.50 38.05 43.10 3,98,992

March, 2018 41.50 48.45 38.80 40.20 3,63,484

Market Price Data (Source: www.bseindia.com)
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Registrar and Transfer Agents

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), through its Circular No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-15/2002 dated December 27, 2002, has made 

it mandatory for all work related to share registry, both in physical and electronic form, to be handled either wholly ‘in-house’ by 

companies or wholly by a SEBI registered external registrar and transfer agent. The Company has appointed Cameo Corporate Services 

Limited as its Registrar and Transfer Agent. Details of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent are given below:

Cameo Corporate Services Limited, 

“Subramanian Building” V Floor, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002

Tel: +(91) (044) 28460390 Fax: +(91) (044) 28460129 E-mail: investor@cameoindia.com

Share Transfer System

All share transfer and other communication regarding share certicates, change of address, dividend etc., should be sent to our 

Registrar and Transfer Agents. All shares transfer is completed within statutory time limit from the date of receipt provided the 

documents meet the stipulated requirements of statutory provisions in all respects. The Company obtains from a Practicing Company 

Secretary half yearly certicate of compliance with the share transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, and les a copy of the same with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

S Kannan and Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Reg. No. S2017KR473100) carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital 

Audit as mandated by SEBI, and reports on reconciliation of total issued and listed capital with that of total share capital admitted / held 

in dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL and those held in physical form. The Audit is carried on quarterly basis and the report 

thereof is submitted to the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), where the Company’s shares are listed and is also placed before the Board.

thNote: * With reference to the SEBI Circular dated 30  November, 2015 (CIR/CFD/CMD/13/2015) the Shareholding of the Promoter and Promoter 
Group is to be consolidated on the basis of the PAN and Folio Number to avoid multiple disclosure of Shareholding of the same person.

The Company has not issued any ADRs and GDRs. The foreign shareholding consists of holding by NRIs and other foreign national only. Total number of 
shares and percentage shareholding by Non- Resident Shareholders is 8,04,320 and 3.20% respectively.

Category of Shareholder
No. of 

Shareholders
Total No.
of Shares

Total 
Shareholding 

as a 
percentage of 
total number 

of shares

A. Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group

Individuals* 3 34,67,149 13.80

Bodies Corporate 3 63,35,861 25.22

Total Promoters’ Holding 6 98,03,010 39.02

B. Public Shareholding

Bodies Corporate 79 2600327 10.35

Individuals

I. Individuals Shareholders Holding Nominal Share      
Capital upto  ` 2 lakh

3864 49,23,293 19.60

II. Individual Shareholders Holding Nominal Share 
Capital in excess of ` 2 lakh

72 67,23,514 26.76

Clearing Members 5 4,521 0.02

Hindu Undivided Families 109 2,63,486 1.05

Non Residents Indians - Non Repat 32 251819 1.00

Non Residents Indians - Repat 27 552501 2.20

Trusts 2 101 0.00

Total Public Shareholding 4,190 1,53,19,562 60.98

Total (A)+(B) 4,196 2,51,22,572 100.00

Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2018
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Consolidation of Folios and avoidance of multiple mailing

In order to enable the company to reduce cost and duplicity of efforts for providing services to the investors, members who have more 

than one folio in the same order of names are requested to consolidate their holdings under one folio. Members may write to the 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent indicating the folio numbers along with the original share certicates to be consolidated. To enable 

us to serve our investors better, we request shareholders whose shares are in physical mode to dematerialize their shares and update 

their bank account details with the respective depository participants.

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Options

During the year under review, approval of shareholders by the way of Special Resolution was accorded for the Issue of 10,00,000 

Warrants convertible into Equity shares of ̀  10/- each at a price of ̀  60/- (including a  premium of ̀  50/- ) per warrant to Promoter on 

Preferential Basis.

Plant Locations:

Ÿ Himachal Pradesh: Plot 87, EPIP, Phase I, Jharmarjri, Dist:Solan, Himachal Pradesh - 174 103.

Address for Investor’s Correspondence

For any queries relating to the Shares of your Company correspondence may be done in the below manner:

A. For change of address and bank mandate:

Ÿ In case of Shares held in dematerialised form – Shareholder should contact their respective Depository Participant.

Ÿ In case of Shares held in physical form – Shareholders should contact the Company’s Share Transfer Agent  -  Cameo Corporate 

Services Limited, “Subramanian Building” V Floor, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002. Tel: +(91) (044) 28460390;

Fax: +(91) (044) 28460129; E-mail: investor@cameoindia.com.

B. For all matters relating to investor relations:

 The Company Secretary

 WeP Solutions Limited, 40/1 A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bengaluru - 560 001, Karnataka State.

 Shareholders are requested to quote their folio number / DP ID and Client ID, e-mail address, telephone number and full address 

while corresponding with the Company and its Share Transfer Agent.

stBreak up of Shares in Physical and DEMAT form as on 31  March, 2018

Category Number of Shareholders No. of Shares % to total equity

DEMAT Segment

a. NSDL 2,393 2,23,72,681 89.06

b. CDSL 1,150 18,14,415 7.22

DEMAT Segment Total (A) 3,543 2,41,87,096 96.28

Physical Segment (B) 749 9,35,476 3.72

Grand Total (A+B) 4,292* 2,51,22,572 100.00

stNote:  *Total Shareholders as on 31  March, 2018 are 4,196 after merging of First holder PAN

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic mode. In India there are two depositories i.e. National Securities 

Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). To facilitate trading in DEMAT form, Company have 

established connectivity with both the depositories. Shareholders can open their accounts with any of the Depository Participant 

registered with these depositories. The International Securities Identication Number (ISIN) allotted to our shares under the Depository 

System is INE434B01029.
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stAnnexure to Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year ended 31  March, 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Corporate Identity No: L72200KA1995PLC025617

Nominal Capital: ` 30,00,00,000.00

A. Compliance Certicate on Corporate Governance

To,

The Members of WeP Solutions Limited,

40/1A, Basappa Complex,

Lavelle Road, Bengaluru - 560 001.

I, S Kannan, Company Secretary, have examined all the relevant records of WeP Solutions Limited (’The Company’) for the purpose of 

certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
st stRegulations, 2015, for the period from 1  April, 2017 to 31  March, 2018.

Further, I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of certication. The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. My 

examination was limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

conditions of the corporate governance.

This certicate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efcacy or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the 

explanations and information furnished to me, I certify that the Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of Corporate 

Governance as applicable under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

B. Declaration regarding Compliance by the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with the Company’s  Code 

of Conduct pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement), Regulations, 2015.

This is to certify that pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 the 

Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, afrmation(s) that they have complied 

with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel in respect of the nancial year ended
st31  March, 2018.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru Ram N Agarwal
thDate: 4  August, 2018 Chairman and Managing Director

  For S. Kannan And Associates

  S Kannan
  Proprietor
Place: Bengaluru  FCS No. 6261 / C P No.: 13016

rdDate: 3  August, 2018  Firm No. S2017KR473100

C. Chief Financial Ofcer Compliance Certicate 

 [As per Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 – Schedule II - Part B]

I, Sandeep Goyal, Chief Financial Ofcer, WeP Solutions Limited to the best of my knowledge and belief certify that:

a. I have reviewed nancial statements and the cash ow statement for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 

be misleading;

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
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b. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which are 

fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

c. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for nancial reporting and that I have evaluated the 

effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to nancial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors 

and the audit committee, deciencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the 

steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deciencies.

d. I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

i) Signicant changes in internal control over nancial reporting during the year;

ii) Signicant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the nancial 

statements; and

iii) Instances of signicant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 

employee having a signicant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over nancial reporting.

Place: Bengaluru Sandeep Goyal
thDate: 19  May, 2018 Chief Financial Ofcer
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Report on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of WEP SOLUTIONS LIMITED (“hereinafter referred 

to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), 

which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss (including 

Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for 

the year then ended, and a summary of the signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 

referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements”).

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of these consolidated Ind AS nancial statements in 

terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the 

consolidated nancial position, consolidated nancial performance (including other comprehensive income) and consolidated 

cash ows and consolidated statement of changes in the equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

3. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 

Ind AS nancial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS nancial statements based on our audit. 

5. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

6. We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specied 

under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

7. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated Ind 

AS nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal nancial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS 

nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 

estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 

Ind AS nancial statements.

8. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report 

referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

Opinion

9. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration 

of report of the other auditor on separate nancial statements of the subsidiary referred to below in the Other Matters paragraph, 

the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2018, and its consolidated nancial performance including other 

comprehensive income, its consolidated cash ows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of WeP Solutions Limited
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Other Matters

10. We did not audit the nancial statements of the subsidiary, whose nancial statements reect total assets (net) of Rs. 259.22 lakhs 

as at March 31, 2018, total revenues of Rs.110.14 lakhs and net cash outow amounting to Rs. 13.16 lakhs for the year ended on 

that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements. These nancial statements have been audited by other 

auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS nancial 

statements; in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the report 

of the other auditor.

11. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, 

is not modied in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor 

and the nancial statements/nancial information certied by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS 

nancial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS 

nancial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2018 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary 

company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group company incorporated in India is disqualied as on March 

31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the group and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditor’s reports of the 

Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated Ind AS nancial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated nancial 

position of the Group – Refer Note 28 to consolidated nancial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company.

 For N.M.Raiji & Co.

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm’s Registration Number: 108296W

 Vinay D. Balse

Place: Camp Bengaluru Partner

Date: May 19, 2018 Membership Number: 39434
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I)

OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”) 

We have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of WeP Solutions Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary, as 

of March 31, 2018.

Management’s responsibility for internal nancial controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary company, which is are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the 

respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary 

company, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal nancial controls system over 

nancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting included obtaining 

an understanding of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies 

incorporated in India. 

Meaning of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting 

A company's internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect the transactions and dispositions 

of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 

are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 

have a material effect on the nancial statements. 

Inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal nancial control over nancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company and its subsidiary company, 

which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal nancial controls system over nancial 

reporting and such internal nancial controls over nancial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the 

internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India.

 For N.M.Raiji & Co.

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm’s Registration Number: 108296W

 Vinay D. Balse

Place: Camp Bengaluru Partner

Date: May 19, 2018 Membership Number: 39434
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WeP Solutions Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

(in `)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018

PART I – BALANCE SHEET

 Note As at As at As atParticulars 
 No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016 

  ASSETS
 1 Non-current assets
 a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2  32,34,00,153   30,61,44,730   24,15,41,083
 b) Capital Work-in-Progress  2&3  2,96,220   19,38,000   15,26,471
 c) Other Intangible Assets  3  94,24,848 66,49,673 68,14,855
 d) Financial Assets
  i) Other Financial Assets  4(c) 1,20,63,085 1,16,76,290 1,46,03,887
 e) Deferred Tax Assets (net)  5 2,94,56,908 1,91,78,924 2,19,34,412
 f) Other Non-Current Assets  6 4,66,41,458 4,40,92,303 3,86,60,474

     42,12,82,672 38,96,79,920 32,50,81,182
 2 Current assets
 a) Inventories  7 11,76,67,571 13,39,22,839 19,65,99,067
 b) Financial Assets
  i) Trade Receivables  4(a)  13,24,97,933 11,83,92,408 15,17,57,579
  ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents  4(b) 4,16,472 18,06,605 14,50,983
  iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 4(d) 15,17,540 15,72,700 16,09,436
  iv) Other Financial Assets  4(c) 13,69,660 14,03,032 22,78,927
 c) Other Current Assets  8 1,90,12,026 1,04,79,542 74,81,589

     27,24,81,202 26,75,77,126 36,11,77,581

  Total Assets   69,37,63,874 65,72,57,046 68,62,58,763

  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 3 Equity

 a) Equity Share capital  9(a) 25,12,31,545 25,08,02,545 23,00,40,545

 b) Other Equity

  i) Reserves & Surplus  9(b) 15,47,61,962 16,24,55,789 7,73,68,084

  ii) Others  9(c) 1,50,00,000 - -

     42,09,93,507 41,32,58,334 30,74,08,629

  LIABILITIES

  4 Non-current liabilities

 a) Provisions  11 1,26,84,566 1,41,22,344 2,14,80,248

     1,26,84,566 1,41,22,344 2,14,80,248

 5 Current liabilities

 a) Financial Liabilities

  i) Borrowings  10(a) 7,65,83,473 3,58,05,652 12,23,34,009

  ii) Trade Payables  10(b) 10,37,08,061 11,77,85,447 14,03,00,481

  iii) Other Financial Liabilities  10(c) 5,54,40,730 5,57,96,961 7,85,47,580

 b) Other Current Liabilities  12 2,24,33,591 1,59,35,568 92,32,468

 c) Provisions  11 19,19,946 45,52,740 69,55,348

     26,00,85,801 22,98,76,368 35,73,69,886

  Total Equity and Liabilities    69,37,63,874   65,72,57,046   68,62,58,763

(See accompanying notes to the financial statements)
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WeP Solutions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Prot and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

(in `)

PART II – STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

 Note For the year ended For the year endedParticulars 
 No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

 I Revenue From Operations  13 80,72,69,352 80,59,17,226

 II Other Income  14 68,19,854 86,78,565

 III Total Income (I+II)   81,40,89,206 81,45,95,791

  EXPENSES

 a) Cost of Materials Consumed  15 24,86,23,214 28,41,87,528

 b) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  16 9,47,12,434 7,95,86,943

 c) Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress, Stock-in-Trade

  and Finished Goods  17 3,16,68,729 4,48,89,750

 d) Employee Benets Expense  18 13,55,26,826 10,23,65,340

 e) Other Expenses  19 21,59,22,595 20,51,83,956

 f) Depreciation and Amortization Expense 21 9,62,67,927 7,98,34,405

 g) Finished goods Capitalised   (3,20,087) -

 IV Total Expenses   82,24,01,638 79,60,47,922

  Prot / (loss) Before Interest, Exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV)  (83,12,432) 1,85,47,869

 h) Finance costs  20 94,61,112 1,19,63,019

 V Prot / (loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax  (1,77,73,544) 65,84,850

 VI Exceptional Items   - -

 VII Prot / (loss) Before Tax (V-VI)   (1,77,73,544) 65,84,850

 VIII Tax expense:

  1) Current Tax   72,18,862 39,06,770

  2) MAT Credit entitlement   - (39,06,770)

  3) Deferred Tax   (1,02,66,903) 26,87,362

 IX Prot (Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations (VII-VIII)   (1,47,25,503)  38,97,488

 X Other Comprehensive Income

 A i) Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss  89,848 2,06,045

  ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassied to 

   prot or loss   (32,853) (68,125)

 B i) Items that will be reclassied to prot or loss   -     -   

  ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassied to prot or loss  - -

 XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)  (1,46,68,508) 40,35,408

  (Comprising Prot / (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)

 XII Earnings Per Equity Share:

  1) Basic   (0.59) 0.17

  2) Diluted   (0.57) 0.17

  No of Shares for EPS Calculation

  1) Basic   2,51,00,743 2,33,31,499

  2) Diluted   2,57,68,691 2,35,01,678

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018
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WeP Solutions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2018

(in `)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018

 Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 A Cash Flow From Operating Activities

  Prot before Income tax from Continuing Operations  (1,77,73,544)  65,84,850

  Prot before Income tax  (1,77,73,544)  65,84,850

  Adjustment for:

  Depreciation & Amortisation 9,62,67,927 7,98,34,405

  Provision for doubtful debts 35,52,615 13,65,114

  Employee share based payment expense 73,54,681 10,52,297

  Actuarial Gains / Losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 89,848 2,06,045

  Loss / (Prot) on Sale of Fixed Assets 16,54,250 21,43,410

  Net Exchange differences (10,87,928) 1,91,013

  Interest / Income from Investments (12,04,759) (6,93,962)

  Interest Expense 94,36,282 1,19,50,612

  Changes in Operating assets and liabilities  

  (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 1,62,55,268 6,26,76,228

  (Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (1,85,43,466) 3,20,00,057

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (85,32,482) (26,64,444)

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Bank Balances 55,160 36,736

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets (1,48,865) 34,02,060

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets (4,19,926) 39,29,229

  Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions (40,70,572) (97,60,512)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (1,29,55,272) (2,27,06,043)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 64,98,022 (1,47,98,904)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 5,71,632 (12,48,614)

  Cash Generated from Operations  7,69,98,871   15,34,99,577

  Income taxes paid  96,73,310   92,93,138

  Net Cash From Operating Activities  6,73,25,561   14,42,06,439

 B Cash Flow From Investing Activities

  Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (10,95,47,068) (14,52,40,848)

  Purchase of Intangible Assets  (68,51,884) (25,09,847)

  Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 87,958 9,22,885

  Interest / Income from Investments 12,04,759 6,93,961

  Net Cash Used In Investing Activities  (11,51,06,235)  (14,61,33,849)

 C Cash Flow From Financing Activities

  Proceeds from Issue of Shares  4,29,000   10,07,62,000 

  Share issue expenses  (3,80,000)  -   

  Proceeds from Issue of Warrants  1,50,00,000   -   

  Interest paid  (94,36,280)  (1,19,50,612)

  Proceeds / (Repayment) of Borrowings  4,07,77,821   (8,65,28,356)

  Net Cash From / (Used for) Financing Activities  4,63,90,541   22,83,032

  Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents - (A+B+C)  (13,90,133)  3,55,622

  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year / period  18,06,605   14,50,983

  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year / period  4,16,472   18,06,605 
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Corporate Information

The consolidated nancial statements comprise nancial statements of WeP Solutions Limited (the company) and its 100% subsidiary, 

WeP Digital Services Limited (formerly known as eRM solutions private limited) (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 

March 31, 2018. The company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. 

Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and the registered ofce of the company is located at 40/1A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle 

Road, Bengaluru - 560001.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of providing Managed Printing Solutions and Services, Manufacturing and 

distribution of Retail billing products and providing digital services like GST, Aadhar authentication, Document Management solutions 

etc to both enterprise and retail customers pan India. 

thThe consolidated nancial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 19  May, 2018.

1. Signicant Accounting Policies and Other explanatory information to the Financial Statements for the 

year ended March 31, 2018

 A. Signicant accounting policies

  The signicant accounting policies applied by the Group in the preparation of its nancial statements are listed below. 

Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these nancial statements and in 

preparing the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2016 for the purpose of transition to Ind AS, unless otherwise 

indicated.

 A.1. Statement of Compliance

  In accordance with the notication issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Group has adopted Ind AS notied 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2017.

  The transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption 

of Indian Accounting Standards”, with April 1, 2016 being the transition date. 

  In accordance with Ind As 101 “First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard”, the Group has presented a 

reconciliation from the presentation of nancial statements under accounting standards notied under the Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP”) to Ind AS of total equity as at April 1, 2016 and March 31, 2017, 

total comprehensive income and cash ow for the year ended March 31, 2017.

 A.2. Basis of Consolidation

  a) Basis of preparation of Financial statements

   The Group has, for the rst time, prepared its nancial statements in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (referred to as "Ind AS"). The transition from previous GAAP (i.e. IGAAP) to Ind AS has been accounted in 

accordance with Ind AS 101 "First time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards", with April 1, 2016 as the 

transition date. The nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the 

exception of certain assets and liabilites that are required to be carried at fair values as per Ind AS.

  b) Principles of Consolidation

   i) The Financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis by 

adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating the 

intra-group balances and transactions resulting in unrealised prots and losses.

   ii) The CFS have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 

circumstances and are presented to in the same manner as the Company's separate nancial statements.

  c) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the nancial statements of WeP Solutions Limited and its wholly-

owned subsidiary, WeP Digital Services Limited (formerly known as eRM Solutions Private Limited).

 A.3. Use of Estimates

  In preparation of the nancial statements, the Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates.

  The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reected in the 

nancial statements in the period in which the changes are made.
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  Signicant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities include useful lives of 

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, 

provision for employee benets and other provisions and recoverability of deferred tax assets.

 A.4. Revenue Recognition

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benets will ow to the Group and the revenue 

can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable, taken into account contractually dened terms of payment and excluding taxes or 

duties collected on behalf of the government.

  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when signicant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 

customer, which is mainly upon delivery, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the 

consideration is probable.  The Group accrues the estimated cost of standard warranties at the time when the revenue is 

recognized. The accruals are based on the Group’s historical experience of material usage and service delivery costs. The 

revenue from extended warranties i.e. for period in excess of standard warranty, is recognised over a straight-line basis 

over the period of the extended warranty.

  Revenue from services is recognised in the periods in which the services are rendered.Where services involve performance 

of an indeterminate number of acts of without substantial variation in signicance over a specied period of time, revenue 

is recognised on straight-line basis over the specied period. Where a specic act is much more signicant than any other 

act, the revenue is recongised on completion of such signicant act.

  Revenue from providing solutions and services is recognized in accordance with the customer contract and when there are 

no unfullled Group obligations or any obligations that are inconsequentional and will not affect the customer's nal 

acceptance of the arrangement.Income from maintenance contracts is recongnised proportionately over the period of the 

contract.

  Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established. 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

 A.5. Inventories

  Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method. 

Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in 

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the price at which the inventories 

can be realised in the normal course of business after allowing for the cost of conversion from their existing state to a 

nished condition and for the cost of marketing, selling and distribution.

 A.6. Property, plant and equipment

  An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benets 

associated with the item will ow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to 

the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to 

add to, replace part of, or service it. Borrowing Cost directly attributable to the construction on production of qualifying 

assets are capitalised as a part of cost. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in 

the Statement of Prot and Loss, as and when incurred.

  All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment loss, if any. Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition 

and location for its intended use. Capital Work-in-Progress is stated at cost, comprising of direct cost and related incidental 

expenditure.

  The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset, and is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

 A.7. Intangible assets

  Software costs, both acquired and internally generated, are recognised as intangible assets only where they are clearly 

linked to long term economic benets for the Group. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 

lives. All other costs on software are expensed in the Statement of Prot and Loss as and when incurred.

  Expenditure during development phase of internally generated software is recognized as intangible assets if all of the 

following conditions are met:

  i) completion of the development is technically feasible;

  ii) it is the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
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  iii) it is clear that the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benets;

  iv) adequate technical, nancial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible 

asset are available; and

  v) it is possible to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

  Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the project is complete and available for its intended use, or if these criteria 

no longer apply.

  Where development activities do not meet the conditions for recognition as an asset, any associated expenditure is treated 

as an expense in the period in which it is incurred

 A.8. Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

  Depreciation or amortization is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the 

management. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Assets  
Useful Life applied

(In Years)

Computers

Furniture and Fixtures - Owned Premises

Furniture and Fixtures - Leased Premises

Ofce Equipment

Plant and Equipments including Electrical installations

Computer Peripherals - on Use and Pay

Vehicles

Air Conditioners

Moulds, Dies & Patterns

Building

3.00

10.00

5.00

5.00

4.00

4.00

8.00

4.00

5.00

30.00

  Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Asset Amortization (In Years)

Computer Software – ERP Systems

Computer Software 

Technical Know-how

4.00

2.00

5.00

 A.9. Impairment of Assets

  At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable 

through continuing use.

  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of 

impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash ows that are independent from other assets, the Group 

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

  Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value, less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash ows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and risks specic to the asset, for which the estimates of future cash ows have not 

been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss as and when the carrying amount of 

an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

  Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to 

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) 

in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

 A.10. Foreign Currency Transactions

  The nancial statements of the Group are presented in INR, which is the functional currency of the Group and the 

presentation currency for the nancial statements. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate 

prevailing on the date of transaction.
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  At the end of each reporting period, all monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates 

prevailing as at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 

currency are not translated.

  The exchange difference arising on account of the difference between the rates prevailing on the date of transaction and 

on the date  of settlement, as also on translation of monetary items at the end of the year is recognized as income or 

expense, as the case may be, in the Statement of Prot and Loss for the year.

 A.11. Financial Instruments

  Financial assets and nancial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition or issue of nancial assets and nancial liabilities (other than nancial assets and nancial liabilities at fair 

value through prot or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of nancial asset 

or nancial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of nancial assets and nancial liabilities at fair 

value through prot and loss, are immediately recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

  Effective interest method

  The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a nancial instrument and of allocating 

interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash 

receipts or payments through the expected life of the nancial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

  a) Financial assets

   Financial assets  at amortised cost

   Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these nancial assets are held within a business 

model whose objective is to hold these assets, in order to collect contractual cash ows, and the contractual terms of 

the nancial asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding.

   Financial assets measured at fair value

   Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if these nancial assets are held 

within a business model, whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash ows, or to sell 

these nancial assets, and the contractual terms of the nancial asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   Financial assets not measured at amortised cost, or at fair value through other comprehensive income, are carried at 

fair value through prot or loss.

   Impairment of nancial assets

   The Group assesses, on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 

amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a signicant increase in 

credit risk.

   For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplied approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, 

which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

   Derecognition of nancial assets

   The Group derecognises a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the asset expire, or it 

transfers the nancial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

  b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

   Classication as debt or equity

   Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classied according to the substance of the 

contractual arrangements entered into and the denitions of a nancial liability and an equity instrument.

   Equity instruments

   An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of 

its liabilities. Equity is recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

   Financial Liabilities

   Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

   Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently 
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measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 

transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in 

accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

   Derecognition of nancial liabilities

   The Group derecognises nancial liabilities when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

 A.12. Employee Benets

  i. Short Term Employee Benets

   Short Term Employees Benets are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Prot 

and Loss of the year in which the related services is rendered.

  ii. Other long-term employee benet obligations

   Leave Encashment: Liability in respect of leave encashment as at the balance sheet date is determined based on 

actuarial valuation, by using the Projected Unit Credit Method and gains/losses for the year are recognized 

immediately in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

  iii. Post Employment Benets

   Provident Fund: The Group contributes monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are remitted to the 

Employee Provident Fund Commissioner ofce and are charged to the Statement of Prot and Loss on accrual basis.

   Gratuity: The Group provides for gratuity (a dened benet retirement plan) to all the eligible employees. The 

benet is in the form of lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, on death while in employment, or 

termination of employment for an amount equivalent to 15 days’ salary, payable for each completed year of service. 

Vesting occurs on completion of ve years of service. Liability in respect of gratuity as at the balance sheet date is 

determined on the basis of actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-measurement gains and 

losses of the net dened benet liability / (asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The 

service cost, net interest on the net dened benet liability / (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment 

costs and are recognized immediately in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

  iv. Employee Stock Options

   All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share based remuneration are measured at their fair 

values. These are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the share options awarded. Their value is 

appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, protability 

and sales growth targets).

   All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in the Statement of Prot and Loss, with a 

corresponding credit to Employee Stock Compensation Reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, 

the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of share options 

expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are 

expected to become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of 

share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates. Once vested, no adjustment is made to expense 

recognised in prior periods if, ultimately, fewer share options are exercised than originally estimated. Upon exercise 

of share options, the proceeds received (net of any directly attributable transaction costs) up to the nominal value of 

the shares issued are allocated to share capital with any excess being recorded as Securities Premium.

 A.13. Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part 

of the cost of those assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 

intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Prot and Loss in the period in 

which they are incurred.

 A.14. Earning Per Share

  In accordance with the Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per Share”, basic / diluted earnings per share is computed by taking the 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

 A.15. Taxation

  Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

  The tax currently payable is based on the taxable prot for the year. Taxable prot differs from net prot, as reported in the 

Statement of Prot and Loss, because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years 
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and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax 

rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

  Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prot, and is 

accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 

temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses are 

only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable prots will be available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilised.

  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 

liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 

offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

  Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Prot and Loss, except when they 

relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also 

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

  Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives rise to future economic benets 

in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the 

Group will pay normal income tax during the specied period. Accordingly, MAT entitlement is recognised as an asset in 

the Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benet associated 

with it will fructify. Such asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written 

down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence for the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during 

the specied period.

 A.16. Warranty Cost

  The Group accrues the estimated cost of warranties at the time when the revenue is recognised. The accruals are based on 

the Group’s historical experience of material usage and service delivery cost.

 A.17. Provisions

  Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

a past event, which is expected to result in an outow of resources embodying economic benets which can be reliably 

estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 

balance sheet date. When appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

  Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from a Group’s actions where:

  (a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufciently specic current statement, the Group 

has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

  (b) as a result, the Group has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those 

responsibilities.

 A.18. Leases

  The Group determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulllment of a transaction is 

dependent on the use of a specic asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Group, in 

return for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is accounted for either as nance 

or operating lease.

  Leases are classied as nance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classied as operating leases.

  Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Prot and Loss on a straight line basis, over the 

term of the relevant lease, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 

benets from the leased asset are consumed.

 A.19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with bank, and other short term highly liquid 

investments, with original maturities of 3 months or less.
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 As at As at
Particulars Note 

 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
  

Equity as per previous IGAAP   410.90   307.03

Add / (Less) : Adjustments on transition to Ind AS

Warranty provision restatement  e 1.74 -

Depreciation on PPE and Intangible assets  0.02   -

Deferred tax impact  f 4.46 0.38

Revenue Deferment for extended warranty obligations a (3.83) -

Fair Valuation of Deposits impact  d (0.03) -

Adjustments (Total)   2.36 0.38

Equity as per Ind AS   413.26 307.41

 B. Explanation of Transition to Ind AS

 B.1. Exemptions availed by the Group

  Ind AS 101 “First time adoption of Indian accounting standards “permits companies adopting Ind AS for the rst time to 

avail of certain exemptions from the full retrospective application of Ind AS in the transition period. The Group, on 

transition to Ind AS, has availed the following key exemptions:

  a) Property, plant and equipment

   The Group has elected to adopt previous GAAP carrying value of its Property, Plant and Equipment as deemed cost 

on date of transition

  b) Intangible assets

   The Group has elected to treat the carrying value as deemed cost for all items of intangible assets.

  c) Investment in subsidiary

   The Group has elected to take the carrying amount of all its investments in its subsidiaries as at April 1, 2016, as its 

deemed cost under Ind AS.

  d) Share based payments

   The Group has elected to apply the requirements of Ind AS 102, retrospectively, for all the options granted by the 

Group

 B.2. Exceptions applicable to Group

  Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian accounting standarsds" contains certain exceptions that prohibit full 

retrospective application of Ind AS in the transition period. From amongst these exceptions, the one applicable to the 

Group are as follows:

  a) De-recognition of nancial assets and liabilities

   The Group has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 (Financial Instruments) prospectively 

from the date of transition to Ind AS.

  b) Classication and measurement of nancial assets

   The Group has classied the nancial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 (Financial Instruments) on the basis of 

facts and circumstances that existed as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

 B.3. Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

  i) Equity Reconciliation

(` in Mn)
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  ii) Total Comprehensive Income Reconciliation

(` in Mn)

 For the year ended
Particulars Note 

 March 31, 2017
  

Net Prot as per previous IGAAP   2.79

Add / (Less) : Adjustments on transition to Ind AS

Revenue Deferment for extended warranty obligations a  (3.83)

Stock option expense impact due to fair valuation b  (0.73)

Acturial Gain recognised in Other comprehensive income c  (0.21)

Depreciation on PPE and Intangible assets   0.02 

Advance Rent expensed off due to fair valuation of deposits d  (0.65)

Interest income on Rent deposits due to fair valuation  d  0.62 

Warranty provision restatement  e  1.74 

Deferred tax Impact  f  4.14 

Adjustments (Total)    1.10 

Net Prot as per Ind AS    3.89

Other Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS   0.14 

Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS   4.03

Notes:

a) The Group provides extended warranty for its products. Consequent to adoption of Ind AS, the Group has derecognised the 

revenue pertaining to the extended warranty and spread on a straignt line basis over the period extended warranty.

b) The amount of stock options expense impact represents the impact of change in valuation of stock options from the 

erstwhile intrinsic value method under IGAAP to the fair value method under Ind AS.

c) The Group has recognised all actuarial gains and losses on post retirement dened benet schemes in other comprehensive 

income. Deferred taxes pertaining to these losses have also been recognised in other comprehensive income.

d) Advance rent expense and Interest income on rent deposits is due to adoption of fair valuation for the Rent Deposits paid by 

the Group.

e) Warranty provision restatement is due to deferment of revenue for the extended warranty on products sold by the Group. 

Since the provision was made factoring the extended warranty and with the revenue being deferred and recognised over 

the period of extended warranty, the provision pertaining to the extended warranty period has been reversed.

f) The Group has recognised deferred tax asset on carried forward tax losses. The subsidiary company has incurred losses in the 

last two nancial years in initial phase of the its business of document management solutions and GST services The Group 

has concluded that the deferred tax asset will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the 

business plans for future years as the taxable losses can be carried forward for a period of 8 years as per the applicable 

Income Tax Law.
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B. Other Equity

  Reserves and Surplus

 Particulars Capital General Securities  Stock  Retained 
  Reserve Reserve Premium Options Earnings Total
   Reserve  Outstanding

Opening Balance at April 1, 2016  3,13,27,459   83,202   66,75,000   21,88,176   3,70,94,247   7,73,68,084 

Prot for the year      38,97,488   38,97,488 

Premium on Issue of shares under
preferential allotment    8,00,00,000     8,00,00,000 

Transfer to General Reserve   9,08,669    (9,08,669)   -   

Transfer from Stock Options Outstanding a/c   5,78,612   (5,78,612)  -

Other Comprehensive Income for the
year net of taxes      1,37,920   1,37,920 

Employee stock options expense     10,52,297    10,52,297 

Closing Balance as at March 31, 2017  3,13,27,459   9,91,871   8,72,53,612   17,53,192   4,11,29,655   16,24,55,789 

Opening Balance at April 1, 2017  3,13,27,459   9,91,871   8,72,53,612   17,53,192   4,11,29,655   16,24,55,789 

Share Issue Expenses      (3,80,000)  (3,80,000)

Prot for the year      (1,47,25,503)  (1,47,25,503)

Other Comprehensive Income for the
year net of taxes      56,995   56,995 

Transfer to General Reserve   25,234    (25,234)   -   

Transfer from Stock Options Outstanding a/c    3,50,456   (3,50,456)   -   

Employee stock options expense     73,54,681    73,54,681 

Closing Balance as at March 31, 2018  3,13,27,459   10,17,105   8,76,04,068   87,32,183   2,60,81,147   15,47,61,962

a) Capital Reserve – This represents the value of bargain purchase gain upon acquisition and is not freely available for distribution

b) Retained earnings / General reserve – These are free reserves that are available for distribution of dividends. Retained earnings comprises 

of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes.

c) Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in 

accordance with the provision of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) Share option outstanding account - The share option outstanding account is used to recognize the value of equity-settled sharebased 

payments provided to employees, including key management personnel.

e) Other Comprehensive Income: Changes in the fair value of nancial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income and actuarial gains and losses on dened benet plans are recognized in other comprehensive income (net of taxes), and 

presented within equity as other comprehensive income.

 Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 25,08,02,545 23,00,40,545

Changes in equity share capital during the year 4,29,000 2,07,62,000

Balance at the end of the reporting period 25,12,31,545 25,08,02,545

WeP Solutions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity Share Capital
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Note 3: Intangible Assets

  Computer  
Computer Capital work

 Particulars Software - Total 
 Software  in progress

   ERP System

Year ended March 31, 2017

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016  66,53,622 1,61,233 68,14,855 -

Additions  25,09,847   -     25,09,847

Disposals  - - -

Closing gross carrying amount  91,63,469 1,61,233 93,24,702 -

Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciation charge during the year  25,33,138 1,41,891 26,75,029

Disposals  - - -

Closing accumulated depreciation  25,33,138 1,41,891 26,75,029

Net carrying amount  66,30,331 19,342 66,49,673 -

Year ended March 31, 2018

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  91,63,469 1,61,233 93,24,702 -

Additions  26,19,895 42,31,989 68,51,884

Disposals  - - -

Adjustments  - - -

Closing gross carrying amount  1,17,83,364 43,93,222 1,61,76,586 -

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  25,33,138 1,41,891 26,75,029

Additions  37,04,702 3,72,007 40,76,709

Disposals  - - -

Adjustments  - - -

Closing accumulated depreciation  62,37,840 5,13,898 67,51,738

Net carrying amount  55,45,524 38,79,324 94,24,848 -

Note: a) Computer Software includes Capital Development Costs being an internally generated intangible asset
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Note 4: Financial Assets

4 (a) Trade Receivables

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Trade Receivables 20,36,43,544   18,60,62,129   21,80,62,186

Allowance for Doubtful Debts (7,11,45,611) (6,76,69,721) (6,63,04,607)

Total Receivables 13,24,97,933 11,83,92,408 15,17,57,579

Current Portion 13,24,97,933 11,83,92,408 15,17,57,579

Non-Current Portion - - -

 Break-up of Security Details

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Outstanding for More than Six Months from the due date

Secured, considered good  -     -     -

Unsecured, considered good  67,69,953   34,76,919   77,86,010

Doubtful  7,01,42,736   6,76,69,721   6,63,04,607

  7,69,12,689   7,11,46,640   7,40,90,617

Allowance for doubtful debts  (7,01,42,736)  (6,76,69,721)  (6,63,04,607)

Sub total  67,69,953   34,76,919   77,86,010

Other Receivables

Secured, considered good  -     -     -

Unsecured, considered good  12,67,30,855   11,49,15,489   14,39,71,569

Doubtful  -     -     -

  12,67,30,855   11,49,15,489   14,39,71,569

Allowance for doubtful debts  (10,02,875)  -     -

Sub total  12,57,27,980   11,49,15,489   14,39,71,569

Total Trade Receivables  13,24,97,933   11,83,92,408   15,17,57,579

4 (b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Balances with Banks

 - in current accounts  4,16,472   18,06,605   14,11,810

Cash on hand  -     -     39,173

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  4,16,472   18,06,605   14,50,983



105

4 (c) Other Financial Assets

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Non Current

Security Deposits  1,20,63,085   1,16,76,290   1,46,03,887

Total Other Financial Assets - Non Current  1,20,63,085   1,16,76,290   1,46,03,887

Current

Deposits  13,69,660   14,03,032   22,78,927

Total Other Financial Assets - Current  13,69,660   14,03,032   22,78,927

4 (d) Other Bank Balances

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Balance in Unclaimed Dividend Accounts with Banks  15,17,540   15,72,700   16,09,436

Total Other Bank Balances  15,17,540   15,72,700   16,09,436

Note 5: Deferred Tax Assets

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Tax losses  1,24,38,335   92,34,998   21,34,431

Dened Benet obligations & allowance on payment basis  47,56,278   42,09,205   45,06,688

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables  2,35,40,540   2,23,73,640   2,19,16,574

Others  16,27,912   14,30,089   2,67,757

Total Deferred Tax Assets  4,23,63,065   3,72,47,932   2,88,25,450

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment  1,29,06,157   1,80,69,008   68,91,038

  1,29,06,157   1,80,69,008   68,91,038

Net Deferred Tax Assets  2,94,56,908   1,91,78,924   2,19,34,412

Note 6: Other Non Current Assets

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Margin money deposits with bank  8,18,049   6,65,695   6,16,574

Interest accrued on margin money deposits with bank  80,060   63,881   51,974

Taxes / Refunds recoverable  4,57,43,349   4,33,62,727   3,79,91,926

Total Other Non-Current Assets  4,66,41,458   4,40,92,303   3,86,60,474
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Note 7: Inventories

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Raw Materials

  - In Stock  3,22,02,624   2,56,35,695   2,48,35,221

  - In Transit  -     -     -

Work-in-progress  -     1,25,91,178   1,04,69,792

Finished goods

  - In Stock  23,82,105   64,01,076   1,96,35,055

  - In Transit  -     16,868   62,069

Traded goods

  - In Stock  2,21,43,621   3,71,85,333   6,92,76,779

  - In Transit  -     -     16,40,510

Spares and Consumables

  - In Stock  6,09,37,004   5,20,92,689   7,06,79,641

  - In Transit  2,217   -     -

Total Inventories  11,76,67,571   13,39,22,839   19,65,99,067

Note 8: Other Current Assets

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Prepayments  91,45,614   78,55,167   48,46,192

Balance with Excise / Customs / GST input credit  98,33,560   25,47,650   26,34,897

Others  32,852   76,725   500

Total Other Current Assets  1,90,12,026   1,04,79,542   74,81,589

Note 9(a): Equity Share Capital

  Authorised Equity Share capital

 Particulars Number of shares Amount

As at April 1, 2016 3,00,00,000   30,00,00,000

Increase during the year - -

As at March 31, 2017 3,00,00,000 30,00,00,000

Increase during the year - -

As at March 31, 2018 3,00,00,000 30,00,00,000
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 i) Movements in Equity Share Capital 

 Particulars Number of shares Amount

As at April 1, 2016 2,30,04,055 23,00,40,545

Execrise of options - proceeds received 76,200 7,62,000

Preferential Issue 20,00,000 2,00,00,000

As at March 31, 2017 2,50,80,255 25,08,02,545

Execrise of options - proceeds received 42,900 4,29,000

As at March 31, 2018 2,51,23,155 25,12,31,545

Terms and rights attached to equity shares:

Equity shares have a par value of INR 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the 

company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one 

vote.

Shares reserved for issue under options:

Information relating to ESOP plans of the company, including details of the options issued, exercised and lapsed during the nancial year and 

options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, is set out in Note 24.

Preferential Issue: On February 6, 2017, the company allotted 20,00,000 equity shares at a price of INR 50 per share, on a preferential basis 

after the same was duly approved by the members 

 ii) Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the Shares:

 As at As at
Name of shareholder 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

RNAWEP Investments Private Limited

No of Shares  32,60,403   32,60,403

% Holding 12.98% 13.00%

Ram N Agarwal

No of Shares  30,05,056   30,05,056

% Holding 11.96% 11.98%

WeP Peripherals Limited

No of Shares  20,24,994   20,24,994

% Holding 8.06% 8.07%

Wipro Limited

No of Shares  18,36,000   18,36,000

% Holding 7.31% 7.32%

Sharad Kanayalal Shah

No of Shares  14,12,035   14,12,035

% Holding 5.62% 5.63%

Dipak Kanayalal Shah

No of Shares  10,19,450   12,60,553

% Holding 4.06% 5.03%

 iii) Aggregate number of Shares issued for consideration other than cash

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Shares issued as consideration for acquisition of business 2,22,13,645 2,22,13,645
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 Note 9(b): Reserves and Surplus

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     (1,76,974)

Securities Premium Reserve  8,76,04,068   8,72,53,612   66,75,000

Share options outstanding account  87,32,183   17,53,192   21,88,176

Capital Reserve  3,13,27,459   3,13,27,459   3,13,27,459

General Reserve  10,17,105   9,91,871   83,202

Retained earnings  2,60,81,147   4,11,29,655   3,72,71,221

Total Reserves and Surplus  15,47,61,962   16,24,55,789   7,73,68,084

 i) Securities Premium Reserve

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  8,72,53,612   66,75,000

Preferential Issue  -     8,00,00,000

Exercise of Options  3,50,456   5,78,612

Closing Balance  8,76,04,068   8,72,53,612

 ii) Share Options Outstanding Account

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  17,53,192   21,88,176

Employee stock options expense  73,54,681   10,52,297

Transfer to Securities Premium on exercise of options  (3,50,456)  (5,78,612)

Transfer to General Reserve  (25,234)  (9,08,669)

Closing Balance  87,32,183   17,53,192

 iii) Capital Reserve

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  3,13,27,459   3,13,27,459

Closing Balance  3,13,27,459   3,13,27,459

 iv) General Reserve

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  9,91,871   83,202

Transfer from Stock options outstanding  25,234   9,08,669

Closing Balance  10,17,105   9,91,871
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 v) Retained Earnings

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  4,11,29,655   3,70,94,247

Net prot for the period  (1,47,25,503)  38,97,488

Share Issue expenses  (3,80,000)

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial Gains / (Losses) net of taxes  56,995   1,37,920

Closing Balance  2,60,81,147   4,11,29,655

 Note 9(c): Others

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Consideration received on Issue of Warrants pending conversion  1,50,00,000 -

Closing Balance  1,50,00,000 -

Note:

On December 28, 2017, the company granted 10,00,000 warrants at a price of INR 60 per warrant, on a preferential basis after the same was 

duly approved by the members. The company received the initial consideration of 25% i.e. Rs, 1,50,00,000/- and the same has been classied 

as other Equity. The allottee has a period of 18 months from the date of allottment to convert the warrants into Equity shares, failing which the 

initial amount paid shall be forfeited as per the terms of the allotment and regulations as applicable.

 Note 10: Financial Liabilities

 Note 10(a): Current Borrowings

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Loans Repayable on Demand

Secured

From Banks

Cash Credit Account  7,65,83,473   3,58,05,652   12,23,34,009

Total Current Borrowings  7,65,83,473   3,58,05,652   12,23,34,009

i) Cash credit facility is secured by hypothecation of current assets of the company

 Note 10(b): Trade Payables

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Current

Trade payables  10,37,08,061   11,77,85,447   14,03,00,481

Total Trade Payables  10,37,08,061   11,77,85,447   14,03,00,481

 Note 10(c): Other Financial Liabilities

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Current

Customer and Dealer Deposits  1,99,08,055   1,71,23,708   1,84,88,298

Expenses payable  3,55,32,675   3,86,73,253   6,00,59,282

Total Other Current Financial Liabilities  5,54,40,730   5,57,96,961   7,85,47,580
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 Note 11: Provisions

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Non Current

Employee Benets (Refer Note 23)  1,11,84,124   64,75,126   75,99,784

Warranty expenses (Refer Note 27)  15,00,442   76,47,218   1,38,80,464

Total Non Current Provisions  1,26,84,566   1,41,22,344   2,14,80,248

Current

Employee Benets (Refer Note 23)  7,20,944   9,95,112   18,63,337

Warranty expenses (Refer Note 27)  11,99,002   35,57,628   50,92,011

Total Current Provisions  19,19,946   45,52,740   69,55,348

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Income received in advance  1,03,23,013   43,85,809   23,91,032

Unclaimed Dividend  15,17,540   15,72,700   16,09,436

Advance from customers  2,98,481   19,10,721   1,85,368

Statutory payables  41,22,357   35,21,136   38,01,707

Other payables  61,72,200   45,45,202   12,44,925

Total Other Current Liabilities  2,24,33,591   1,59,35,568   92,32,468

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Sale of Products  38,28,28,133   39,38,33,139

Sale of Services  42,40,72,956   41,16,22,706

Other Operating Revenue  3,68,263   4,61,381

Total Revenue from Operations  80,72,69,352   80,59,17,226

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Interest on Deposits with banks  4,46,181   63,784

Other Interest   5,68,369   6,30,178

Exchange Gain  10,87,928   -

Prot on sale of Investments  (Net)  1,90,209   -

Miscellaneous Income  24,16,750   18,44,602

Credit balances / Provision no longer required written back  21,10,417   61,40,001

Total Other Income  68,19,854   86,78,565

 Note 12: Other Current Liabilities

 Note 13: Revenue from Operations

 Note 14: Other Income
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  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Raw materials / Spares and consumables at the beginning of the year  7,77,28,385   9,55,14,862

Add: Purchases during the year  25,79,39,162   24,22,92,282

Less: Closing stocks  9,31,41,845   7,77,28,385

Cost of Material Consumed  24,25,25,702   26,00,78,759

Excise Duty paid  60,97,512   2,41,08,769

Total Cost of Material Consumed  24,86,23,214   28,41,87,528

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Purchases of stock-in-trade   19,23,11,187   21,45,96,886

Less :- Capitalised during the year  9,75,98,753   13,50,09,943

Total Purchase of Stock-in-Trade  9,47,12,434   7,95,86,943

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Stock

Work-in-progress  1,25,91,178   1,04,69,792

Finished goods  64,17,944   1,96,97,124

Traded goods  3,71,85,333   7,09,17,289

Total Opening Stock  5,61,94,455   10,10,84,205

Closing Stock

Work-in-progress  -     1,25,91,178

Finished goods  23,82,105   64,17,944

Traded goods  2,21,43,621   3,71,85,333

Total Closing Stock  2,45,25,726   5,61,94,455

Total changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress, Stock-in-Trade
and Finished Goods  3,16,68,729   4,48,89,750

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus  11,07,10,860   8,66,89,884

Gratuity and Leave encashment expense  53,01,765   18,05,043

Employee share-based payment expense  73,54,681   10,52,297

Contribution to provident and other fund  51,69,769   41,43,624

Staff welfare expenses  69,89,751   86,74,492

Total Employee Benet Expense  13,55,26,826   10,23,65,340

 Note 15: Cost of Materials Consumed

 Note 16: Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

 Note 17: Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress, Stock-in-Trade and Finished Goods

 Note 18: Employee Benet Expenses
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  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Power and fuel  62,98,482   59,61,823

Insurance  8,91,121   8,44,421

Repairs & Maintenance  69,03,878   57,43,116

Rent  2,43,50,003   2,45,39,816

Rates and taxes  42,82,220   62,27,468

Warranty Expenses  18,05,687   11,22,380

Carriage and Freight outwards  2,10,65,759   2,59,85,128

Commission on sales  34,75,007   76,66,365

Support Charges  1,61,33,334   2,11,03,252

Auditors' Remuneration

  for Audit fees  6,25,000   7,01,250

  for Taxation matters  1,00,000   57,500

  for Reimbursement of expenses  1,66,507   1,07,920

Advertisement and sales promotion  1,65,02,387   59,45,849

Directors' Commission and Sitting fees  13,50,000   7,10,000

Loss on disposal of assets  16,54,250   21,43,410

Travelling and Conveyance  1,62,06,083   1,67,55,795

Communication Expenses  90,50,273   89,10,734

Legal and Professional charges  1,00,37,081   76,68,413

Manpower support service charges  5,72,63,612   5,39,40,081

Ofce Maintenance  58,91,672   43,33,404

Cloud Expenses  37,83,551   -

Provision for doubtful debts / advances  35,52,615   13,65,114

Bad Debts Write off  3,07,405   65,354

Exchange Differences (Net)  -     2,31,885

Recruitment Expenses  23,96,560   11,67,461

Miscellaneous expenses  18,30,108   18,86,017

Total Other Expenses  21,59,22,595   20,51,83,956

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Interest Expenses  75,37,795   1,04,24,456

Other Borrowing costs  19,23,317   15,38,563

Total Finance Costs  94,61,112   1,19,63,019

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  9,21,91,218   7,71,59,376

Amortisation of intangible assets  40,76,709   26,75,029

Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  9,62,67,927   7,98,34,405

 Note 19: Other Expenses

 Note 20: Finance Costs

 Note 21: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
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 Name of Related Party Relationship

Mr. Ram Narayan Agarwal  Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Suresh C Senapaty Subsidiary Company - Director

Mr. B R Ganesh* Small Shareholders & Independent Director

Mr. G H Visweswara Independent Director

Mr. Sudhir Prakash Independent Director

Dr. A L Rao Non-executive Director

Mr. H V Gowthama Independent Director

Ms. Mythily Ramesh Independent Director

Ms. Prashee Agarwal Non - executive Director

Mr Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director

Cimplyve Corporate Secretarial Services Private Limited Company in which Director is Interested

WeP Digital Services Limited Subsidiary Company (100% owned)
(formerly eRM Solutions Private Limited)

WeP Solutions India Limited Promoter Group

WeP Peripherals Limited Promoter

* Director till September 22, 2017

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Remuneration to Mr. Ram N Agarwal - 5,06,497

   WeP Peripherals Limited

 Transactions For the year ended For the year ended
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Purchase of Goods and Services (excluding taxes) 85,94,300 -

   Cimplyve Corporate Secreterial
  Services Private Limited

Transactions 
 For the year ended For the year ended

 
 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Sale of Services  47,915   -

 Note 23: Employee Benet Plans

 The Company provides to its employees following retirement benets:

 i) Gratuity

 ii) Leave Accrual

  Leave Accrual: The Company allows accumulation / encashment of leave. Such accumulation can be utilized by 

obtaining leave in the subsequent period employment or encashment at the time of separation. The obligation as on 

the balance sheet date is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

  Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who 

are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 

retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportationately for 15 days 

 Note 22: Related Party Transactions

 A) List of related parties

 B) Transactions with Key Management Personnel

 C) Transactions with other related parties
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salary for each completed year of service. The company accounts for gratuity benets payable in the future based on the 

actuarial valuation. The company is exposed to actuarial risk with respect to this plan

  The following table sets out the amounts recognised in the nancial statements for Gratuity

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00%

Discount Rate (per annum) 7.80% 7.00%

Mortality India Assured India Assured 
 Lives Mortality Lives Mortality 
 (2006-2008) (2006-2008)

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Present value of Funded dened benet obligation  65,19,416   49,19,857

Fair value of plan assets   (23,52,711)  (24,55,406)

Present value of unfunded obligations   -     -

 Net Liability  41,66,705   24,64,451

Current  -     -

Non - current   41,66,705   24,64,451

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current Service Cost  14,35,583   6,78,095

Interest on Dened Benet Obligation  1,80,353   3,29,780

Past Service cost  3,09,495   -

 Total 19,25,431 10,07,875

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening amount recognised in OCI outside prot and loss account  (29,071)  1,76,974

Remeasurements during the period due to

    Changes in nancial assumptions  (3,08,543)  3,11,108

    Experience adjustments  1,82,315   (4,85,089)

    Actual return on plan assets less interst on plan assets  36,380   (32,064)

Closing amount recognised in OCI outside prot and loss account  (1,18,919)  (29,071)

 Principal Actuarial Assumptions

 Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows

 Amount reected in the P&L account is as follows

 Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income
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 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a) Change in Dened Benet Obligation

 Opening Dened Benet Obligation  49,19,857   50,89,352

 Current Service Cost  14,35,583   6,78,095 

 Past service cost  3,09,495   -   

 Interest on Dened Benet Obligation  3,52,109   3,58,168 

 Actuarial Losses / (Gain)

 Remeasurements due to:

 - Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions  (3,08,543)  3,11,108 

 - Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes  1,82,315   (4,85,089)

 Benets Paid  (3,71,400)  (10,31,777)

 Acquisition / Transfer adjustment for Inter group transfer  -     -

 Closing Dened Benet Obligation 65,19,416   49,19,857

b) Change in Fair Value of Assets

 Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  24,55,406   4,67,093

 Interest on plan assets  1,71,756   28,388 

 Remeasurements due to:

 Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets   32,064

 Contribution by Employer  96,949   29,59,638 

 Benet Paid  (3,71,400)  (10,31,777)

 Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets  23,52,711   24,55,406

c) Change in Net Liability / (asset)

 Opening net dened benet liability / (asset) 24,64,451 46,22,259

 Expense charged to prot & loss account 19,25,431 10,07,875

 Amount recognised outside prot & loss account (89,848) (2,06,045)

 Contribution by Employer  (96,949) (29,59,638)

 Impact of liability assumed or (settled) on account of inter group transfer - -

 Closing net dened benet liability / (asset) 42,03,085 24,64,451

 Particulars ESOP 2011 ESOP 2016

th ndDate of Shareholders' approval  27  Sep 2011   22  Sep 2016

Total number of options approved under the scheme  6,00,000   6,00,000

Vesting Schedule

    On completion of 12 months from the date of grant of Options  30% vesting   30% vesting

    On completion of 24 months from the date of grant of Options  30% vesting   30% vesting

    On completion of 36 months from the date of grant of Options  40% vesting   40% vesting

Exercise Price ` 10 per share   ` 10 per share

Exercise Period  5 years from the 5 years from the
  date of vesting date of vesting

Option movements during the year

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,92,300   NIL

Options granted during the year  93,000   1,32,000

Options Lapsed during the year  17,000   NIL

 Note 24: Employees Stock Option Plan

 The Company, from time to time, provides share based payments to its employees. These payments are provided in the form of 

stock options that can be exercised once the employee has completed specied service term with the Company. All share based 

employee remuneration would be settled in equity. The details of Stock options are provided below.

 Reconciliation statement
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 Particulars ESOP 2011 ESOP 2016

Options vested and available for exercise  2,86,300   NIL

Options exercised during the year  42,900   NIL

Variations of terms of options  None   None

Money realised by exercise of options(Rs.)  4,29,000   NIL

Total number of options in force as at the end of the year  4,25,400   1,32,000

          Vested and available for exercise  1,67,200   NIL

          Unvested  2,58,200   1,32,000

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,92,300 5,04,000

Options granted during the year  2,25,000 2,48,000

Options Lapsed during the year  17,000 2,83,500

Options vested and available for exercise  2,86,300   80,700

Options exercised during the year  42,900 76,200

Total number of options in force as at the end of the year 5,57,400 3,92,300

 Particulars November 20, 2017

Current Market Price  50.05 

Exercise Price  10.00 

Weighted average volatility rate 154.1%

Dividend Payouts 5.00%

Risk free rate 7.05%

Expected life of the option  6 to 8 years

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a. Amount due on account of suppliers as at the end of the accounting year 7,10,223 NIL

b. Interest paid during the year;  NIL   NIL

c. Interest payable at the end of the year;  NIL   NIL

d. Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year;
 has not been provided.  NIL NIL

 The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identied as "Micro, Small and Medium" 

enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company

 Summary of the status of Options

 Fair Valuation of Options

 The fair value of each option is estimated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. The following key assumptions are 

used for valuation:

 Note 25: Disclosures of dues / payments to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises to the extent such enterprises are 

identied by the company:
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 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Basic

Prot / (Loss) after tax as per accounts  (1,47,25,503) 38,97,488

Number of Shares issued (Weighted average no.)  2,51,00,743 2,33,31,499

Earning Per Share (of nominal value  of equity share of Rs.10/- each) (0.59) 0.17

Diluted

Prot / (Loss) after tax as per accounts  (1,47,25,503) 38,97,488

Number of Shares issued (Weighted average no.)  2,57,68,691 2,35,01,678

Earning Per Share (of nominal value  of equity share of Rs.10/- each) (0.57) 0.17

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 2,51,00,743   2,33,31,499
calculating basic earning per share

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share  

Stock options  4,13,153 1,70,179

Convertible Warrants  2,54,795 -

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator 2,57,68,691 2,35,01,678
in calculating diluted earning per share  

Movement in provision during the nancial year Warranty Provision

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Provision  1,12,04,846 1,89,72,475

Additions during the year  26,99,444 1,29,46,461

Reversal due to revenue deferment on extended warranty impact - 17,41,615

Reversal during the year  1,12,04,846 1,89,72,475

Closing Provision  26,99,444 1,12,04,846

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Disputed Tax demands and other matters 6,11,61,777 5,92,52,472

Total  6,11,61,777 5,92,52,472

 Note 27: Warranty

The Company generally offers 6 to 12 months warranties for its products. Management estimates the related 

provision for future warranty claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent trends that 

might suggest that past cost information may differ from future claims. Provision is made for estimated warranty 

claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of the reporting period.

 Note 26: Earning Per Share(EPS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33

 Calculation of Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

 Note 28: Contingent Liabilities
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Note 30: Financial Instruments

 This section gives an overview of the signicance of nancial instruments for the Company and provided additional 

information on balance sheet terms that contain nancial instruments.

 The details of signicant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis 

on which income and expense are recognised, in respect of each class of nancial asset, nancial liability and equity 

instrument are disclosed in Note 1 to the nancial statements.

i) Classication of Financial Assets and Liabilities

  All nancial assets and nancial liabilities are valued at amortised cost.

 ii) Fair Value Heirarchy

  There are no nancial asset or liabilities of the Company, which, after their initial recognition, have been fair valued 

either during the year or in the previous year.

 iii) Financial Risk Management Policies and Objectives

  The Company, in the course of its business, is exposed to a variety of nancial risks, viz., market risk, credit risk and 

liquidity risk which can adversely impact the nancial performance. The Company's endeavour is to foresee the 

unrpredictability of nancial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on its nancial performance. The 

Company has a risk management policy that which not only covers the foreign exchange risk but also other risks such as 

interest rate risk and credit risk which are associated with nancial assets and liabilities.

  A. Market Risk

   Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash ows that may result 

from a change in the price of nancial instrument. The value of a nancial instrument may change as a result of 

changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity price uctuations, liquidity and other market 

changes. Future specic market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

  B. Foreign currency exchange rate risk

   The uctuations in foreign currency exchange rate may have a potential impact on the statement of prot and loss 

and equity. This arises from transactions entered. into foreign currency and assets/liabilities which are 

denomindated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

   The Company imports raw materials, traded goods, consumables etc and such transactions are denominated in US 

Dollars. The Company does not take major exposure in any other foreign currency. The group also exports services 

which are billed in US dollars.The Company has a hedging policy approved and reviewed by the Board of Directors to 

mitigate its risks. Details of foreign currency exposure in USD are as follows:

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade Receivables (Amount in INR)  2,32,287   3,22,506

Trade Receivables (Amount in USD)  3,571 4,973

Trade Payables (Amount in INR)  1,67,48,919 3,26,50,757

Trade Payables (Amount in USD)  2,57,501 5,03,432

  B. Credit risk

   Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss arising from counter party failure to repay or service debt according to the 

contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk covers both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of 

creditworthiness as well as concentration risks.

   Trade receivables constitute the nancial instruments that are exposed to credit risk. The Company's policy is to deal 

only with creditworthy counterparts. The Company management considers that all the nancial assets that are not 

impaired for each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality, including those that are past due. 

None of the Company nancial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

   The Company's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of nancial assets recognised at the balance 

sheet date.
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Note 31: Additional Information Pursuant to the Provisions of Part II of Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013.

A) Value of Imports on CIF basis

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Raw material, Stock in trade, spares and consumables 15,91,85,451 17,81,99,749

B) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Travelling  1,38,159 50,951

Repair Charges  - 3,65,640

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Indigenous-

Consumption during the year  17,65,11,704 14,25,29,913

% of total consumption  73% 55%

Imported-

Consumption during the year  6,60,13,998 11,77,18,057

% of total consumption  27% 45%

Total  24,25,25,702 26,00,78,759

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Export of Goods  35,13,498 36,37,892

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018

C) Material consumption details

D) Earning in Foreign Currency
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Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS nancial statements of WeP Solutions Limited (‘the Company’), which

comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Prot and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the

Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the signicant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone Ind AS nancial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the nancial

position, nancial performance including other comprehensive income, cash ows and changes in equity of the Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued  thereunder.

3. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS

nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS nancial statements based on our audit.

5. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to

be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

6. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specied under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the standalone Ind AS nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

7. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone Ind

AS nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers internal nancial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS

nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting

estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS nancial

statements.

8. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

standalone Ind AS nancial statements.

Opinion

9. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS

nancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the nancial position of the Company as at

March 31, 2018, and its nancial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash ows and the changes in equity

for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specied in the

paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of WeP Solutions Limited



122

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books;

(c) the Balance sheet, the Statement of Prot and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of changes in equity

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specied under

Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, taken on record by  the  Board

of  Directors,  none  of  the  directors  is  disqualied  as  on  March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of

Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the Company and the operating

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure “B”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by

the Company.

For N.M.Raiji & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number: 108296W

Vinay D. Balse

Place: Camp Bengaluru Partner

Date: May 19, 2018 Membership Number: 39434
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE

ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WeP SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading

of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

i. (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Fixed

Assets. 

(b) In accordance with the phased programme for verication of xed assets, certain items of xed assets were physically veried

by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verication.

(c) Title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii. Stocks of inventories have been physically veried during the year by the management.  The Company has a perpetual inventory

system. In our opinion, the frequency of such verication is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verication between the

physical stock and the book stock were not material in relation to the operations of the Company and have been properly dealt

with in the books of account.

iii. In respect of a loan given by the Company during the year, to its 100% subsidiary:

(a) the terms and conditions of the loan are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest;

(b) the schedule of repayment has presently not been stipulated;

(c) In the absence of repayment schedule there are presently no overdue amounts.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of

section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account, the

Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. Accordingly, the requirements of clause (v) of para 3 of

the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the rules made by the central

government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and of the opinion that prima

facie, the prescribed accounts have been made and maintained.

vii. (a)   According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account, the

Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State 

Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax, cess and any other dues, during the 

year, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, following are the dues of Income-tax, Sales-tax, Excise Duty and

Service Tax which have not been deposited on account of disputes with the related authorities:

Sl. 
No

Nature
of the statue

Forum where
dispute is Pending

Financial year to
which the matter pertains

Amount (`)

1 Service Tax CESTAT, Bengaluru 2010-11 to 2013-14 58,129,154

2 VAT Commissioner of Sales Tax 2012-13 370,798

3 VAT Commissioner of Sales Tax 2013-14 752,522

Grand Total 5,92,52,474

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of

dues to nancial institutions or banks. The Company does not have any outstanding debentures.

ix. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer during the year. The Company has not

availed of any term loans.
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x. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on or by 

the Company was noticed or reported during the year.

xi. Managerial remuneration paid for the year 2017-18 is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 

section 197, read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

xii. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, clause (xii) of para 3 of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company.

xiii. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with 

related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, and corresponding details have been 

disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by the accounting standards.

xiv. During the year the Company has made a preferential allotment of 10,00,000 convertible warrants at Rs.60 each. The Company 

has realized upfront consideration of 25% on allotment of warrants. The Company has not issued fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year

xv. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Consequently, the requirement under 

clause (xv) of para 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934.

 For N.M.Raiji & Co.

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm’s Registration Number: 108296W

 Vinay D. Balse

Place: Camp Bengaluru Partner

Date: May 19, 2018 Membership Number: 39434
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i)

of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of WeP Solutions Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 

2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls based on the internal control 

over nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India (‘ICAI’). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding 

of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal nancial controls over nancial reporting based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 

Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

nancial controls over nancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal nancial controls system over 

nancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting included obtaining 

an understanding of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS nancial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company’s internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect the transactions and dispositions of 

the assets of the company; 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of nancial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 

only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material effect on the nancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal nancial control over nancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting and 

such internal nancial controls over nancial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control 

over nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India.

 For N.M.Raiji & Co.

 Chartered Accountants

 Firm’s Registration Number: 108296W

 Vinay D. Balse

Place: Camp Bengaluru Partner

Date: May 19, 2018 Membership Number: 39434
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WeP Solutions Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

(in `)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018

PART I – BALANCE SHEET

 Note As at As at As atParticulars 
 No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016 

  ASSETS
 1 Non-current assets
 a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2  32,06,84,138   30,56,04,219   24,05,13,712
 b) Capital Work-in-Progress  2 & 3  2,85,440   19,38,000   15,26,471
 c) Other Intangible Assets  3  72,29,922   26,87,575   11,09,110
 d) Financial Assets
  i) Investments  4(a)  4,92,52,345   81,00,000   88,17,791
  ii) Loans  4(c)  -     1,00,00,000   42,92,670
  iii) Other Financial Assets  4(e)  1,16,04,448   1,15,26,567   1,44,53,887
 e) Deferred Tax Assets (net)  5  1,65,20,227   1,55,33,950   2,05,18,738
 f) Other Non-Current Assets  6  4,60,27,921   4,38,06,476   3,83,26,971

     45,16,04,441   39,91,96,787   32,95,59,350

 2 Current assets
 a) Inventories  7  11,76,46,010   13,39,22,839   19,65,99,067
 b) Financial Assets
  i) Trade Receivables  4(b)  12,94,99,526   11,78,35,327   15,09,54,240
  ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents  4(d)  40,556   1,14,245   4,25,736
  iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 4(f)  15,17,540   15,72,700   16,09,436
  iv) Other nancial assets  4(e)  13,69,660   14,03,032   22,78,927
 c) Other Current Assets  8  1,76,20,952   1,01,89,672   74,81,089

     26,76,94,244   26,50,37,815   35,93,48,495

  Total Assets    71,92,98,685   66,42,34,602   68,89,07,845

  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 3 Equity
 a) Equity Share capital  9(a) 25,12,31,545   25,08,02,545   23,00,40,545
 b) Other Equity
  i) Reserves & Surplus  9(b)  19,27,13,595   17,12,77,131   8,12,51,670
  ii) Others  9(c)  1,50,00,000   -     -

     45,89,45,140   42,20,79,676   31,12,92,215

  LIABILITIES
 4 Non-current liabilities
 a) Provisions  11  1,02,59,780   1,39,72,973   2,14,14,527

     1,02,59,780   1,39,72,973   2,14,14,527

 5 Current liabilities
 a) Financial Liabilities
  i) Borrowings  10(a) 7,65,83,473 3,58,05,652 12,23,34,009
  ii) Trade Payables  10(b) 10,54,17,446 11,77,85,447 14,03,00,481
  iii) Other Financial Liabilities  10(c) 5,18,37,211 5,49,76,545 7,78,43,140
 b) Other Current Liabilities  12 1,44,46,299 1,50,72,663 87,72,281
 c) Provisions  11 18,09,336 45,41,646 69,51,192

     25,00,93,765   22,81,81,953   35,62,01,103

  Total Equity and Liabilities   71,92,98,685   66,42,34,602   68,89,07,845

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements



128

WeP Solutions Limited
Statement of Prot and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

(in `)

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018

PART II – STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

 Note For the year ended For the year endedParticulars 
 No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

 I Revenue From Operations  13  79,83,73,763   80,04,61,940

 II Other Income  14  88,88,993   94,43,372

 III Total Income (I+II)    80,72,62,756   80,99,05,312

  EXPENSES

 a) Cost of Materials Consumed  15  24,87,67,453   28,43,56,739

 b) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  16  9,47,12,434   7,95,86,943

 c) Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress, Stock-in-Trade

  and Finished Goods  17  3,16,90,290   4,48,89,750

 d) Employee Benets Expenses  18  11,20,75,455   9,74,25,373

 e) Other Expenses  19  19,66,79,206   19,96,54,196

 IV Total Expenses    68,39,24,838   70,59,13,001

  Prot / (loss) Before Depreciation, Interest, Exceptional Items
12,33,37,918   10,39,92,311

  and Tax (III-IV)    

 f) Finance Costs  20 94,36,281   1,19,50,612

 g) Depreciation and Amortization Expense 21  9,36,76,214   7,74,03,834

 V Prot / (loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax   2,02,25,423   1,46,37,865

 VI Exceptional Items    -     -

 VII Prot / (loss) Before Tax (V-VI)    2,02,25,423   1,46,37,865

 VIII Tax Expense:

  1) Current tax   72,18,862   39,06,770

  2) MAT Credit entitlement    -     (39,06,770)

  3) Deferred tax    (9,86,277)  49,16,662

 IX Prot (Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations (VII-VIII)   1,39,92,838   97,21,203

 X Other Comprehensive Income

 A i) Items that will not be reclassied to prot or loss   1,32,881   2,06,045

  ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassied to prot

   or loss    (43,934)  (68,125)

 B  i) Items that will be reclassied to prot or loss   -     -

  ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassied to prot or loss   -     -

 XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)  
 1,40,81,785   98,59,123

  (Comprising Prot / (Loss) & Other Comprehensive Income for the period)

 XII Earnings Per Equity Share:

  1) Basic    0.56   0.42

  2) Diluted    0.54   0.41

  No of Shares for EPS Calculation

  1) Basic    2,51,00,743   2,33,31,499

  2) Diluted    2,57,68,691   2,35,01,678
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WeP Solutions Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2018

(in `)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018

 Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 A Cash Flow From Operating Activities

  Prot before Income tax from continuing Operations  2,02,25,423   1,46,37,865

  Prot before Income tax  2,02,25,423   1,46,37,865

  Adjustment for:

  Depreciation & Amortisation  9,36,76,214   7,74,03,834

  Provision for doubtful debts  34,47,317   16,29,487

  Employee share based payment expense  62,02,334   8,84,129

  Actuarial Gains / Losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  1,32,881   2,06,045

  Loss / (Prot) on Sale of Fixed Assets  16,54,250   21,43,410

  Net Exchange differences  (11,22,114)  1,91,013

  Interest Income  (8,84,555)  (14,75,207)

  Interest Expense  94,36,281   1,19,50,612

  Changes in Operating assets and liabilities

  (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories  1,62,76,829   6,26,76,228

  (Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables  (1,51,11,517)  3,14,89,425

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets  (74,31,281)  (27,08,576)

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Bank Balances  55,160   36,736

  (Increase) / Decrease in Loans  1,00,00,000   (57,07,330)

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets  (44,510)  34,01,783

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets  (34,286)  39,29,229

  Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions  (64,45,502)  (98,51,100)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables  (1,12,45,887)  (2,27,06,043)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  (6,26,364)  (1,52,01,621)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities  (31,39,334)  (13,64,591)

  Cash Generated from Operations  11,50,21,339   15,15,65,328

  Income taxes paid  94,49,954   90,07,312

  Net Cash From Operating Activities  10,55,71,385   14,25,58,016

 B Cash Flow From Investing Activities

  Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment  (10,65,36,244)  (14,50,70,484)

  Purchase of Investments  (4,00,00,000)  -

  Purchase of Intangible Assets  (68,51,884)  (24,80,147)

  Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  87,958   9,22,885

  Interest Income  8,84,555   14,75,207

  Net Cash Used In Investing Activities  (15,24,15,615)  (14,51,52,539)

 C Cash Flow From Financing Activities

  Proceeds from Issue of Shares  4,29,000   10,07,62,000

  Proceeds from Issue of Warrants  1,50,00,000   -

  Interest paid  (94,36,280)  (1,19,50,612)

  Proceeds / (Repayment)  of Borrowings  4,07,77,821   (8,65,28,356)

  Net Cash From / (Used for) Financing Activities  4,67,70,541   22,83,032

  Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents - (A+B+C)  (73,689)  (3,11,491)

  Cash and Cash Equivalents at The Beginning of the year / period  1,14,245   4,25,736   

  Cash and Cash Equivalents at The End of the year / period  40,556   1,14,245
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Corporate Information

The Company is principally engaged in the business of providing Managed Printing Solutions and Services, Manufacturing and 

Distribution of Retail Billing Products and providing Digital Services like GST, Aadhar Authentication, Document Management 

Solutions, etc. to both enterprise and retail customers, pan India. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is 

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act 1956. Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the registered 

ofce of the Company is located at 40/1A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bengaluru - 560001.

1. Signicant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information to the Financial Statements for the 

year ended March 31, 2018

 A. Signicant accounting policies

  The signicant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its nancial statements are listed below. 

Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these nancial statements and in 

preparing the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2016 for the purpose of transition to Ind AS, unless otherwise 

indicated.

 A.1. Statement of Compliance

  In accordance with the notication issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Ind AS notied 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2017.

  The transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption 

of Indian Accounting Standards”, with April 1, 2016 being the transition date.

  In accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”, the Company has presented a 

reconciliation from the presentation of nancial statements under accounting standards notied under the Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP”) to Ind AS of total equity as at April 1, 2016 and March 31, 2017 

and Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2017.

 A.2. Basis of Preparation

  The nancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of certain assets and 

liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values as per Ind AS.

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date.

 A.3. Use of Estimates

  In preparation of the nancial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the 

associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates.

  The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reected in the 

nancial statements in the period in which the changes are made.

  Signicant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities include useful lives of 

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, 

provision for employee benets and other provisions and recoverability of deferred tax assets.

 A.4. Revenue Recognition

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benets will ow to the Company and the 

revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of 

the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually dened terms of payment and excluding taxes 

or duties collected on behalf of the government.

  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when signicant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 

customer, which is mainly upon delivery, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the 

consideration is probable.  The Company accrues the estimated cost of standard warranties at the time when the revenue 

is recognised. The accruals are based on the Company’s historical experience of material usage and service delivery costs. 

The revenue from extended warranties i.e. for period in excess of standard warranty, is recognised on a straight-line basis 

over the period of the extended warranty.
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  Revenue from services is recognised in the periods in which the services are rendered. Where services involve performance 

of an indeterminate number of acts without substantial variation in signicance over a specied period of time, revenue is 

recognised on a straight-line basis over the specied period. Where a specic act is much more signicant than any other 

act, the revenue is recognised on completion of such signicant act.

  Revenue from providing solutions and services is recognised in accordance with the customer contract and when there are 

no unfullled company obligations or any obligations that are inconsequentional and will not affect the customer's nal 

acceptance of the arrangement. Income from maintenance contracts is recognised proportionately over the period of the 

contract.

  Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established. 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

 A.5. Inventories

  Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method. 

Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in 

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the price at which the inventories 

can be realised in the normal course of business, after allowing for the cost of conversion from their existing state to a 

nished condition and for the cost of marketing, selling and distribution.

 A.6. Property, plant and equipment

  An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benets 

associated with the item will ow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is 

applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred 

subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. Borrowing cost directly attributable to the construction or production 

of qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of cost. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are 

recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss, as and when incurred.

  All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment loss, if any. Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition 

and location for its intended use. Capital Work-in-Progress is stated at cost, comprising of direct cost and related incidental 

expenditure.

  The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset, and is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

 A.7. Intangible assets

  Software costs, both acquired and internally generated, are recognised as intangible assets only where they are clearly 

linked to long term economic benets for the Company. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated 

useful lives. All other costs on software are expensed in the Statement of Prot and Loss as and when incurred.

  Expenditure during development phase of internally generated software is recognized as intangible assets if all of the 

following conditions are met:

i) completion of the development is technically feasible;

ii) it is the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

iii) it is clear that the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benets;

iv) adequate technical, nancial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset 

are available; and

v) it is possible to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

  Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the project is complete and available for its intended use, or if these criteria 

no longer apply.

  Where development activities do not meet the conditions for recognition as an asset, any associated expenditure is treated 

as an expense in the period in which it is incurred
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 A.8. Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

  Depreciation or amortization is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as estimated by the 

management. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Assets  
Useful Life applied

(In Years)

Computers

Furniture and Fixtures - Owned Premises

Furniture and Fixtures - Leased Premises

Ofce Equipment

Plant and Equipments including Electrical installations

Computer Peripherals - on Use and Pay

Vehicles

Air Conditioners

Moulds, Dies & Patterns

Building

3.00

10.00

5.00

5.00

4.00

4.00

8.00

4.00

5.00

30.00

  Individual Assets costing less than ̀  5,000 are depreciated in full in the year of purchase. Depreciation for assets purchased 

/ sold during the period is proportionately charged.

  Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Asset Amortization (In Years)

Computer Software – ERP Systems

Computer Software 

Technical Know-how

4.00

2 to 3 years

5.00

 A.9. Impairment of Assets

  At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be 

recoverable through continuing use.

  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of 

impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not generate cash ows that are independent from other assets, the 

Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

  Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value, less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash ows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and risks specic to the asset, for which the estimates of future cash ows have not 

been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss as and when the carrying amount of 

an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

  Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to 

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) 

in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

 A.10. Foreign Currency Transactions

  The nancial statements of the Company are presented in INR, which is the functional currency of the Company and the 

presentation currency for the nancial statements. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate 

prevailing on the date of transaction.

  At the end of each reporting period, all monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates 

prevailing as at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 

currency are not translated.

  The exchange difference arising on account of the difference between the rates prevailing on the date of transaction and 

on the date of settlement, as also on translation of monetary items at the end of the year is recognized as income or 

expense, as the case may be, in the Statement of Prot and Loss for the year.
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 A.11. Financial Instruments

  Financial assets and nancial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of nancial assets and nancial liabilities (other than nancial assets and nancial 

liabilities at fair value through prot or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of 

nancial asset or nancial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of nancial assets and nancial 

liabilities at fair value through prot and loss, are immediately recognised in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

  Effective interest method

  The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a nancial instrument and of allocating 

interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash 

receipts or payments through the expected life of the nancial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

  a) Financial assets

   Financial assets  at amortised cost

   Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these nancial assets are held within a business model 

whose objective is to hold these assets, in order to collect contractual cash ows, and the contractual terms of the 

nancial asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding.

   Financial assets measured at fair value

   Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if these nancial assets are held within 

a business model, whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash ows, or to sell these 

nancial assets, and the contractual terms of the nancial asset give rise on specied dates to cash ows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   Financial assets not measured at amortised cost, or at fair value through other comprehensive income, are carried at fair 

value through prot or loss.

   Impairment of nancial assets

   The Company assesses, on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 

amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a signicant increase in 

credit risk.

   For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplied approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, 

which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables with effect from

April 1, 2017.

   Derecognition of nancial assets

   The Company derecognises a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ows from the asset expire, or it 

transfers the nancial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

  b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

   Classication as debt or equity

   Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classied according to the substance of the 

contractual arrangements entered into and the denitions of a nancial liability and an equity instrument.

   Equity instruments

   An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its 

liabilities. Equity is recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

   Financial Liabilities

   Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

   Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 

transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in 

accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.
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   Derecognition of nancial liabilities

   The Company derecognises nancial liabilities when the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they 

expire.

 A.12. Employee Benets

  i. Short Term Employee Benets

   Short Term Employees Benets are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Prot 

and Loss of the year in which the related services is rendered.

  ii. Other long-term employee benet obligations

   Leave Encashment: Liability in respect of leave encashment as at the balance sheet date is determined based on 

actuarial valuation, by using the Projected Unit Credit Method and gains/losses for the year are recognized 

immediately in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

  iii. Post Employment Benets

   Provident Fund: The Company contributes monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are remitted to the 

Employee Provident Fund Commissioner ofce and are charged to the Statement of Prot and Loss on accrual basis.

   Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity (a dened benet retirement plan) to all the eligible employees. The 

benet is in the form of lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, on death while in employment, or 

termination of employment for an amount equivalent to 15 days’ salary, payable for each completed year of service. 

Vesting occurs on completion of ve years of service. Liability in respect of gratuity as at the balance sheet date is 

determined on the basis of actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-measurement gains and 

losses of the net dened benet liability / (asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The 

service cost, net interest on the net dened benet liability / (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs 

and are recognized immediately in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

  iv. Employee Stock Options

   All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share based remuneration are measured at their fair 

values. These are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of the share options awarded. Their value is 

appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, protability 

and sales growth targets).

   All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in the Statement of Prot and Loss, with a 

corresponding credit to Employee Stock Compensation Reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, 

the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of share options 

expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are 

expected to become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of share 

options expected to vest differs from previous estimates. Once vested, no adjustment is made to expense recognised 

in prior periods if, ultimately, fewer share options are exercised than originally estimated. Upon exercise of share 

options, the proceeds received (net of any directly attributable transaction costs) up to the nominal value of the shares 

issued are allocated to share capital with any excess being recorded as Securities Premium.

 A.13. Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part 

of the cost of those assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 

intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Prot and Loss in the period in 

which they are incurred.

 A.14. Earning Per Share

  In accordance with the Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per Share”, basic / diluted earnings per share is computed by taking the 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

 A.15. Taxation

  Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

  The tax currently payable is based on the taxable prot for the year. Taxable prot differs from net prot, as reported in the 

Statement of Prot and Loss, because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years 

and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using 

tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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  Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable prot, and is 

accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 

temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses are 

only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable prots will be available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilised.

  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 

liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 

offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

  Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Prot and Loss, except when they 

relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also 

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

  Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives rise to future economic benets 

in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the 

Company will pay normal income tax during the specied period. Accordingly, MAT entitlement is recognised as an asset in 

the Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benet associated 

with it will fructify. Such asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written 

down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence for the effect that the company will pay normal income tax 

during the specied period.

 A.16. Warranty Cost

  The Company accrues the estimated cost of warranties at the time when the revenue is recognised. The accruals are based 

on the Company’s historical experience of material usage and service delivery cost.

 A.17. Provisions

  Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outow of resources embodying economic benets which can be 

reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation 

at the balance sheet date. When appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

  Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from a Company’s actions where:

  a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufciently specic current statement, the 

Company has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

  b) as a result, the Company has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those 

responsibilities.

 A.18. Leases

  The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulllment of a transaction is 

dependent on the use of a specic asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Company, in 

return for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is accounted for either as nance 

or operating lease.

  Leases are classied as nance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classied as operating leases.

  Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Prot and Loss on a straight line basis, over the 

term of the relevant lease, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 

benets from the leased asset are consumed.

 A.19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with bank, and other short term highly liquid 

investments, with original maturities of 3 months or less.
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 B. Explanation of Transition to IND AS

 B.1. Exemptions availed by the Group

  Ind AS 101 “First time adoption of Indian accounting standards “permits companies adopting Ind AS for the rst time to 

avail of certain exemptions from the full retrospective application of Ind AS in the transition period. The Company, on 

transition to Ind AS, has availed the following key exemptions:

  a) Property, plant and equipment

   The Company has elected to adopt previous GAAP carrying value of its Property, Plant and Equipment as deemed 

cost on date of transition

  b) Intangible assets

   The Company has elected to treat the carrying value as deemed cost for all items of intangible assets.

  c) Investment in subsidiary

   The Company has elected to take the carrying amount of all its investments in its subsidiaries as at April 1, 2016, as its 

deemed cost under Ind AS.

  d) Share based payments

   The Company has elected to apply the requirements of Ind AS 102, retrospectively, for all the options granted by the 

Company

 B.2. Exceptions applicable to Group

  Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian accounting standarsds" contains certain exceptions that prohibit full 

retrospective application of Ind AS in the transition period. From amongst these exceptions, the one applicable to the 

Company are as follows:

  a) De-recognition of nancial assets and liabilities

   The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 (Financial Instruments) prospectively 

from the date of transition to Ind AS.

  b) Classication and measurement of nancial assets

   The Company has classied the nancial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 (Financial Instruments) on the basis of 

facts and circumstances that existed as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

 B.3. Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

  i) Equity Reconciliation         (` in Mn)

 As at As at
Particulars Note 

 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
  

Equity as per previous IGAAP   423.39 310.19

Add / (Less): Adjustments on transition to Ind AS

Warranty provision restatement  e 1.74

Deferred tax impact   0.81 0.38

Stock Options Plan Impact  b - 0.72

Revenue Deferment for extended warranty obligations a (3.83)

Fair Valuation of Deposits impact  d (0.03)

Adjustments (Total)   (1.31) 1.10

Equity as per Ind AS   422.08 311.29
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  ii) Total Comprehensive Income Reconciliation      (` in Mn)

 For the year ended
Particulars Note 

 March 31, 2017
  

Net Prot as per previous IGAAP   12.12

Add / (Less): Adjustments on transition to Ind AS

Revenue Deferment for extended warranty obligations a  (3.83)

Stock option expense impact due to fair valuation b  (0.57)

Acturial Gain recognised in Other comprehensive income c  (0.21)

Advance Rent expensed off due to fair valuation of deposits d  (0.65)

Interest income on Rent deposits due to fair valuation  d  0.62 

Warranty provision restatement  e  1.74

Deferred tax Impact    0.49

Adjustments (Total)     (2.40)

Net Prot as per Ind AS    9.72

Other Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS   0.14 

Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS   9.86

Notes

a) The Company provides extended warranty for its products. Consequent to adoption of Ind AS, the Company has 

derecognised the revenue pertaining to the extended warranty and spread on a straignt line basis over the period extended 

warranty.

b) The amount of stock options expense impact represents the impact of change in valuation of stock options from the 

erstwhile intrinsic value method under IGAAP to the fair value method under Ind AS.

c) The Company has recognised all actuarial gains and losses on post retirement dened benet schemes in other 

comprehensive income. Deferred taxes pertaining to these losses have also been recognised in other comprehensive 

income.

d) Advance rent expense and Interest income on rent deposits is due to adoption of fair valuation for the Rent Deposits paid by 

the Company.

e) Warranty provision restatement is due to deferment of revenue for the extended warranty on products sold by the 

Company. Since the provision was made factoring the extended warranty and with the revenue being deferred and 

recognised over the period of extended warranty, the provision pertaining to the extended warranty period has been 

reversed.
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 Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 25,08,02,545 23,00,40,545

Changes in equity share capital during the year 4,29,000 2,07,62,000

Balance at the end of the reporting period 25,12,31,545 25,08,02,545

a) Capital Reserve – This represents the value of bargain purchase gain upon acquisition and is not freely available for distribution

b) Retained earnings / General reserve – These are free reserves that are available for distribution of dividends. Retained earnings comprises 

of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes.

c) Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in 

accordance with the provision of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) Share option outstanding account - The share option outstanding account is used to recognize the value of equity-settled sharebased 

payments provided to employees, including key management personnel.

e) Other Comprehensive Income: Changes in the fair value of nancial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income and actuarial gains and losses on dened benet plans are recognized in other comprehensive income (net of taxes), and 

presented within equity as other comprehensive income.

B. Other Equity

  Reserves and Surplus

 Capital General Securities  Stock  Retained 
 Reserve Reserve Premium Options Earnings Total
   Reserve Outstanding

Opening Balance at April 1, 2016 3,13,27,459 83,202 66,75,000 21,88,176 4,09,77,833 8,12,51,670

Changes in accounting policy or prior
period errors       -   

Restated balance at the beginning of the
reporting period       -   

Prot for the year      97,21,203   97,21,203 

Other Comprehensive Income for the
year net of taxes      1,37,920   1,37,920 

Premium on Issue of shares under
preferential allotment    8,00,00,000     8,00,00,000 

Transfer to General Reserve       -   

Transfer from Stock Options Outstanding a/c   22,710   5,78,612   (6,01,322)   -

Employee stock options expense     1,66,338    1,66,338 

Closing Balance as at March 31, 2017  3,13,27,459   1,05,912   8,72,53,612   17,53,192   5,08,36,956   17,12,77,131

Opening Balance at April 1, 2017  3,13,27,459   1,05,912   8,72,53,612   17,53,192   5,08,36,956   17,12,77,131 

Changes in accounting policy or prior
period errors       -   

Prot for the year      1,39,92,838   1,39,92,838 

Other Comprehensive Income for the
year net of taxes      88,947   88,947 

Transfer to General Reserve   25,234    (25,234)   -   

Transfer from Stock Options Outstanding a/c    3,50,456   (3,50,456)   -

Employee stock options Subsidiary     11,52,345    11,52,345 

Employee stock options expense     62,02,334    62,02,334 

Closing Balance as at March 31, 2018  3,13,27,459   1,31,146   8,76,04,068   87,32,181   6,49,18,741   19,27,13,595

WeP Solutions Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity Share Capital
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Note 3: Intangible Assets

  Computer  
Computer Capital work

 Particulars Software - Total 
 Software  in progress

   ERP System

Year ended March 31, 2017

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016  9,47,877 1,61,233 11,09,110 -

Additions  24,80,147 - 24,80,147

Disposals  - - -

Closing gross carrying amount  34,28,024 1,61,233 35,89,257 -

Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciation charge during the year  7,59,791 1,41,891 9,01,682

Disposals  - - -

Closing accumulated depreciation  7,59,791 1,41,891 9,01,682

Net carrying amount  26,68,233 19,342 26,87,575 -

Year ended March 31, 2018

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  34,28,024 1,61,233 35,89,257 -

Additions  26,19,895 42,31,989 68,51,884

Disposals  - - -

Closing gross carrying amount  60,47,919 43,93,222 1,04,41,141 -

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation  7,59,791 1,41,891 9,01,682

Additions  19,37,530 3,72,007 23,09,537

Disposals  - - -

Closing accumulated depreciation  26,97,321 5,13,898 32,11,219

Net carrying amount  33,50,598 38,79,324 72,29,922 -

Note: a) Computer software includes capitalised development cost being internally generated intangible asset.
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Note 4: Financial Assets

4 (a) Non Current Investments

 Break-up of Security Details

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Outstanding for More than Six Months from the due date

Secured, considered good  -     -     -

Unsecured, considered good  72,33,884   34,76,919   77,86,010

Doubtful  7,01,14,163   6,76,69,721   6,60,40,234

  7,73,48,047   7,11,46,640   7,38,26,244

Allowance for doubtful debts  (7,01,14,163)  (6,76,69,721)  (6,60,40,234)

Sub total  72,33,884   34,76,919   77,86,010

Other Receivables

Secured, considered good  -     -     -

Unsecured, considered good  12,32,68,516   11,43,58,408   14,31,68,230

Doubtful  -     -     -

  12,32,68,516   11,43,58,408   14,31,68,230

Allowance for doubtful debts  (10,02,874)  -     -

Sub total  12,22,65,642   11,43,58,408   14,31,68,230

Total Trade Receivables  12,94,99,526   11,78,35,327   15,09,54,240

4 (c) Loans

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Non-Current

Unsecured, considered good

Loan to subsidiary - 1,00,00,000 42,92,670

Total Loans  - 1,00,00,000 42,92,670

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Equity Investments (fully paid-up)   

Unqouted   

48,09,999 Equity shares of WeP Digital Services Limited  4,92,52,345   81,00,000   88,17,791 

(March 31, 2017 : 8,09,999 and April 1, 2016: 8,09,999)

Total Non Current Investments  4,92,52,345   81,00,000   88,17,791

Aggregate amount of unqouted investments  4,92,52,345   81,00,000   88,17,791 

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments  -     - -

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Trade Receivables 20,01,52,633   18,55,05,048   21,69,94,474

Receivables from Related Parties 4,63,931   -     -

Allowance for Doubtful Debts (7,11,17,038)  (6,76,69,721)  (6,60,40,234)

Total Receivables 12,94,99,526   11,78,35,327   15,09,54,240

Current Portion 12,94,99,526   11,78,35,327   15,09,54,240

Non-Current Portion - - -

4 (b) Trade Receivables
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4 (d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Non Current

Security Deposits  1,16,04,448 1,15,26,567 1,44,53,887

Total Other Financial Assets - Non Current  1,16,04,448 1,15,26,567 1,44,53,887

Current

Deposits  13,69,660 14,03,032 22,78,927

Total Other Financial Assets - Current  13,69,660 14,03,032 22,78,927

4 (f) Other Bank Balances

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Balance in Unclaimed Dividend Accounts with Banks  15,17,540   15,72,700   16,09,436

Total Other Bank Balances  15,17,540   15,72,700   16,09,436

Note 5: Deferred Tax Assets

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Tax losses  - 50,60,334 -

Dened Benet obligations & allowance on payment basis  45,18,616 41,67,886 44,84,926

Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables  2,35,13,426 2,23,73,640 2,18,34,883

Others  16,27,912 14,30,089 2,67,757

Total Deferred Tax Assets  2,96,59,954 3,30,31,949 2,65,87,566

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment  1,31,39,727 1,74,97,999 60,68,828

  1,31,39,727 1,74,97,999 60,68,828

Net Deferred Tax Assets  1,65,20,227 1,55,33,950 2,05,18,738

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Balances with Banks

- In current accounts  40,556 1,14,245 3,86,563

Cash on hand  - - 39,173

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  40,556 1,14,245 4,25,736

4 (e) Other Financial Assets
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 Movement in deferred tax assets

 Allowance  
  Dened Property, 

 for doubtful Other 
Particulars Tax losses benet plant and  Total

   debts - trade Items 
obligations equipment

    receivables

As at April 1, 2016   44,84,926   2,18,34,883   2,67,757   (60,68,828)  2,05,18,738 

(Charged) / Credited:      

 - to prot or loss  50,60,334   (2,48,915)  5,38,757   11,62,332   (1,14,29,171)  (49,16,663)

 - to other comprehensive income   (68,125)     (68,125)

 - deferred tax on basis adjustment       -   

As at March 31, 2017  50,60,334   41,67,886   2,23,73,640   14,30,089   (1,74,97,999)  1,55,33,950 

(Charged) / Credited:      

 - to prot or loss  (50,60,334)  3,94,664   11,39,786   1,97,823   43,58,272   10,30,211 

 - to other comprehensive income   (43,934)     (43,934)

 - deferred tax on basis adjustment       -   

As at March 31, 2018  -     45,18,616   2,35,13,426   16,27,912   (1,31,39,727)  1,65,20,227

Note 6: Other Non Current Assets

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Margin money deposits with bank 7,18,049   6,65,695   6,16,574

Interest accrued on margin money deposits with bank  75,704   63,881   51,974

Taxes / Refunds recoverable  4,52,34,168   4,30,76,900   3,76,58,423

Total Other Non-Current Assets  4,60,27,921   4,38,06,476   3,83,26,971

Note 7: Inventories

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Raw Materials

  - In Stock  3,22,02,624 2,56,35,695 2,48,35,221

  - In Transit  - -

Work-in-progress  - 1,25,91,178 1,04,69,792

Finished goods

  - In Stock  23,82,105 64,01,076 1,96,35,055

  - In Transit  - 16,868 62,069

Traded goods

  - In Stock  2,21,22,060   3,71,85,333   6,92,76,779 

  - In Transit  -     -     16,40,510

Spares and Consumables

  - In Stock  6,09,37,004   5,20,92,689   7,06,79,641

  - In Transit  2,217   -

Total Inventories  11,76,46,010   13,39,22,839   19,65,99,067

Note 8: Other Current Assets

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Prepayments 87,06,480 78,55,168 48,46,192

Balance with Excise / Customs / GST input credit  89,14,472 23,34,504 26,34,897

Total Other Current Assets  1,76,20,952 1,01,89,672 74,81,089
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Note 9(a): Equity Share Capital

  Authorised Equity Share capital

 Particulars Number of shares Amount

As at April 1, 2016 3,00,00,000   30,00,00,000

Increase during the year - -

As at March 31, 2017 3,00,00,000 30,00,00,000

Increase during the year - -

As at March 31, 2018 3,00,00,000 30,00,00,000

  i) Movements in Equity Share Capital 

 Particulars Number of shares Amount

As at April 1, 2016 2,30,03,472 23,00,40,545

Execrise of options - proceeds received 76,200 7,62,000

Preferential Issue 20,00,000 2,00,00,000

As at March 31, 2017 2,50,79,672 25,08,02,545

Execrise of options - proceeds received 42,900 4,29,000

As at March 31, 2018 2,51,22,572 25,12,31,545

Terms and Rights Attached to Equity Shares:

Equity shares have a par value of INR 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up 

the company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled 

to one vote.

Shares Reserved for Issue under Options:

Information relating to ESOP plans of the company, including details of the options issued, exercised and lapsed during the nancial 

year and options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, is set out in Note 24.

Preferential Issue:

On February 6, 2017, the company allotted 20,00,000 equity shares at a price of INR 50 per share, on a preferential basis after the 

same was duly approved by the members.

  ii) Shares in the Company held by each Shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the Shares:

 As at As at
Name of Shareholders 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

RNAWEP Investments Private Limited

No of Shares  32,60,403   32,60,403

% Holding 12.98% 13.00%

Ram N Agarwal

No of Shares  30,05,056   30,05,056

% Holding 11.96% 11.98%

WeP Peripherals Limited

No of Shares  20,24,994   20,24,994

% Holding 8.06% 8.07%

Wipro Limited

No of Shares  18,36,000   18,36,000

% Holding 7.31% 7.32%

Sharad Kanayalal Shah

No of Shares  14,12,035   14,12,035

% Holding 5.62% 5.63%

Dipak Kanayalal Shah

No of Shares  10,19,450   12,60,553

% Holding 4.06% 5.03%
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  iii) Aggregate Number of Shares Issued for Consideration other than Cash

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Shares issued as consideration for acquisition of business 2,22,13,645 2,22,13,645

Note 9(b): Reserves and Surplus

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     (1,76,974)

Securities Premium Reserve  8,76,04,068 8,72,53,612 66,75,000

Share options outstanding account  87,32,181 17,53,192 21,88,176

Capital Reserve  3,13,27,459 3,13,27,459 3,13,27,459

General Reserve  1,31,146 1,05,912 83,202

Retained earnings  6,49,18,741 5,08,36,956 4,11,54,807

Total Reserves and Surplus  19,27,13,595 17,12,77,131 8,12,51,670

  i) Securities Premium Reserve

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  8,72,53,612   66,75,000

Preferential Issue  -     8,00,00,000

Exercise of Options  3,50,456   5,78,612

Closing Balance  8,76,04,068   8,72,53,612

  ii) Share Options Outstanding Account

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  17,53,192 21,88,176

Employee stock options expense  62,02,334 8,84,129

Employee stock options of subsidiary  11,52,345 (7,17,791)

Transfer to Securities Premium on exercise of options  (3,50,456) (5,78,612)

Transfer to General Reserve  (25,234) (22,710)

Closing Balance  87,32,181 17,53,192

  iii) Capital Reserve

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  3,13,27,459 3,13,27,459

Closing Balance  3,13,27,459 3,13,27,459

  iv) General Reserve

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  1,05,912 83,202

Transfer from Stock options outstanding  25,234 22,710

Closing Balance  1,31,146 1,05,912
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  v) Retained Earnings

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Balance  5,08,36,956 4,09,77,833

Net prot for the period  1,39,92,838 97,21,203

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial Gains / (Losses) net of taxes  88,947 1,37,920

Closing Balance  6,49,18,741   5,08,36,956

Note 9(c): Others

 As at As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Consideration received on Issue of Warrants pending conversion  1,50,00,000 -

Closing Balance  1,50,00,000 -

Note:

On December 28, 2017, the company granted 10,00,000 warrants at a price of INR 60 per warrant, on a preferential basis after the 

same was duly approved by the members. The company received the initial consideration of 25% i.e. Rs. 1,50,00,000/- and the same 

has been classied as other Equity. The allottee has a period of 18 months from the date of allottment to convert the warrants into 

Equity shares, failing which the initial amount paid shall be forfeited as per the terms of the allotment and regulations as applicable.

Note 10: Financial Liabilities

Note 10(a): Current Borrowings

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Loans Repayable on Demand

Secured

From Banks

Cash Credit Account  7,65,83,473   3,58,05,652   12,23,34,009

Total Current Borrowings  7,65,83,473   3,58,05,652   12,23,34,009

i) Cash credit facility is secured by hypothecation of current assets of the company

Note 10(b): Trade Payables

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Current

Trade payables  10,37,08,061   11,77,85,447   14,03,00,481

Trade payables to related parties 17,09,385 - -

Total Trade Payables  10,54,17,446 11,77,85,447 14,03,00,481

Note 10(c): Other Financial Liabilities

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Current

Customer and Dealer Deposits  1,97,58,055 1,71,23,708 1,84,88,298

Expenses payable  3,20,79,156 3,78,52,837 5,93,54,842

Total Other Current Financial Liabilities  5,18,37,211 5,49,76,545 7,78,43,140
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Note 11: Provisions

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Non Current

Employee Benets (Refer Note 23)  87,59,339 63,25,755 75,34,063

Warranty expenses (Refer Note 27)  15,00,441 76,47,218 1,38,80,464

Total Non Current Provisions  1,02,59,780 1,39,72,973 2,14,14,527

Current

Employee Benets (Refer Note 23)  6,10,334 9,84,018 18,59,181

Warranty expenses (Refer Note 27)  11,99,002 35,57,628 50,92,011

Total Current Provisions  18,09,336 45,41,646 69,51,192

Note 12: Other Current Liabilities

 As at As at As at
Particulars  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

  

Income received in advance  50,35,030 43,85,809 23,91,032

Unclaimed Dividend  15,17,540 15,72,700 16,09,436

Advance from customers  2,53,016 19,10,721 1,85,368

Statutory payables  33,61,742 34,05,037 36,61,859

Other payables  42,78,971 37,98,396 9,24,586

Total Other Current Liabilities  1,44,46,299 1,50,72,663 87,72,281

Note 13: Revenue from Operations

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Sale of Products  38,27,22,980 39,38,33,139

Sale of Services  41,52,82,520 40,61,67,420

Other Operating Revenue  3,68,263 4,61,381

Total Revenue from Operations  79,83,73,763 80,04,61,940

Note 14: Other Income

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Interest on Deposits with banks 1,23,084 63,784

Rental Income  23,58,106 -

Other Interest   7,61,471 14,11,423

Exchange Gain  11,22,114 -

Miscellaneous Income  24,13,801 18,28,164

Credit balances / Provision no longer required written back  21,10,417 61,40,001

Total Other Income  88,88,993 94,43,372
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Note 15: Cost of Materials Consumed

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Raw materials / Spares and consumables at the beginning of the year  7,77,28,385 9,55,14,862

Add: Purchases during the year  25,80,83,401 24,24,61,493

Less: Closing stocks  9,31,41,845 7,77,28,385

Cost of Material Consumed  24,26,69,941 26,02,47,970

Excise Duty paid  60,97,512 2,41,08,769

Total Cost of Material Consumed  24,87,67,453 28,43,56,739

Note 16: Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Purchases of stock-in-trade   19,23,11,187   21,45,96,886

Less :- Capitalised during the year  9,75,98,753   13,50,09,943

Total Purchase of Stock-in-Trade  9,47,12,434   7,95,86,943

Note 17: Changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress, Stock-in-Trade and Finished Goods

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Stock

Work-in-progress  1,25,91,178 1,04,69,792

Finished goods  64,17,944 1,96,97,124

Traded goods  3,71,85,333 7,09,17,289

Total Opening Stock  5,61,94,455 10,10,84,205

Closing Stock

Work-in-progress  - 1,25,91,178

Finished goods  23,82,105 64,17,944

Traded goods  2,21,22,060 3,71,85,333

Total Closing Stock  2,45,04,165 5,61,94,455

Total changes in Inventories of Work-in-Progress, Stock-in-Trade
and Finished Goods 3,16,90,290 4,48,89,750

Note 18: Employee Benet Expenses

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus  9,08,49,947 8,21,79,151

Gratuity and Leave encashment expense  45,27,879 17,83,168

Employee share-based payment expense  62,02,334 8,84,129

Contribution to provident and other fund  43,99,463 39,68,314

Staff welfare expenses  60,95,832 86,10,611

Total Employee Benet Expense  11,20,75,455 9,74,25,373
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Note 19: Other Expenses

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Power and fuel  52,87,532   59,13,767

Insurance  8,91,121   8,44,421

Repairs & Maintenance  55,92,094   56,85,116

Rent  2,38,41,370   2,43,24,643

Rates and taxes  41,82,713   61,69,698

Warranty Expenses  18,05,687   11,22,380

Carriage and Freight outwards  2,10,65,759   2,59,85,128

Commission on sales  27,88,931   73,25,349

Support Charges  1,61,33,334   2,11,03,252

Auditors' Remuneration

  for Audit fees  5,75,000   6,61,250

  for Taxation matters  1,00,000   57,500

  for Reimbursement of expenses  1,66,507   1,07,920

Advertisement and sales promotion  98,53,824   58,30,831

Directors' Commission and Sitting fees  8,10,000   7,10,000

Loss on disposal of assets  16,54,250   21,43,410

Travelling and Conveyance  1,44,66,400   1,59,32,742

Communication Expenses  87,88,389   87,69,467

Legal and Professional charges  92,31,186   74,03,813

Manpower support service charges  5,40,75,732   5,07,97,014

Ofce Maintenance  47,61,667   42,87,534

Cloud Expenses  37,83,551   -

Provision for doubtful debts / advances  34,47,317   16,29,487

Bad Debts Write off  3,07,405   44,218

Exchange Differences (Net)  -     1,91,013

Recruitment Expenses  14,49,474   7,82,072

Miscellaneous expenses  16,19,963   18,32,171

Total Other Expenses 19,66,79,206 19,96,54,196

Note 20: Finance Costs

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Interest Expenses  75,37,795 1,04,24,456

Other Borrowing costs  18,98,486 15,26,156

Total Finance Costs  94,36,281 1,19,50,612

Note 21: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

  For the year ended  For the year ended 
 Particulars April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2016 to
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  9,13,66,677 7,65,02,152

Amortisation of intangible assets  23,09,537 9,01,682

Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  9,36,76,214 7,74,03,834
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Note 22: Related Party Transactions

 A) List of related parties

 Name of Related Party Relationship

Mr. Ram Narayan Agarwal  Chairman & Managing Director 

Mr. G H Visweswara Independent Director 

Mr. B R Ganesh* Small Shareholders & Independent Director 

Mr. Sudhir Prakash Independent Director 

Dr. A L Rao Non-executive Director 

Mr. H V Gowthama Independent Director 

Ms. Mythily Ramesh Independent Director 

Ms. Prashee Agarwal Non - executive Director 

Mr Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director 

WeP Digital Services Limited (formerly eRM Solutions Private Limited) Subsidiary Company (100% owned) 

WeP Solutions India Limited Promoter 

WeP Peripherals Limited Promoter

* Director till September 22, 2017

 B) Remuneration to Chairman & Managing Director

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Remuneration to Mr. Ram N Agarwal - 5,06,497

 C) Transactions with other related parties

   WeP Peripherals Limited

 Transactions For the year ended For the year ended
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Purchase of Goods and Services (excluding taxes) 84,34,300 70,64,800

Initial consideration (25%) for allotment of warrants received 1,50,00,000 -

  WeP Digital Services Limited 

 Transactions For the year ended For the year ended
  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Purchase of Goods and Services 1,44,240 1,69,211

Sale of Goods and Services 37,80,273 -

Interest received on Loan (Gross of TDS) 2,28,596 7,89,142

 D) Amount due to related parties

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade payables to WeP Digital Services Limited 17,09,385 -

 E) Amount receivable from related parties

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Loan amount receivable from WeP Digital Services Limited - 1,00,00,000

Trade receivable from WeP Digital Services Limited (Net of TDS) 4,63,931 -
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Note 23: Employee Benet Plans

 The Company provides to its employees following retirement benets:

 i) Gratuity

 ii) Leave Accrual

  Leave Accrual: The Company allows accumulation / encashment of leave. Such accumulation can be utilized by 

obtaining leave in the subsequent period employment or encashment at the time of separation. The obligation as on 

the balance sheet date is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

  Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who 

are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 

retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportationately for 15 days 

salary for each completed year of service. The company accounts for gratuity benets payable in the future based on the 

actuarial valuation. The company is exposed to actuarial risk with respect to this plan.

  The following table sets out the amounts recognised in the nancial statements for Gratuity

  Principal Actuarial Assumptions

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00%

Discount Rate (per annum) 7.80% 7.00%

Mortality India Assured India Assured 
 Lives Mortality Lives Mortality 
 (2006-2008) (2006-2008)

  Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Present value of Funded dened benet obligation  52,24,325 49,19,857

Fair value of plan assets   (22,19,383) (24,55,407)

Present value of unfunded obligations   -     -

 Net Liability  30,04,942 24,64,450

Current  -     -

Non - current   30,04,942 24,64,450

  Amount reected in the P&L account is as follows

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current Service Cost  12,45,801 6,78,094

Interest on Dened Benet Obligation  1,03,462 3,29,780

Past Service cost  3,09,495 -

 Total 16,58,758 10,07,874

  Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening amount recognised in OCI outside prot and loss account  (29,071) 1,76,974

Remeasurements during the period due to

    Changes in nancial assumptions  (3,60,361) 3,11,108

    Experience adjustments  1,91,100 (4,85,089)

    Actual return on plan assets less interst on plan assets  36,380 (32,064)

Closing amount recognised in OCI outside prot and loss account  (1,61,952) (29,071)
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  Reconciliation statement

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a) Change in Dened Benet Obligation

 Opening Dened Benet Obligation  49,19,857 50,89,352

 Current Service Cost  12,45,801 6,78,094 

 Past service cost  3,09,495 -   

 Interest on Dened Benet Obligation  2,75,218 3,58,168 

 Actuarial Losses / (Gain)

 Remeasurements due to:

 - Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions  (3,60,361) 3,11,108

 - Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes  1,91,100 (4,85,089)

 Benets Paid  (3,71,400) (10,31,776)

 Acquisition / Transfer adjustment for Inter group transfer  (9,85,385) -

 Closing Dened Benet Obligation 52,24,325 49,19,857

b) Change in Fair Value of Assets

 Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  24,55,407 4,67,093

 Interest on plan assets  1,71,756 28,388 

 Remeasurements due to:

 Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (36,380) 32,064

 Contribution by Employer  - 29,59,638 

 Benet Paid  (3,71,400) (10,31,776)

 Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets  22,19,383 24,55,407

c) Change in Net Liability / (asset)

 Opening net dened benet liability / (asset) 24,64,451 46,22,260

 Expense charged to prot & loss account 16,58,758 10,07,874

 Amount recognised outside prot & loss account (1,32,881) (2,06,045)

 Contribution by Employer  - (29,59,638)

 Impact of liability assumed or (settled) on account of inter group transfer (9,85,385) -

 Closing net dened benet liability / (asset) 30,04,943 24,64,451

  Sensitivity Analysis

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

% Increase / (decrease) on present value of dened benets
obligation at the end of the year

50 bps increase in discount rate (4.10%) (3.50%)

50 bps decrease in discount rate 4.40% 3.70%

50 bps increase in rate of salary escalation 3.90% 3.70%

50 bps decrease in rate of salary escalation (3.80%) (2.80%)
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 Particulars ESOP 2011 ESOP 2016

th ndDate of Shareholders' approval 27  Sep., 2011 22  Sep., 2016

Total number of options approved under the scheme  6,00,000 6,00,000

Vesting Schedule

    On completion of 12 months from the date of grant of Options  30% vesting 30% vesting

    On completion of 24 months from the date of grant of Options  30% vesting 30% vesting

    On completion of 36 months from the date of grant of Options  40% vesting 40% vesting

Exercise Price  Rs.10 per share   Rs.10 per share 

Exercise Period  5 years from 5 years from
  the date the date
  of vesting  of vesting

Option movements during the year

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,92,300 NIL

Options granted during the year 93,000 1,32,000

Options Lapsed during the year 17,000 NIL

Options vested and available for exercise 2,86,300 NIL

Options exercised during the year 42,900 NIL

Variations of terms of options None None

Money realised by exercise of options (Rs.) 4,29,000 NIL

Total number of options in force as at the end of the year 4,25,400 1,32,000 

          Vested and available for exercise 1,67,200 NIL

          Unvested 2,58,200 1,32,000

Note 24: Employee Stock Option Plan

  The Company, from time to time, provides share based payments to its employees. These payments are provided in the 

form of stock options that can be exercised once the employee has completed specied service term with the Company. All 

share based  employee payments will be settled in equity. The details of Stock options are provided below.

 Summary of the status of Options

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,92,300 5,04,000

Options granted during the year  2,25,000 2,48,000

Options Lapsed during the year  17,000 2,83,500

Options vested and available for exercise 2,86,300 80,700

Options exercised during the year  42,900 76,200

Total number of options in force as at the end of the year 5,57,400 3,92,300

 Fair Valuation of Options

 The fair value of each option is estimated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. The following key assumptions are 

used for valuation:

 Particulars November 20, 2017

Current Market Price  50.05 

Exercise Price  10.00 

Weighted average volatility rate 154.1%

Dividend Payouts 5.00%

Risk free rate 7.05%

Expected life of the option  6 to 8 years
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Note 25: Disclosures of dues / payments to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises to the extent such enterprises are identied 

by the company:

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a. Amount due on account of suppliers as at the end of the accounting year 7,10,223 NIL

b. Interest paid during the year;  NIL   NIL

c. Interest payable at the end of the year;  NIL   NIL

d. Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting year;
 has not been provided.  NIL NIL

 The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identied as "Micro, Small and 

Medium" enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company during the year

Note 26: Earning Per Share(EPS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Basic

Prot / (Loss) after tax as per accounts  1,39,92,838 97,21,203

Number of Shares issued (Weighted average no.)  2,51,00,743 2,33,31,499

Earning Per Share (of nominal value  of equity share of Rs.10/- each) 0.56 0.42

Diluted

Prot / (Loss) after tax as per accounts  1,39,92,838 97,21,203

Number of Shares issued (Weighted average no.)  2,57,68,691 2,35,01,678

Earning Per Share (of nominal value  of equity share of Rs.10/- each) 0.54 0.41

 Calculation of Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 2,51,00,743   2,33,31,499
calculating basic earning per share

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share

Stock options  4,13,153 1,70,179

Convertible Warrants  2,54,795 -

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator 2,57,68,691 2,35,01,678
in calculating diluted earning per share  

Note 27: Warranty

 The Company generally offers 6 to 12 months warranties for its products. Management estimates the related provision for 

future warranty claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent trends that might suggest that 

past cost information may differ from future claims. Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products 

sold which are still under warranty at the end of the reporting period.

Movement in provision during the nancial year Warranty Provision

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening Provision  1,12,04,846 1,89,72,475

Additions during the year  26,99,444 1,29,46,461

Reversal due to revenue deferment on extended warranty impact - 17,41,615

Reversal during the year  1,12,04,846 1,89,72,475

Closing Provision  26,99,444 1,12,04,846
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Note 28: Contingent Liabilities

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Disputed Tax demands and other matters 6,11,61,777 5,92,52,472

Total  6,11,61,777 5,92,52,472

Note 30: Financial Instruments

 This section gives an overview of the signicance of nancial instruments for the Company and provides additional 

information on balance sheet terms that contain nancial instruments.

 The details of signicant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis 

on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of nancial asset, nancial liability and equity 

instrument is disclosed in Note 1 to the nancial statements.

i) Classication of Financial Assets and Liabilities

  All nancial assets and nancial liabilities are valued at amortised cost.

 ii) Fair Value Heirarchy

  There are no nancial asset or liabilities of the Company, which, after their initial recognition, have been fair valued 

either during the year or in the previous year.

 iii) Financial Risk Management Policies and Objectives

  The Company, in the course of its business, is exposed to a variety of nancial risks, viz., market risk, credit risk and 

liquidity risk which can adversely impact the nancial performance. The Company's endeavour is to foresee the 

unrpredictability of nancial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on its nancial performance. The 

Company has a risk management policy that which not only covers the foreign exchange risk but also other risks such as 

interest rate risk and credit risk which are associated with nancial assets and liabilities.

  A. Market Risk

   Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash ows that may result 

from a change in the value of nancial instrument. The value of a nancial instrument may change as a result of 

changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity price uctuations, liquidity and other market 

changes. Future specic market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

  B. Foreign currency exchange rate risk

   The uctuations in foreign currency exchange rate may have a potential impact on the statement of prot and loss 

and equity. This arises from transactions entered. into foreign currency and assets / liabilities which are 

denomindated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

   The Company imports raw materials, traded goods, consumables etc and such transactions are denominated in US 

Dollars. The Company does not take major exposure in any other foreign currency. The company also exports goods 

which are billed in US dollars. The Company has a hedging policy approved and reviewed by the Board of Directors 

to mitigate its risks. Details of foreign currency exposure in USD are as follows:

 As at  As at
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Trade Payables (Amount in INR)  1,67,48,919 3,26,50,757

Trade Payables (Amount in USD)  2,57,501 5,03,432

  C. Credit risk

   Credit risk is the risk of nancial loss arising from counter party failure to repay or service debt according to the 

contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk covers both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of 

creditworthiness as well as concentration risks.

   Trade receivables constitute the nancial instruments that are exposed to credit risk. The Company's policy is to deal 

only with creditworthy counterparts. The Company management considers that all the nancial assets that are not 

impaired for each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality, including the reporting dates under 

review are of good those that are past due. None of the Company nancial assets are secured by collateral or other 

credit enhancements.

   The Company's exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of nancial assets recognised at the balance 

sheet date.
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Note 31: Additional Information Pursuant to the Provisions of Part II of Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013.

 A) Value of Imports on CIF basis

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Raw material, Stock in trade, spares and consumables 15,91,85,451 17,81,99,749

 B) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Travelling  1,38,159 50,951

Repair Charges  - 3,65,640

 C) Material consumption details

 D) Earning in Foreign Currency

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Export of Goods  12,30,525 12,17,850

Note 32: Previous Year gures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current period presentation.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants H V Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Firm Reg. No.: 108296W Director Chairman & Managing Director

Vinay D Balse
Partner Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele
Membership No. : 39434 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 19, 2018 Date: May 19, 2018

 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 

  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Indigenous-

Consumption during the year  17,65,11,704 14,25,29,913

% of total consumption  73% 55%

Imported-

Consumption during the year  6,61,58,237 11,77,18,057

% of total consumption  27% 45%

Total  24,26,69,941 26,02,47,970






